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Overview

Our vision is to be the leading global hospitality
real estate ownership group for key gateway

cities with effective, in-built and unigue asset
mManagement sicLs.
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MILLENNIUM & COPTHORNE
HOTELS plc

Who we are How we make money
We are a global hospitality We earn profits through the
management and real estate group, efficient operation of our hotels
with 120 hotels in 79 business and and effectivea management of
leisure destinations In Asia, our substanual property portfolio
Australasia, Europe, the Middle
East and North Amenca In each of our distinctive brand
offenngs, we airn to provide guests
Our strategy with consistently high levels of
Cur strategy and mission 1S to sarvice at well-appointed and
create value by improving hotel conveniantly located hotels and
profitabihty through capital hospitality outlets
investment, consistent service
delivery, lean operations and a Lean operations and low central
motivated workforce We build costs are our business hallmarks
and generate long-term value Combined with our owner/operator
through dynamic management strategy and distinctive business
of our property portfolio model, this enables us to delwer

good annual returns to shareheclders

Millenmium & Copthorne Hotels plc Annual report and accounts 2014




02 Overview
Asia

The Group began serving visitors to Japan for the first time in
December 2014 when the 329-room Millennium Mitsui Garden
Hotel Tokyo opened in Ginza, the premier shopping and
entertainment district in the Japanese capital.
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Grand HPt1 Taipei T e ; Hotel MyStays Asahusabractn

Our development was well timed, with
acquisrtion of the land and construction
of the luxury property commencing
before Tokyo was named as host city
for the 2020 Olympics The Group
further strengthened 1ts presence In
Tokyo when CDL Hospitality Trusts
{("CDLHT"} acquired two budget hotels
at the end of the year which are
operated under the MyStays brand

Elsewhere in the region, the £61m
renovation of our largest Asian hotel,
the 853-room Grand Hyatt Taiper will
complete in 2015 when we will also be
putting the finishing touches to the
refurbishment of the Millennium

Seou! Hilten

Grand Hyatt Taipei .
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Millennium Mitsui Garden Hotel
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Mhllenmum Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo
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04 Overview
Europe

Overlooking the River Thames and close to the ever-fashionable
Kings Road, the 158-suite The Chelsea Harbour Hotel became
the Group's sixth owned or leased property in London in March
2014. In October 2014, the Group also acquired its first hotel

In taly, Grand Hotel Palace Rome. This luxury 87-room property
is on the famous Via Veneto.

Both acquisitions are luxurious, recently
refurbished five-star hoteis, situated

in two of the world’s top travel destinations
They offer hugh standards of service and
cormfort to our guests, whilst fitting
efficiently within the Group’s existing
regional management infrastructure

Grand Haotel PJ'd!ie Rame

\
The Cheisza't ur Hote
1 KisA Y

Millen ntum & Copthorne Hotals ple Annual report and accounts 2014




Overview Strategic report Governance Financial statements Further information

05

7N
:r, ‘!III‘;’  §

e Bl
R
+

B i B R e T T o P — =

- 4 - j —

g,

I

|

‘ ‘ o . s
s _' \ . - ;g .

AR I .

hd H : B :’a‘:

B - .
w o:g._di‘c::ﬂome

Millenmium & Copthorne Hotels pic Annual report and accounts 2014




06 Overview

USA

The Group acquired the Novotel New York Times Sqguare

in June 2014. The recently refurbished four-star hotel offers

480 rooms in the heart of the city's theatre district and fits well
with the Group's existing portfolio In the city: ONE UN New York
on the East River, Millenium Hilton in the financial district and

Millennium Broadway, which includes Premier Hotel New York,
near Times Square.

Midlznmum Harvest House Boulder

The Group 1s refurbishing a
number of its regional US
properties including The
McCormick Scottsdale and
Millennium Harvest House
Boulder in 2014

Miltennium & Copthorne Hotels pic Annual report and accounts 2014
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08 Overview
Australasia

Copthorne Hotel Palmerston North delivered RevPAR growth
after its extensive refurbishment and rebranding in 2014.

The hotel attracts new and
previously held business, mainly
in the corporate sector

Copthorne Hotel Palmerston North

1hurnc Hotel Patmerston tigfth

Millenmium & Copthorne Hotels ple Annual raport and accounts 2014
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Our three hotels in Queenstown were also  —— . ¥
refurbished during 2014 We expect these
improvements will contribute to the continuing
growth in the region

.
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10 Overview
How we performed

“The Group continues to build strong foundations for further growth through a carefully
executed asset management strategy Resuits from this in 2014 included the
completion of the guest room refurbishment at the Grand Hyatt Taipe, the acquisition
of new properties in London, New York and Rome, as well as the opening of
a newly constructed hotel in Tokyo's Ginza district Our results in 2013 were boosted
significantly by the recognition of revenue and profit on the Glyndebourne
development Our hotel trading results were positive, despite revenue and profit
being adversely affected by the strength of the pound sterling, especially during
the earlier part of the financial year”

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman

Financial highlights

i 12.8% & +0. 7 11.9pts
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Revenue Group RevPAR Net asset value

Group revenue fell by 22 4% to £826m Group RevPAR increased by 2 8% to Net asset value increased by 2 1%
(2013 £1,064m) — a decrease of £238m £7155 (2013 £69 58}, driven by to £2,735m {2013 £2,679m)
The lower figure was mainly due to the in¢reased occupancy and slightly higher

previous year's recognition of revenues average room rate RevPAR rose m all

totalling £274m from the Glyndebourne of the Group's regions with the exception

development of Singapore

Hotel Revenue Profit before tax

Hotel revenue increased by 2 6% to Profit before tax reduced by 36 3% to

£750m {2013 £731m), despite the £188m (2013 £295m) As with Group

negative impact of foreign exchange revenue, this was dnven primarily by

movements and helped by acquisitions recagnition in 2013 of Glyndebourne

as well as stronger overall hotel profits totaling £138m {2014 £5m}

performance There was a £21m impairment charge

in 2013 which did not recur in 2014

Millennium 8 Copthorne Hotals ple Annual repart and accounts 2014




12 Overview
Group at a glance

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels is a financially strong, globally
diversified business, with a growing hotel portfolio, well situated In
vibrant business and leisure destinations. The Group is supported by

talented staff and real estate assets in some of the most valuable
locations in the world.
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Hotel and room count analysed by ownership type 13

As at 31 December 2014

Inventory
G Hotels Roorn Count
roup Fory 703 Crango ) 2008 Trange
Owned or leased 64 62 2 19.084 18434 810
Managed n 28 3 8,780 7984 796
Franchused 10 1 m 1427 1,564 (137
Investment 15 13 2 4,118 3,751 365
Total 120 4 [ 33,367 31,733 1,634
- Hotels Room Count
Asia o4 2013 Change 204 2013 Cronge
Owned or leased 12 12 - 8972 5508 464
Managed 8 7 2870 2,381 489
Franchised 2 2 - 780 780 -
Investment 9 6 3 2525 1941 584
Total 32 27 5 12,147 10,610 1537
" " Hotets Roomn Count
Europe {includes Middle East} id 03 Tregs o P =
Owned or leased 20 19 1 45N 4 548 23
Managed 21 20 1 5,763 5,456 107
Franctused - - - - - _
Investment - - - - - -
Total - 29 2 10334 10,004 330
. Hotels Aoom Count
United States nd 2003 Chonge Py 203 Change
Owmned or leased 19 18 1 6.701 6477 224
Managed - - - - - -
Franchised - - - - - -
Investment - 1 {n - 219 (219)
Total 9 19 - a7 8,698 5
Hotels Room Count
Australasla Ty 2003 Tharge Py pTE] T
Owned or leased (> 13 - 1,500 1,801 o)
Managed 1 1 - “r 147 -
Franchised ] 8 0 o7 784 (130
Investment 6 8 - 1.5 1,591 -
Total -] 29 m &1 21403 1238

Milennium & Copthosna Hotels plc Annual report and accounts 2014




14 Overview

12,147 41 10,334

Number Number Number Number
of hotels of rcoms of hotels of rooms

283 11,337 196 | 691

Hotel revenue Hotel operating Hotel revenue Hotel operating
{Em} net assets (Em) {£m} net assets (Em}

Aillennivm & Copthorne.Hotels.plo
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United States Australasia

19 6,/01 23 4,185

Number . Number Number Number
of hotels of rooms ' of hotels of rcoms

229 |/6b 42 299

Hotel ravenue Hotel operating , Hotel revenue . Hotel opersting
Em) . netassets{fm} . - 2 : (Emi} ' net assets (£m)
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16 Overview

Chairman’s statement

Group profit before tax was 36 3%
lower in 2014 at £188m (2013
£295m) Revenue was down by
22.4% to £826m (2013. £1,064m).
The falls were largely due to the
previous year's recognition of results
from the sale of Glyndebourne
condominiums in Singapore, which
yielded a revenue and profit of £274m
and £139m respectively in 2013

Reported results were adversely
affected dunng the early part of the
year by the translation effect of the
strong pound sterling, our reporting
currency

RevPAR increased by 2 8% to

£71 585, or by 6 9% 1n constant
currency The improvement In
performance was dnven mainly by
acquisitions and the impact of our
refurbishment programme, especially
at Millenmium Hotel Minneapolis and
Grand Hyatt Taipel Closure of the
poorly performing Millennium Hotel
St Lows in January 2014 also helped
to improve RevPAR

The increase in hotel revenue was

Underlying performance was

driven mainly by improved RevPAR
and acquisitions The Group's
refurbishment programme also
benefited hotel revenue through a
net increase In the number of room
nights available for sale from existing
hotels compared to 2013, as well as
through higher average room rates

Closure of the Millenniurm Hotel St
Louis reduced revenue by £4m
Revenue was reduced by the
strength of our reporting currency,
the pound sterling ln constant
currency, hotel revenue increased
by 6 7% (2013 £703m)

Management continues to focus
on control of costs The Group’'s
consoldated hotel gross operating
margin for the year rose to 36 0%
(2013 35 0%)

In light of the Group's performance
last year, the Board is recommending
a final ordinary dividend of 11 51p per
share (2013 11 51p) Together with
the interim ordinary dividend of

2 08p per share {2013 2 08p), the
total ordinary dividend for 2014 1s

Mtllennium & Copthorne Hotels ple Annual report and accounts 2014

positive, with hotel revenue
up by 2.6% at £750m

(2013: £731m) and hotel
operating profit up by 5.7%
~at £168m (2013: £1569m),
mainly reflecting the positive
impacts of acquisitions and
hotel refurbishments.

13 59p per share (2013 13 59p)

A special dwidend of 9 15p per share
was declared with the 2013 results,
reftecting recognition of profits from
the Glyndebourne development

in Singapore The Directors have
determined that a special dividend
would not be appropriate In respect
of 2014 profit Subject to approval

by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 7 May
2015, the final dividend will be paid
on 15 May 2015 to shareholders

on the register on 20 March 2015

| would like to welcome Aloysius Lee
Tse Sang who joined the Group as
Group CEOQ designate on 1 February
2015 and will take full control on

1 March 2015 He joined the Group
from South Beach Consortium Pte
Ltd in Singapore and has extensive
expenence within the real estate and
hospitality industries Mr Lee
succeeds Wong Hong Ren, who will
step down as the Group CEO and
from the Board on 28 February 2015
Mr Wong will be available as a
consultant to the Group for 12
months from 1 March 2015
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On behalf of the Board, | would like
to thank Mr Wong for his dedication
to the Group, tis work as Group CEQ
and his contribution as a Director for
many years, during which time he
has been instrumental in developing
and executing key elements of Group
strategy | wish him well for the
tuture

Gervase MacGregor was appointed
as an independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on

11 December 2014 Mr MacGregor 1s
a chartered accountant and a

partner with the professional
services firm, BDO LLP, where he

is Head of International Advisory,
Risk and Quality Services

Governance

lan Batey and Sean Collins resigned
as independent Non-Executive
Directors on 20 February 2014 and

11 December 2014 respectively

Mr MacGregor succeeded Mr Collins
as Chairman of the Audit & Risk
Committee, whilst Nicholas George
succeeded Mr Collins as Senior
Independent Director

In 2015, the Group will continue
to focus on ownership and
management of hospitality real
estate assets, and will commit
significant capital to the
refurbishment of key gateway city
and other properties, further
strengthening the business The
Group's strong financial position

>
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enables it to continue seeking out
attractive acquisition opportunities
The Group 1s well positioned to
generate further improvement in
operating performance in 2015,
subject to ongoing concern about the
sustainability of economic recovery
and other factors affecting the world
travel and hospitality markets

In the first 31 days of trading in 2015
Group RevPAR increased by 6 9%,
with Europe up by 9 1%, the United
States up by 13 1%, Australasia up
by 13 0% and Asiadown by 1 6%

Kwek Leng Beng
Charman

9 February 2015
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20 Strategic report

Business review and strategy

The Group’s strategy and business model worked well in a
challenging economic environment during 2014. Whilst recoveries
in the US and UK economies were reflected in stronger hospitality
markets, in most of continental Europe and many parts of Asig,
conditions were less favourable. By maintaining firm cost control
at the hotel and corporate levels, and calibrating pricing to local
and regional market conditions, the Group overcame these
challenges to deliver positive trading results for the year.

Business model

The Group's hospitality real estate
ownership model enables investors to
participate in long-term asset value growth
as well as hotel earnings The model Is
de-centrabsed with relatively low central
overheads, the core aim being to ensure that
a hugh proportion of hotel revenues flow
directly through to the Group’s bottom kne.

tn some markets, where real
estate ownership 1s sub-optimai

Operating performance

RevPAR increased by 2 8% to

£71 55, or by 6 9% In constant
currency The improvement in
performance was driven mainly by
acquisitions and the impact of our
refurbishrnent programme, especially
at Millennium Hotel Minneapolis and
Grand Hyatt Taipel Closure of the
poorly performing Millennium Hotel
St Louis in January 2014 also helped
to improve RevPAR

The increase In hotsl revenue was
drnven mainly by improved RevPAR
and acquisitions The Group's
refurbishment programme also
benefited hotel revenue through a
netincrease i the number of room
nights avaiiable for sale from existing

for fiscal or other reasons, the
Group may operate hotels under
ranagement contract

Strategy

The core strategic objective of the Group
15 to provide tong-term improving retums
on shareholders’ capital, whilst growing
the businass through asset acquisition
and prudent nvestment in the existing
asset portfolio The Group 1s also

hotels compared to 2013, as well as
through higher average room rates

Closure of the Millennium Hotel St
Lous reduced revenue by £4m
Revenue was reduced by the
strength of our reporting currency,
the pound sterling In constant
currancy, hotel revenue increased by
6 7% (2013 £703m)

Management continues to focus on
cost contral The Group's hotel gross
operating margin for the year rose 10
36 0% (2013 35 0%}

As well as economic conditions,

the botel trading environment is
becoming increasingly influenced by
changing distnibution technology

Millannium & Copthorne Hotels ple Annual report and accounts 2014

investing in its people, Its brands and
1ts technology m order to provide high
quahty, cost-efficient service to its

customers and good financial returns
to its shareholders

We take a four-pronged approach to
executing our strategy, focused on
capital allocation, promoting growth,
controlling costs and festering efficient
operating procedures

The Group invested In its
e-commerce capabilities, introducing
a new central reservation system
duning 2014 We also deployed a
new customer relationstup
management {(“CRM") system in
Europe to manage our interactions
with current and future customers,
whilst automating certain ¢ntical
customer-facing areas such as
marketing, sales and customer
service The CRM system waill be
introduced to other regions durning
2015

Acquisitions

The Group remained on alert for
acquisrtion opportunrties throughout
2014 In general, prices demanded
by owners of hotel assets remained




Overview Stratagic report

higher than justified by hotei operating
performance Despite this overall
trend, the Group succeeded In
acguiring three value-adding
properties during the year

& (On 25 March 2014, the Group
completed 1ts purchase of the long
leasehold interest in a 5-star,
all-suite hotel located within
London’s Chelsea Harbour district
for £65m Situated in a prestigious
and improving riverside location,
the property — now renamed as
The Chelsea Harbour Hotel - offers
154 suites and 4 penthouses

Operational and organisationa! efficiency
invest in people and technological
innovation, adopt best practice

where cost efficient

Capital and resource allocation
Core focus on improving returns
from hospitality real estate
investment

¢ On 12 June 2014, the Group
completed its acquisition of the
480-room 4-star Novotel New
York Times Square, for which 1t
paid $274m (£161m} The property
Is situated at a location that 1s
consistently voted amongst the
world’'s most important tounst
destinations It will continue
to be managed by Accor under
the Novotel brand

& On 9 October 2014, the Group
completed the purchase of its first
hotel in Italy, for €66m (E51m)
This 15 a 5-star, 87-room property,
located on Rome’s Via Veneto and
the hotel 1s now renamed as
Grand Hotel Palace Rome

Governance

The three acquisitions added £32m
to revenue and £6m to operating
profit in 2014 Proportonately greater
contributions are anticipated in 2015,
which will be their first full year of
ownership by the Group

In addiion, CDLHT acquired two
hotels In Tokyo during December
2014, which will be managed under
the MyStays brand

The Group opened three hotels
under management contract during
2014 In total the Group has 31
management contracts, most of

Cost control

Maintain a lean decentralised business
model and dnive effictencies through
systems and technology

Growth

Sharpen focus on key gateway
cities and brand strategy through
a motivated sales team

which are in the Middle East and
China The Group had 120 hotels in
79 locations at 31 December 2014
This was a net increase of Six
properties compared to

31 December 2013

Devalopment

Construction and fitting out of the
Group's first hotel in Japan was
completed towards the end of the
year, with the official opening on

17 December 2014 The new luxury
hotel has 329 rooms and is located
in Tokyo's fashionable Ginza district
Mitsui Fudosan Co, Ltd operates
the hotel as the Millenrum Mitsu
Garden Hotel Tokyo under a fixed-
term lease and licensing
arrangement

Financial statements

Further informgtion
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The Group co-owns the freehold and
leasehold interests in the property
through a joint-venture with CDL

In December 2014, Urban
Environmental Improvement (“UEI"}
approval was granted for the Group's
land 1n Seou!, South Korea to be
used for lodging facilities There
was also UE! approval of the floor
area ratio, footprint ratto and building
height for a proposed hotel and
serviced apartment construction
project under consideration

by the Group

The Group 1s considerning its options
with regard to 1ts freehold interest

in Millennturm Hotel St Lows, which
closed in January 2014 The property
occuplas a 17,033m? site 1n the city
The Group Is also considering its
options with respect to s freehold
interest in a 35,717m? mixed use
landsite at Sunnyvale, California

Millennium 8 Copthorne Hotels ple Annual report and accounts 2014
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Business review and strategy — continued

Refurbishment

In addition to acquisitions and new
development, the Group regards
prudent investment in the existing
hotel portfolio as a means to rmprove
return on capital Such investment
decisions are made with the utmost
care, avoiding excessive disruption to
current trading Investment s also
dependent on local planning
constraints and permissions, which
can delay individual projects

In addition to standard maintenance
expenditure across the estate, the
Group invested £42m in existing
properties durng 2014 Most of this
expenditure was accounted for by
the continuing refurbishment of
Grand Hyatt Taiper which, with 853
rooms, I1s the Greup's largest hotel in
Asia The remaining work on the
common parts of the property will
conciude dunng 2015.

A smaller refurbishment project was
completed during the summer at
the Group's 125-room hotel In
Anzona On 1 Cctober 2014, the
former Millennium Resort and Villas
Scottsdale was re-opened as

The McCormick Scottsdale after a
three-month closure over the
normally quiet summer months

It 1s too early to assess the

trading impact of the renovation

Refurbishment of all 100 rooms
in the main tower of Millennium
Harvest House Boulder

was completed in May 2014

Refurtishment projects are in
process at Millenmum Bailey's Hotel
London Kensington, Millennium
Hotel Buffalo, Millenmum Alaskan
Hotel Anchorage and Millennium

Biltmore Hotel Los Angeles A
number of significant refurbishment
projects affecting other Group
properties are being planned

Asset disposals

The Group did not renew I1ts lease
on the loss making Copthorne Hotel
Hannover, which expirred at

the end of 2014

In March 2014, the UK Secretary of
State confirmed the compuisory
purchase order for Birrmingham’s
Paradise Circus Redevelopment
scheme, which includes the
Copthorne Hotel Brmingham As
prevtously announced, the Group has
entered into an agreement with the
developer of the scheme, granting
the Group a number of options
including construction of a new hotel
and/or the sale of the existing site

The Group 15 also in discussion with
appropriate authorities in Scotland
regarding the impact of the
redevelopment of the local area

on the Millennium Hotel Glasgow

Joint ventures and associates
Joint ventures and associates
contrnbuted £10m to profit in 2014
(2013 £14m)

First Sponsor Group Limited {"First
Sponsor”) was listed on the
Singapore Exchange on 22 July
2014 The Group has an effective
interest of 36% n First Sponser,
which now reports its results
publicty First Sponsor will continue
to be an important part of the Group
strategy for growing s presence In
China, through managing hotels that
are developed and owned by First
Sponsor in the course of its work as

Millenswum & Copthorne Hotels plc Annual report and accounts 2014

an international mixed use real estate
developer At 31 December 2014,
the Group managed one property
owned by First Sponsor — the
196-room M Hotel Chengdu The
610-room Millenmum Waterfront
Chengdu Hotel 1s scheduled to open
in Chengdu’s Wenjang distrct in
2017 More properties are at

the planning stage

In 2014 the Group consolidated

the performance of CDLHT i
accordance with IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements
Previously 1t was equity accounted
under Joint Ventures and Associates
CDLHT 1s histed on the Singapore
Exchange and reports 1ts results
and activities separately
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Key performance indicators
We use a set of carefully selected key performance
indicators (KP!s) to monitar our Success In executing
our strategy set out on page 20 These KPIs are used
to measure the Group's progress year-on-year against
those strategic priorities, and are set out below
Strategic prority KPls
Growth Revenue per Qccupancy Average room Hotel
To achieve profitable growth for Avatlable Room rate revenue
our hospitality business These & ra%  741% o e 96 o
are shown at constant rates sess %
of exchange 40 0% 500 -—
40 0%
20 20%
o 0%
2013 2014 2013 204 014 2013 2014

Average room rate
muitiplied by
cccupancy percentage

Percentage of rcoms
available for sale that
were actually sold

fRevenue from room
sales, dwvided by the
number of room

Including room sales,

food and beverage
sates and meetings

to our guests nights sold and events
Capital allocation Net Asset Net debt Basic earnings
To ensure appropnate use of the Value per share
Group's capital so that long-term Em £ pence
3000 800 -
return on nvestment for the 2673 I@S a4
shareholders 1s maximised, 2000 _ o &0
through a nigorous asset ©
management programme, o - N B . =
saelective acquisitions, and an 20
appropriate use of equity . 0
investments M3 014 013 2014 2013 2014
Total assets less total Total borrowings less Profit for the year attnbutable
liabilities total cash to equity holders of the parent
divided by weighted average

number of shares In 1ssue

Cost Control

To ensure costs remain in line
with revenue movements
through a decentralised model,
technological enhancements
to dnve efficiencies and
ngorous monitoring of
spending

Operating
profit

195

2014

Profit

before tax

€m

400

100 2595

200 188
100 iy

0
2013 wa

The Group beheves that the KPls prowide
useful and necassary information on
underlying trends to shareholders, the
nvestment community and are used by the
Group for internal performance analysis The
Group monitors Net Asset Value to better
reflect the property ownership nature of the
Group Gwven the decentralised mode! of the

Group, Regional Managers focus on

performance numbers are then consolidated

operationa! KPls as well as the above These

include customer feedback, hotel gross
operating proftt and staff retention General
Managers raport their operating KPls to
Regional Managers on a regular basis with
companson nurmbers for the local
competitive set of each hotel The hotel

Millenmum & Copthome Hotels plc Annual report and accounts 2014

into regional and Groupwide figures
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Financial performance

For the full year to 31 December 2014, total revenue
decreased by 22 4% to £826m (2013 £1,064m)
principally due to the recognition of Glyndebourne

revenue In 2013

Full year overview

Operating profit decreased by 33 7% to
£195m (2013 £294m} The decrease was
due to £139m of operating profit being
recognised in relation to the Glyndebourne
project in 2013 (2014 £5m) When
Glyndebourne is stripped out, the Group’s
operating profit increased by 22 6%

This was helped by the £27rm of

net revaluation gains on the Group's
investmeant properties, particularly the new
Ginza hotel and by the £21m impairment
charge in 2013 which did not recur in 2014

Profit from |oint ventures and
associates in the year decreased
to £10m {2013 £14m) due to lower
contrbutions from First Sponsor

Basic earnings per share decreased
by 510% 10 34 Op (2013 69 4p)

Fereign exchange translation

As at Average for
31 Decernber tha 12 months
Currency [=£) 2014 203 2014 2013
US dollar 1556 1647 1645 1569
Singapaore dollar 2059 2088 2087 1963
New Tawan dollar 49419 49 450 49938 46 634
New Zealand dollar 200 2013 1990 1917
Malaysian nnggrt 5 442 5419 539 4953
Korean won 1,708 55 1,73548 1,72798 1,713 18
Chinese renmmbi 9684 9999 10 138 9648
Euro 1278 1197 1.240 1179
Japanese yen 187334 172 545 173 950 152 194

The Company publishes its Group financial
statements in sterling However, the
majonty of the Company’s subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates report their
revanue, costs, assets and liabilities

in currencies other than sterling The
Company translates the revenue,

costs, assets and babiliies of those
subsidianes, joint ventures and associates
mto sterling and this translation of other
currencies Into sterling could matenally
affect the amount of these items in the
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Group’s financial statements, even

if their values have not changed In

their original currencies The above

table sets out the sterling exchange

rates of the other principal currencies

in the Group Sterling strengthened
appreciably compared to major currencies
dunng the early months of the year

and later it retraced 1ts gains against

a stronger US doliar but strengthened
further against the Euro and the
Japanese yen, the effect of which can be
seen in the translation reserve on page 77
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Financial position and resources
Restated
2014 2013 Change
£m £m £
Property, plant and equipment and lease premwum prepayment 2,851 2,457 394
Investment properlies 479 414 65
Investment In joint ventures and associates 235 203 32
Othar financial assets 5 5 -
Non-current assets 3570 3,079 a9
Current assets excluding cash 182 259 (77
Provisions and other liabilibes exciuding interest beanng loans, bonds and borrowings (271) (236) {35)
Net debt (525} (218) {310}
Deferred tax liabilites (221) (208) (13)
Not assets 2,73% 2,679 58
Equity attributable to equity halders of the parent 2,263 2,176 87
Non-controlling interasts 472 503 {31)
Total equity 2,735 2,679 56
Non-current assets share of results of joint ventures and Treasury risk management

Nor-cument assets have increased
yearon-year, principally due to the
acquisition of the five new hotels and
the completion of the Tokyo hotet.

The Group states land and buldings,
apart from investmant properties, at
depreciated deemed cost, being their
UK GAAP carrying value, including
revaluations as at 1 January 2004,
together with additions thereafter
less subsequent depreciation

and provision for impairment

External professtonal open market
valuations took place at the end of 2014
for all investrment properties and those
property assets (dentfied as having
impairment risks This resulted in a
revaluation surplus of £29m {2013 £21mi}
and a revaluation defigit of E2m (2013
£2mi relating to the Group's investmant
properties being recorded i the accounts
for 2014 No impairment charge was made
for the Group's hotels during the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013 £21m)

Financial structure
Group interest cover ratie for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (excluding

assocates and other operating income
and expense) s 10 tmes (2013 23 tmes}

At 3% December 2014, the Group had
£392m cash and £255m of undrawn and
committed facilities available, compnsing
revoiving credit facilites which provide
the Group with financial flexibiity Most
of the faciities are unsecured with
unencumbered assets representing

90 7% of fixed assets and investment
properties At 31 December 2014,

total borrowing amounted to £817m

of which £70m was drawn under

£90m of sacured bank faciities

Future funding

Of the Group's total facihities of £1,188m,
£575m matures within 12 months
compnsing £29m unsecured bonds,
£196m committed revolving cradit
faciities, £45m uncommutted facilities
and overdrafts subject to annual renewal,
£303m unsecured term loans and

£2m secured term loans Plans

for refinancing the matunng

facilities are under way

Group treasury matters are governed

by pohcies and procedures approved

by the Board of Directors The treasury
committee monitors and reviews treasury
matters on a regular basis A written
summary of major treasury activity is
presented at each Board mesting

2014 changes in accounting
poflicy and presentation

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Staterments replaced the requirements
of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements and SIC 12
Consohdation — Special Purpose Entities
It introduces new cnitera to determine
whether entuties in which the Group has
an interest should be consohdated |t
was first effective for the Group's 2014
accounts, and the implementation of IFRS
10 resuited in the Group consolidating
COLHT which was previously treated

as an associate undertaking and not
consolidated The comparatives for

2013 have been restated accordingly
More detail 1s given in Note 2 2 to the
consolidated financial statements

Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc Annual report and accounts 2014




26 Strategic report
Regional performance - Asia

The Group had 32 hotels in Asia at the close of 2014 {2013
27}, 21 of which were owned, leased or investment
properties (2013 18) including the 11 hotels (2013 9)
owned by CDLHT RevPAR for these hotels fell by 0 4%
to £70 62 (2013 £70 89) Hotel revenue of £283m (2013
£274m) increased by a higher margin {3 3%) as a result

of rooms being returned to inventory at Grand Hyatt Taipel @ O 4 0/0
and increased contributions from meetings and events. ]

There was also a small additional contribution to revenue RevPAR
as a result of the Group adding two management
contract hotels to inventory in the region in the first f 7 O 6 2
quarter of 2014. {(2013: £70.89)
2014 2013 Change
Asia
Hotel Revenue {fm) 283 274 33%
RevPAR (F) 7062 7089 (0D4%
Occupancy (%) 78.1 769 12pts
ARR (£} 9045 92.18 {(19)%
Singapore
Hotel revenue (Em) 131 131 -
RevPAR (£) 8688 8864 (201%
Occupancy (%) 883 864 19pts
ARR (£} 98.40 10261 41% .
Rest of Asia
Hotal revenue (£m) 152 143 63% -
RevPAR (£) 59.64 5837 22%
Occupancy (%) 712 702  10pts
ARR {£} 8378 8313 08%

* Parformance review for the regions from pages
26 to 33 Is based on calculations in ¢onstant
currency wherety 31 December 2013 average
room rates, RevPAR and hotel revenue have been
transiated at average exchange rates for the year
ended 31 December 2014
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pressure on average room rate with the result that the
Group’s Singapore RevPAR fell by 2 0% for the year
However, the Group's occupancy-led strategy, together
with higher receipts from meetings and events, kept
hotel revenue flat compared to the previous year

Rest of Asia

The man factor supporting revenue growth in Rest

of Asia was the re-opening of rooms closed for
refurbishment at the Grand Hyatt Taiper Work on the
common parts of the hotei 1s scheduled to complste In
2015 Elsewhere, RevPAR parformance was relatively
flat, except for The Hantage Hotel Manila where RevFAR
fell by 11 7% following the closure of the casino, which
had been operated by a third party

Millenniurm Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo which 1s held as
an investment property, opened in mid-December 2014
and did not make a maternal contribution to the year's

results Tha Group further strengthened its presence in

¥

13

e y = IR Tokyo when CDLHT acquired two budget hotels at the
N ) . - R R end of the year These hotels are operated under the
nnium Harsourview Hotet Xiamen 0 . & . MyStays brand The Group added two management

i

contract hotels in Asia duning the year Copthorne Hotel
Cameron Highlands in Malaysia and the Group's first
resort destination in China, Millennium Resort Hangzhou
Singapore

Singapore visitor arnvals fell by 3 4% in the 11 months

ended 30 Novembar 2014 This was led by lower wisitor

numbers from Chuina which fell by 26% compared to

the same penod in 2013, although month-on-month

compansons turned positive In October and November

There was also an estimated 3 3% increase in the

number of Singapore hotel rooms compared to the

previous year !ncreasing supply and falling demand put
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Regional performance - Europe

At the end of 2014 the Group had 41 hotels in Europe (2013 39}, including
the Middle East where we have 17 hotels operating under management
contracts (2013 16) Four hotels in the United Kingdom — Copthorne Hotel
Sheffield, Millennium Madjeski Hotel Reading and two Millennium &
Copthorne Hotels at Chelsea Football Club — are also under management
contracts Of the remaining 20 hotels, two were acquired during the year.
The Cheisea Harbour Hotel and Grand Hotel Palace Rome The Group
decided not to renew its lease on Copthorne Hotel Hannover in Germany,
which expired on 31 December 2014 RevPAR for the Group’s owned and
leased hotels increased by 4 0% compared to 2013 as a result of higher
average room rates

Rl -
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London

London hotels increased RevPAR by 4 0% The iggest
impact on London results was the acquisition of The
Chelsea Harbour Hotel, which made a positive contribution
to the regtonal RevPAR calculation over three full guarters of
2014 On a like-forlike basis, London RevPAR increased by
14% Meetings and events helped to further ift total hote!
revenus

Rest of Europe

The Group’s hotels in Rest of Europe increased RevPAR

by 12% or 0 6% like-forike, with the best performers
being the two Gatwick hotels and Millennium Hotel
Glasgow, which benefited from the Commonwealth Games
Copthorne Hotel Birmingham saw the steapest deciine

The Raest of Europe region benefited from the acquisition
of Grand Hotel Palace Rome The region added one

new management contract hotel, the Grand Millennium
Sulaimani Hotel in the Middle East region duning the year
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2014 203 Change

Europe
Hotel Revenue (Em} 196 180 89%
RevPAR (£} 7997 7686 40%
Qccupancy (%} 774 778 (0 4dipts RevPAR
ARR {f} 10338 9878 47%

i £79 .;97

Hotel Revenue {(Em) 125 111 126%
RevPAR (£) 1247 10819 40% (2013: £76.8
Occupancy (%} 85.7 854 03pts
ARR (£)

Rast of Europe
Hotel Revenue (Em) n 69 29%
RevPAR (E) 4178 4720 12%
Occupancy (%) 69.1 707 {(16)pts
ARR (£} 69.168 6680 35%
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Regional performance - United States

The US was the Group's strongest performing region in 2014, helped by the
Novotel New York Times Square acquisition, as well as recent refurbishments
and the improving national economy The Group owned 19 hotels in the US at
31 December 2014 (2013 19), including the Novotel New York Times Square
acquired in June 2014 and the Millennium Hotel St Louis, which was closed

in January 2014

nnium Broadway Hotel New York

New York

Like-forlike RavPAR for New York grew by 19% compared
to 2013 with hotels showing an aggregate RevPAR gain of
70% Acquisition of the Novotel New York Times Square
in June 2014 had a significant positive impact on revenue
and RevPAR

Millenrvium & Copthome Hotels plke Annual report and accounts 2014

Regional US

Revenue for the Group's regional US estate was in line
with 2013, despite a RevPAR gain of 8 4% for the year
This reflected the closure of Millennium Hotel St Lowis in
January 2014 Excluding this property, RevPAR grew 73%
and hotel revenue by 4.6% in the region The recently
refurbished Millennium Hotel Minneapolis was the
biggest single contnbutor to growth with high double digit
RevPAR growth compared to 2013 The majonty of the
regional US hotels delivered RevPAR gains, led by
significant increases at Miliennium Bostontan Hotsl
Boston, Millennium Biltmore Hotel Los Angeles and
Millennium Maxwell House Hotel Nashville RevPAR
declined at Millenniumn Knickerbocker Hotel Chicago,
Millennium Hote! Cincinnati and Millennium Hotel Buffalo
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IR = 054
2014 2013 Change

United States
Hotel Revenue {Em) 229 208 101%
RevPAR (£} 7444 6540 138%
Occupancy (%) 685 659 26pts
ARR (f) 108.70 99.28 95%

New York
Hotel Revenue {Em} 123 102
RevPAR (£) 14130 13210
QOccupancy (%) 887 843
ARR (E) 162.83 156 70

Regional US
Hotel Revenue (Em) 106
RevPAR (£) 44 19
COccupancy (%) 60.2
ARR (E) 73.37
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Regional performance — Australasia

The Group has 28 hotels in Australasia, of which 13 are
owned or leased in New Zealand and nine are franchised or
under management contract The six remaining hotels are
held as investments by CDLHT and are not included in the
Group's RevPAR calculations

®13.6%

RevPAR
{(2013: £37 06
2014 2013
New Zealand
Hotel Revenue (Em}) 42 4
RevPAR (E) 4210 3706
QOccupancy (%) 73.7 675
ARR (£) 5709 5489
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Australasia
RevPAR increased by 13 6% in 2014 Property
refurbishment, together with increased overseas visitor
numbers helped t0 increase average room rate and
occupancy in most locations The hotels in Auckland and
Queenstown in particular performed well

Hotel revenue does not fully reflect improved RevPAR
performance due to the cessation in the first quarter

of 2014 of business interruption INsurance receipts
relating to the three Christchurch hotels damaged in the
2011 earthquake Excluding this factor, hotel revenues
increased by 6 6% compared to 2013

o

rFl
3 - -
nnium Hoted Queenstowrt
- ~ T m
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Corporate social responsibility

The Group takes pnde in creating a great customer experience whilst operating sustainably

We aim to meet the needs of our guests whilst maintaining high standards in every aspect of our business, from
hurman nights to environmental and social sustanability

To demonstrate our commitment to corporate social responsibility, the Board has adopted a number of policies,
collectively referred to as Responsible Hospitality, which are designed to recognise the Group's wider impact
on the communities in which we operate The Board recognises the need to review these policies regularly
and to communicate to stakeholders on progress made

Qur people

As pan of our strategic emphasis on
operational and organisational efficiency,
the Board recogrises that the Group's
growth and future success depends on the
effactveness of employees in all areas of
the business, from the Board and senior
management to new trainees |t therefore
places great emphasis on promoting the
development of Group human resources
polictes that will

s gttract and retain talented indwiduals,

* faciitate satisfying and rewarding
career paths, with effective leadership
development and coherent succession
planning, and

* buid a strong performance culture
through clear objective-setting at all
levels

As a global business with a gtobal customer
base, the Group sees strong competitive
advantage in creating a diverse and inclusive
working environment, with truly global
perspectives

Wa engage with empicyees through a range
of ways that am to keep them updated with
the entire business This halps to promote
team bullding, as well as the ability of staff to
anticipate and deliver customer needs

All staff are encouraged to gain industry-
relevant quakficatons where appropnate, both
to strengthen the business through a well-
trained ancd sngaged workforce and to support
personal career development Dunng 2014,
we continued to build on our “Outstanding
Servica Excellence” programme, which
promotes the Group's aim to delight its
guests and customers, wherever and
whenever they are served by us

For the year to 31 December 2014, the
Group employed an average of 10,257 pecple
worldwade n over 20 countries {2013 10,353)

Employees by gender Male Femala
Dwectors 8 1
Senor managers 124
QOther employees 5,970 4,035

The average number of employees employed

by the Group (including Crrectors} duning the
year analysed by category was as follows

2004 2m3
Number Number
Hotel operating staff 7954 8,009
Management/
adrinistration 1,253 1,306
Sales and marketing 464 438
Repairs and maintenance 586 600
10257 10,353
A healthy workplace

Promoting good heaith, safety and
securty for our customers, colleagues and
subcontractors 1s paramount and effective
measures are in place at our propertias to

support this am

Qur health, safety and secunty functions
ensure comphiance with stalutory
requrements through continuous
devalopment of relevant poiicres and
procedures across the Group

We am to ensure that our staff are trained
in firg emergency procedures, high level
secunty threat scenanos and emergency
evacuations, which assist m creating & safe
working environment for both guests and

employees

Reports coverng heatth and safety matters
are prasented quarterly to the Board Thess
include statistics on acaidents, ncidents
and progress in fulfiling targets hnked to
continuous iImprovement and in promaoting
wader awareness of related ssues

Caring for the environment
Climate change has a major impact on

the travel and hospitality industry We
want to graw responsibly which means
proportonately reducing our energy. carbon
and resource impacts We ara committed
to doing this by seeking new ways to
reduce and manage emiSsIONs acrass our
hotel estate and through identifying and
implementing sustainable and responsible
cost effictent measures

Thus year, 16 of our UK hotels participated in
an Energy Excellence programme to deliver
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a reduction in energy consumption over a

12 month penod The programme focused
on rarsing awareness and implementation

of simple energy saving measures which
contnbuted towards a 5 6% reduction In
electncity consumption and a 4 5% reduction
In gas consumption when compared to a
"business-as-usual” scenano

Our UK business was also successful

in retairung the Carbon Trust Standard in
recognition of its achievemnants in carbon
reduction and further demonstrates its
comnmitment to making future reductions

Other energy saving inmatives adopted
across the estate include the installation
of more energy efficient equipment and
Ighting, changes to operating procedures
and maintenance programmes and
continuous staft engagement in energy
saving habits

When we startad measunng our carbon
footprnt in 2010 we established that the vast
majonty of our direct emissions come from
three sources electnosty usage, distnbution
fuels and refngerant gases

Details of our total carbon footprint are
summansed below The base year was set as
2010 being the first year the Group reported
gresnhouse gas emissions This year our
carbon footpnint was 349,442 tonnes

Global tonnes of CO,8
2010

2014 2013 Base year
Scope 1 59,200 58,386 73,308
Scope 22 282818 248753 235918
Carbon
ntensity
{tonnes of CO,&
rooms Includes
scope one,
two end threo
emiasions but not
travel) 1238 1228 13.32
Scopa 3F 33 26,677 19,214
No of rooms 21925 26 706 24 658
Total gross
emissIons 349442 331817 328439
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Notes

1 Direct emissions from actvites owned or contralled by
our organisation that release emissions into the
atrmosphere

2 Indirect emissIONS that are a consequence of our
organisations activities but which accur at sources we do
not awn or control

3 Other indiract emissions that are a consequance of cur
actions which occur at sources which we do not own of
contral and which are not classed as scope 2 smussions

4 Includes business travel

To calculate our emussions, we have used the
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protecol Corporate
Accounting and Reparting Standard
methodclogy and the operational control
consolidation approach to determine what
properties are included Franchise hotels and
irvestment hotels that are managed by third
party cperators have not been included

in the data collation

Absolute emussions for the year have
increased due to the opering of a number of
new hotels However, If newly opened hotels
were to be excluded, overalt group emissions
would show a decrease compared to 2013
Relative emissions (1 @ emussions per room
or per unit floor areal have decreased since
2010 Emissions per unit floor area have
decreased by 21% and ermissions per room
have decreased by 7%

adutive: Carbon Emigalans by Bovron
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We racognise that our efforts to reduce our
ervironmental impact need to go wider than
our carbon footpnnt They also need to cover
other resources we rely on, ensunng we
usa them as efficiently as possible Beyond
the clear ermvironmental benefits, the better
management of resources will increasae our
rasilience to risk, help secure the supply of
our products and even provide opportunites
to save monay

We are committed to seeing that all our hotel
operations are run in an environmentally sound
manner and that existing operaticns continue
to reduce their ervironmental impacts VWe
jook to ensure that all employees understand
they can maka a significant contnbution to the
Group being an environmentally fnendly and
green aware company

Reducing our waste

In the US, Europe and Asia our hotels are
converting mcandescent hght bulbs to LED
and compact fluorescent bulbs As well as

Governance

reducing carbon emissions, benefits will
include longer bulb life and rebates from
electncity supplers in the US

In 2014, our US properties have warked

with a national food distributor te reduce the
number of delivenies each week from 6 to 3
for each property This reduction in delivernies
will result In fewer trucks on the road,

thus reducing overall emissions M&C are
partnering with compames such as Spring
Back USA to implement a rattress recychng
program to eliminate used mattresses going
to landfill The 2015 goal will be to recycle
1,000 mattresses

Qur New Zealand hotels are proud

to participate in the Qualmark (New
Zealand Tounsm official quality Assurance
QOrgarusation} Green process where the
hotels undertake mitiatives to mitigate
energy, water and waste usage, contribute
to community conservation activiies

and monitor resources used Five hotels
have achieved the "Envircgold” standard
where they ‘exceed the highest level of
environmental and social responsibilities and
represent strong leadership and advocacy’

We introduced a segregation of waste
prograrmime ta the London hotels staring

at the Milleniraurn Gloucester Hotel and
Millennium Bailey's Hotel in Septernber 2014
The first phase will allow 430 tonnes of waste
to be composted and a further 450 tonnes

to be converted intc alectnerty - with the aim
of zero waste being transferred to landfill

Our focus includes using suppliers with a
demonstrable commitment to sustainable
production methods For example, our main
fresh produce supplier in the UK 1s fully
compliant with the London Low Emission
Zone Scheme and 18 also testing electnc
vehicles that are completely emissions free
Our main UK fish and seafood supplier ams
to reduce fleet emissions by 10% by 2016
and have processes in place to reduce food
miles and energy consumption on their
vehictes through local sourcing methods and
enargy saving Imtiatives

Supporting our community

As owners and operators of hotels, we

can make a tvg difference to the future of
the communities in which our hotels are
based, by providing employment directly and
indirectly, as well as supporting educational
programmes and cther intatives

Wa encourage our hotels to be involved

in thenr local communities and community
projects Qur pecple devote therr tme and
hotels provide facilities and rescurces Dunng
the year, our people across the globe have
been involved n @ wide range of events and
activities for chanties supporting children,
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health and wellbeing, the environment, the
etderly and infirm, and education Below
are some examples of community activities
around the Group in 2014

Our Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbour City
employees continued their commitment

to the Motutapu Restoration Trust, a
conservation organisation of Motutapu
Island, to save endangered kiwis, New
Zealand's iconic fightless bird Volunteers
spent many hours enhancing the sland
sanctuary by restoning natural habnats,
eradicating pests and ensuring the kiwis are
given every chance to breed, self-sustain and
thrive on the 1sland

Millennium Resort Mussanah employees
donated their tme by volunteering to clean
up the Mussanah Beach and marina areas
adjacent to the resort Armed with shovels,
rakes and garbage bags. the group of
volunteers removed 800 kilograms of litter
as well as household items to ensure visitors
and local people can enjoy the unspolled
beaches once agan

Three million baht (£56,000) was raised
by staff at Grand Millennurn Sukhumvit
Bangkok at its Black Mountain Charity
Golf & Gourmet Dinner All proceeds wili
go towards the Bangkok Post Foundation
to support education for underprivileged
students from primary to universiy
levels m 32 provinces across Thailand

The Millennium Alaskan Hotel Anchorage
hostad a winter clothing drive for Covenant
House, a youth homeless shelter Staff
speak weekly st Covenant House's job skills
traiming ciass This year the hoted hired esght
interns from the homeless youth communinty
that have since turned inte fulk-time jobs
Every month the female managers make
dinnar or arange an evening activity for
Passage House, the single mother’s home/
dvision of Covenant House When the
Passage House had to close down due to
necessary repas, the hotel opened its doors
to the staff, young womaen and children

for the length of time they were displaced

Staff at Copthorne Hotel Sheffeld have

again partnerad with Aviva to provide food
and beverage donations for their staff
manning the phones dunng the Save the
Children telethons The hotsl 1s also actively
partnenng with Sheffield United Community
Foundation throughout this season with their
student education days and school education
outreach programme

In 2015, we will examing ways in which
similar intiatives can be rolled out across
the hotel estate
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Our risks

Like any other business, we are subject to a number of nsks and
uncertainties, which are influenced by both internal and external factors,
often outside our contro! In this section, we describe the principat

rnisks that could have a matenal effect on the Group's business activities

Risk factors

We provide information on the nature

of the nsk, actions taken to mitigate nsk
exposure and an indication of whether

the type of nisk 1s ncreasing, reducing

or remains largely unchanged Not all
potential risks are listed below Some

nsks are excluded because the Beard
considers themn not matenal to the Group
as a whole Our processas aim to provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that
the nsks significant to our business have
been identified and addressed Addiignally,
there may be nsks that are not reasonably
foreseeable at the date of this report for
the Group to assess fully therr potental
impact on the business The order in which
nsks are presented below 1S not indicative
of the relative potential impact on the
Group The potential effect of these nsks
may be matenal to the Group's business by
having an impact cn revenues, profits, net
assets and financial and other resources
Such risks also have the potential to impact
on the Group’s reputation Itis often
difficult to assess with accuracy the likely
impact of an event on reputation, as any
damage often may be disproportionate

to the event’s actual financial timpact In
general, the geographical spread of the
Group provides a natural hedge against
many of the principal nsks identified on the
followang pages

Management of risk

QOur nsk management activity 1s directed
by the Executive Management Committes,
led by the Group Chief Executive Officer,
and 1s monitored by the Head of Risk

and Internal Audit Risk registers are
compiled, and penodically updated,

which rmap the nature of the nsks relative
to their likelihood of occurrence and
seventy and associated trends Individual
managerment committee members are
assigned responsibiity for devising nsk
treatment plans to eliminate, minimise or
transfer nsks The Group Chief Executive
Officer and members of the Executive
Managerment Cornmittee undertake
regular reviews of the nsk register and
progress with nsk management plans
The Board has overall respoensibility

for the nsk management process and

for ensunng that the Group's nsks are
managed appropnately and, ether directly
or through the Audit & Risk Committee,
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's
nsk management processes and other
internal controls The Head of Risk and
Intamal Audit provides the Audit 8 Risk
Comrmittee with a quarterly update of nsk
management activity and the nsk register
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Risk and potential impact Mitigating activities Status
Events that Sustamned levels of occupancy and reom rates canbe  The Group has in place contingency and recovery Stable
adversely impact adversely affected by events that reduce domestic or  plans to enable it to respond tc major ncdents
domestic or international travel Such events may include acts of or crses
intemational travel terrornsm, war or perceived increased nsk of armed
conflict, spidermics, natural disasters, increased Cost The wide geographical spread (countnes, cities)
of travel and industnal acton These events may be 15 a natural hedge
localised to a particular country, region or could have
a wider international perspective, especially where a
large airport, for example, ts a major hub for worldwide
travel Reduced demand will impact on revenues and
operational profitabitity
Polrtical and Major events affecting erther economc or politcal Marny of these nsks are beyond the control Increasing
B8CoNomic stability on a global and regional level represent an of the Group and the time-frames for developing - Middle
developments exposure to the Group Economic evertts could include  appropnate nsk management approaches East/Asia
recessionary pressures which would have an impact on  can often be very short
the Group's revenues, operating costs and profitability
Political nsks include changes in the political and/or Management 1s continuglly wigilant to politcal and
regulatory enmvironment in which the Group’s business  economic developments and seeks to identify
activities operate, mcluding restnctions on the emerging nsks at the earliest opportunity The
repatnation of funds or control over the ownership Group implements ownership structures, internal
of assets controls and takes such steps available to it to
mmimise these exposures to the greatest extent
possible.
The wide geographical spread of our hotels
15 8 natural hedge
The hote! industry  The hotel iIndustry operates in an inherenty cyclical The Group has management systems in place Stable
supply and market pace A weakerng of demand, or an mcrease  designed to create fiexability in the operating cost
demand cycle in market room supply, may lead to downward pressure  base so a9 to optimise operating profits in volatile
on room rates which in turn would fead to a negative trading conditions, such as the profit protection
effect on operating performance plans intiated dunng previcus market downturns
Quality of product  We compete based on a number of factors, including At property level, we have regular and scheduled Increasing
quality and consistancy of product Lack of mvestment  preventiva maintenance programs At Group level,
in the furmshings and plant couid have a sigraficant asset enhancements are undertaken periodically
impact on the rovenues that the hotels could sam As Tachnological advancements and system upgrades
supply increases, particularly in our key gateway cities, 818 an ongoINg Procass The Group’s stated
business may be lost to newer hatels, or rates may objective 1S to remvest one-third of ts EBITDA,
have to be cut tc remamn competitive
! i Our hotel rooms are booked through a number of The Group continues to refresh its marketing Increasing
on distnbution channels, one of which 1s OTAs, which strategy, including investment In e-commerce,
online travel tend to have higher commuission rates than more relanonship management, reservabion systems
agents {OTAs) traditronal cistrbution channels, and are taking an and loyalty offenng A new state of the art internet

increasing shars of bookings across the sector

This may impact our proftability In addrbon, over tme,
consumers may develop iyaltes to the OTAs rather
than to our brand

Booling Engine {'IBE") was implemented
in 2014 prowding a strong platform for future
enhancements
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38 Strategic report
Our risks continued

Risk and potential impact Mitigating activities Status
Hurman resources  Execution of the Group’s strategy depends on 1ts The Group has appropriate systems for Stable

abihity to attract, develop and retain emnployees with  recruitment, revvard and compensation and

the appropnate skills, expenence and aptitude performance management Labour relations are

actively managed on a regional and local basis

The development of people and having
good succession planning processes
15 a key part of the Group's HR stategy

The Group has a strong service culture
supported by recogrition systems,
compensation and benefits arrangements,
training and development programmes

Management An elermant of the Group's strategy 1$ to selectively The Group has developed a management Stable
agresments increase the number of management contracts team in the Middle East region that has the
to operate hotels owned by third-parties, primarily necessary skills and resources to pursue this

focusing on the Middle East region In this regard, the element of the Group's strategy A structured
Group faces competition from established global and  process for acquinng new contracts has been
regional brands Successful execution of this strategy implemented and a pnorty 1s to ensure that

will depend on the Group's ability to identfy suitable  the cnticat roles are filled and operational
managerment opportunities, secure contracts on management s integrated into the Group system
suitable contractual terms and ensure that contractual

commitments are met and retained going forward

Joint ventures The Group has entered into a number of joint For these joint ventures, the Group has Stable
and subsidiaries ventures in certain markets and 15 therefore appointed representatives wi are assigned
with minority subject to the nsk of non-performance on the responsibility to manage the relationship with
shareholders part of the partners, especially when the strategic the joint verture partners o order to enhance

objectives of the partners are not fully abgned the ahgnment of business objectives
Treasury risk The Group trades in numerous internaticnal Foreign currency transactions exposure 1s pnmanly Stable

currancias but reports its financial results in sterling managed through funding of purchases from
Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may erther operating Income streams ansing in the same

be accrative or dilutive to the Group’s reported cumrency Interest rate hedges are used to manage
trading resutts and the Group’s net asset value interest rate nsk to the extent that the perceved
Unhedged interest rate exposures pose a nsk to cost 1s considerad to outwergh the benefit from
the Group when interest rates nse, resutting in the flexsbility of vanable rate borowings

increased costs of funding and an impact on overall
financial performance Credit nsk anses from the
nsk of financal loss If a financial counterparty tming of such hedges Investments in short-

fails to meet rts contractual obligations i respect term instruments are with counterparties
of its deposits or short term ivestments approved by the Board taking into account the
counterparty’s cradit rating and a maxmum

limit as to the amount that may be deposited

The Group actively monitors the need and

Tax risk The Group’s businesses operate In NUMerous The Group seeks to minimise tax nsk by Stable
tax junsdictions Changes in tax laws n any ensunng that appropnate accounting systems,
of those junsdictons may have adverse processes and internal controls are in place for
consequences on the Group’s profits accuracy of computation and timely payment

ve a
Similarly the Group's interpretaton and application of Ic;‘frt:;cg:mA;o;&e;?:n of ﬁ,ﬂom:nﬁznu:g sar’t‘aken

vanous tax laws may be chaflenged Tax authontes 5, 4o rmes duning tax audits and investigations,

in many junsdictions are increasing ther focus on and extemal tax advisors are engaged in sach

corporate tax affars in order to maximise tax receipts tax junsdiction where necessary to advise
on such matters, and to give guidance on the
implementation of any changes i tax legisiation
Full review of tax implications 1s cammed out pror
to undertaking any transachons involving new
actities or structural changes, and external tax
planning advice 1s obtained where appropnate
The Board and Audit & Risk Committee receive
regular updates on tax management (1ssues
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Risk and potential impact Mrhigating activities Status
Compliance The Group operates 1n many junsdictions and The Group continues to morutor changes Stable
end Itigation 1s exposed to the nsk of non-complance with n the regulatory environment in which it

increasingly complex statutory and regulatory operates, identfy its comphance chligations

requirements, ncluding competition law, ant-bnbery and implement appropnate compliance and

and corruption and data privacy compliance regimes  training programmes The Group has procasses

in ptace to manage the nisks associated with

In addition, the Group may be at nsk of liugation its various contractual relationships, from

from vanous parties with which it interacts, either execution through to termination, and insured

through direct contractual arrangements or as a and uninsured litgation In addition, the Group

result of providing services to customers In certam has comprehensive policies for ethics and

countnes where the Group operates, particularly business conduct, anti-corruption and bribery,

in emerging markets, local practices and the legal gifts and hosprtality and chantable donations

snvironrment may be such that it 1s sometimes

difficult for the Group to enforce its legal nghts
Safoty, healthand  As & significant property owner and operator In addrion to the Group's corporate social Stable
environment of hotels in multiple junsdictions, the Group 1S responsibility intatives, the Group has

exposed to a wide range of regulatory requirements established and mantains health and safety

and obligations concerning the health and safety and environmaental management systems

of employees, visitors and guests Failure to that are aligned with the requirements of 1SO

implement and maintain sufficient controls regarding 14001 and OHSAS 18001 By working to Bntish

health and safety 1ssues could expose the Group standards, the Group 1s committed to working

to significant sanchions, both civil and cnminal, to the highest standards of health and safety

financial penatties and reputational damage and 1o an internationally accredited system
Intellectual Future development will, in part, be dependent on Substantal iInvestment conbinues to be Increasing
property rights the recognrtion of the Group's brands and perception  made (n protecting the Group's brands from
and brands of the values nherent in those brands Consistent misuse and infnngement, by way of trade

delvery of product quaiity 15 witally mportant to mark registration, enforcement of intellectual

mfluencing consumer preference and creating and property nghts and domamn narne protection

mamntairing value perception Histoncally the Group  Management seeks 10 ensure mamntanance

has mainly operated propertias which it owns The of standards by developing strong working

trend towards managing third-party properbas, relanonships with hotel owners and undertaking

prmanly in the Mddle East regron increases the regular monrtonng of service delivery

nsk that product quality may not be delvered in

accordance with the Group's standards This may

increase the Group’s exposure to iigation, increase

nsks to reputation, reduce revenues and become

an inhibring factor on ongaing development
Property ownership The Group's strategy 1S to be both owner and The Group contnues to develop property speafic  Stable

manager of hotel properties Growth of the Group's
portfolio of owned assets 13 dependent on the
avalabiity of surtable development sites, acquisions
and access to funding A limit on such opportunities
may have a negative impact on future operatonal
proftabulity Property ownership reguires ongoing
investment in the form of preventative maintenance,
refurbishment, significant capitel expenditure and
product development. There 13 also the possible loss
of capstal due to uninsured events and reductions

n asset values as a result of demographc changes
in the markets in which the properties are located

asset management plans which focus on the
capital requiraments of each property in terms

of regular maintenance and product enhancement
The Group has ngorcus management systems

to moniter major capital projects to ensure

they are properly managed and dekivered on

time and within budgeted parameters
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Our risks continued

Risk and potential impact

Mitigating activities Status

Insurance Not all nsks are insured, either because the cover The Group's insurance reguiraments are regularly  Stable
1s not available in the market or the cover I1s not reviewed to ensure that the cover obtained 1s
available on commeroially wiable terms The Group appropnate to its nsk profite and, relative to
15 exposed to the nsk of cover not being continually  the cost of cover available in the market place
availlable Avalabiity may be influenced by factors Insurance covers are arranged with a vanety
outside the Group's control, which could reduce of insurers to ensure that arrangements are
the market’s underwnting capacity, breadth of not overly concentrated on a imited number of
policy coverage or simply make the cost of cover camers Choice of insurance carriers 1s dependent
too expensive The Group could be exposed to on satisfaction of a number of relevant factors
uninsured third-party claims, loss of revenue or including a review of the insurers’ secunty ratings
reduction of fixed asset values which may, in turn,
have an adverse effect on Group proftability, cash
fiows and ability to satisfy banking covenants

Information in order to maintain its competitiveness Investments in the ever changing field of Stable

Technology within the market place the Group will need technology have the inherent nsk of redundancy

systems and to ensure its IT systems deliver the necessary and mpairment As such, the Group invests

infrastructure trading platforms and provide management n systems that are tred and tested so that as

with accurate and timely information much operational resiience as possible, cost

considerations permitting, can be obtained
Further investment 1s made to remove legacy
technology to ensure robust, secure and compliant
technology systems and services are delivered
Cnsis management and disaster recovery plans
are n place for cntical systems Management
reviews [T requirements and nsks to pnontise
implementation of changes and improvements

Data privacy The Group has an oblhigabon to keep secure personal  The Group regularly reviews and refreshes Increasing

& protection mformabon about s customers, employees and ts polictes, procedures and operating

and fraud other stakeholders Non-complance with data controls to ensure continued compliance
privacy and protection regulations, which differ by with global data pnvacy and protecton
junsdiction and are an area of increasing focus by regulations Trairung 1s updated and provided
regulators, could result in fines and/or other damages, to all relevant staff on an ongoing basis
including reputational damage, being incurred,
particularly in the event a data breach should occur
Addionally, a signrficant proportion of the Group’s
operating revenus I1s receved from customers
through credit card transactions and the payment card
industry requires the Group to comply with payment
card industry data secunty standards (PCI-DSS)
as a condition of credit card merchant agreements
Failure 1o comply with these regulatory and
contractual requirements and standards
could result in penalties and withdrawal
of credit card payment facilibes

By order of the Board

Wong Hong Ren

ST Wy )

9 February 2015
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42 Governance
Board of Directors

Kwaek Leng BengM
Chaiman and Chairman of the Nominations Committee
Kwek Leng Beng has been the Chairman of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc since its incorporation He
15 the executive chairman of the Hong Leong Group of companies in Singapors inciuding City Developments
Limrted, chairman and managing directer of Hong Leong Finance Limited and City e-Salutions Lirrnted and
the chairman of Hong Leong Asia Limited

Mr Kwek holds an honorary doctorate in Busingss Adminsstration in Hospitality from Johnison & Wales
Uraversity «n the US and an honorary doctorate from Oxford Brookes University in the UK Hae also serves
as a member of the INSEAD East Asiz Council

Kwek Leng Beng has distinguished himself in property investmant and development hotel ownership
and management financiat services and industnal enterprises He leads a business empire worth over
US$32b i diversified premium assets worldwide and companies traded on six of the word's stock markets
Mr Kwek heads a worldwide staff of over 40,000 across a range of businesses in Asia-Pacific, the Middle
East, Europe and North America

Wong Hong Ren

Group Chief Executive Officer

Wong Hong Ren mitially jomed the Board as a Non-Executive Director on the flotation of the Company

In 1996 He has been an Executve Director since Apnl 2001 and was apported Group Chief Executive
Officer in June 2011 MrWong is charman of Millennum & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Linited and
CDL nvastments New Zealand Limvited, beth of which are listed on New Zealand’s stock exchange He is
also the norn-executive chairman of M&C REIT Management Limited which manages CDL Hospitality Real
Estate Invastment Trust, which 1s part of the Singapore-isted CDL Hospitality Trusts, and First Sponsor
Group Limited Mr Wong serves as praesident and chaimmnan of the board of Grand Plaza Hotef Corparation
which s isted in the Philippings

His Excellency Sheukat Azix™™
independent Non-Executive Director
Shaukat Aziz was appointed to the Board in June 2008 He was elected as Pnma Mimister of Pakistan and
served between 2004 and 2007 having previously held the post of Finance Miruster for five years

Aftar graduating from Gordon College, Rawalpindi in 1967, Mr Azzz gained a MBA degree from the
Instituta of Business Adnunistrabon, University of Karadw An intemship at Cittbank marked the beginnmg
of a 30 year career i giobal inance, encompassing roles globally As axacutive vice president, he held
several serwor management posions m Citbank including head of instritutional barking for Central Eastem
Europe, the Middle East and Afnca and later for Asia Pacrhe, followed by chief axecubve of their global
wealth management business A rencwned public speaker an econernic and geopoltical affairs, Mr Aziz
15 a mamber of saveral boards and acvisory boards of vanous commercial and nor-profit enbties around
the world

Susan Ferr™

Independent Non-Executive Director

Susan Farr was appomnted to the Board in December 2013 She 1s Director, Strategic and Businass
Developmernt and a member of the executrve commuttes of Chime Commurnicatons ple She also sarves
as a non-exacutive director of Bntish AmencanTobacco pl ¢, Dary Crest plc and Accsys Technologies
PLC A specialist in business development and marketing, Ms Famr has previously held a number of sensor
management positons at Vauxhall Motors, the BBC and Thames Telewision  She 15 also a former charr

of The Marksting Society and the Marketing Group of Great Brtam

Nicholas George™
Senior ndependent Director
Micholas George was appontad to the Board in June 2009 A charterad accountant by profass:
Mr George 18 chairman of Nutmeg Savings and Invastments and 18 a director of LGT Capital Partnars {UK)
Limrted He 1 also chairman of euNetworks Limited and 1s a member on the board of GK Goh Holdings
Limited; both companias are histed on the Singapore Stock Exchange In addition, Mr George 1s a director
of Aberdean New Dawn Investment Trust plc, which 1s listed on the London Stock Exchange
Mr Gaorge was a founding pertner of KGR Caprtal, a leading Asian funds of hedge funds, that
was sold to LGT Caprtal Partners n 2008 Hs has over 30 years of expenencs in nvestment banking
and was a managing director of JP Morgan Secuntties (premously Jardine Flerming) in Asia from
1993 to 2002 and a managing director of HSBC Securities 1n Asia from 2002 to 2003
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Committea membership.

A - Audit & Risk Committee
N - Nominatons Committee
R - Remuneration Commities
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Kwek Eik Sheng
Non-Executive Diractor
Kwek Etk Sheng was appointed to the Board in May 2011 He has been with the Hong Leong Group of
companies In Singapore since 2006 before joimng City Developments Limited m 2009, where he 1s
currently Chief Strategy Officer

Mr Kwek holds a Bachelor of Engineenng in Electrical and Electronics Engineanng from Irmpenal College
of Science, Technology and Medicine and a MPhd in Finance from Judge Business School, Cambridge
University

Kwek Leng Peck

Non-Executive Director

Kwek Leng Peck was appointed to the Board in February 1985 pnor to the flotation of the Company on
the London Stock Exchange He holds directorships on most of the listed companies within the Hong
Leong Group of companies in Singapore, including City Developmants Limited Hong Lecng Finance
Lirrited and China Yucha Intemational Limited He also serves as an executive drrectar far Hong Leong
Asia Limited and 15 the non-executive chawrman of Tasek Corporation Berhad

Gervase MacGregor*
independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audiit & Risk Committes
Gervase MacGregor was apponted to the Board in Decernber 2014 He has been a partner m BLO LLP
since 1991, whera he ts currently the head of intemanonal adwisory, nsk and qualty services specialising
\n forensic nvestgahons and axpert witness services Frior to joning BDO LLP Mr MacGragor worked as a
petroleurn gaclogpst n the North Sea, Austrahka and West Afnca He has expenence n tha hospitahity sector
ovar the [ast 25 years, first as an auditor of mtematonal five star hotels and more recently \n investgations
andl chsputes in the sector

Gervasa MacGregor 1s a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 1s 8
graduate of the University of Liverpoai and has a Masters from HEC in Pans

Alexandsr Waugh™
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chaliman of the Remunerstion Committee
Alexandar Waugh was appointad to the Board in June 2009 MrWaugh has commercial expenance m
svent management, the mecdha industry and 1s the founder of 2 succassful pubishing business He was
also foundmg director and charman of Xebras Management Limited, a digral media company

Mr Waugh 18 aiso a world renowned author, fiterary cntic and composar He (s Honorary President
of the Shakaspeare Authorstup Coaliton arid Senior Visiting Fellow at the University of Leicestar

Millennium & Copthome Hotsls ple Annual report and accounts 2014




44 Governance
Directors' Report

Directors’ Report

The Drrectors submit their report for the
financial year ended 31 Decermnber 2014
descnbing how the Company operates,
who the members of the Board are
and what the Board does In addition,
the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 47 to 50 and the Remunseration
Cormmittee Report on pages 55 to 68
form part of this report

Strategic Report

The Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”)
requiras the Company to present a fair
raview of the business and the Group
during the financial year The Strategic
Report can be found on pages 20 to 40

Board of Directors

Biographical details of the Directors
holding office at the yearend, ncluding
identification of the Chairman, Senior
Independent Director, the Chairmen of
the Board's standing commuttees and
other Directors considered by the Board
t be independent, having taken mto
consideration the factors set out in the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) provision B 11, are shown

on pages 42 t0 43

The following changes were made to
the Board of Directors dunng the year

+ |lan Batey resigned as an independent
Non-Executive Diractor on 20 February
2014,

+ Sean Collns resigned as the Senior
Independent Director on 11 December
2014, and

o Gervase MacGregor was appointed
an independent Non-Exacutive
Director on 11 December 2014

Nicholas George became the Senior
Independent Director on 11 December
2014 following Sean Collins” departure

In November 2014, we announced that
Wong Hong Ren would be stepping down
as Group Chief Executive Officer on 28
February 2015 and that Aloysius Lee Tse
Sang wvill replace him

Detalls of the share interests of the
Directors at the year end are shown on
page 68 No changes to these interests
occurred between 31 Decernber 2014
and the date of this report

Re-election of Directors

The Code provides for all directors of
FTSE companies to stand for election or
re-election by shareholders every year
Accordingly, all members of the Board
will retire and seek election or re-election
at this year's annua! general meeting

Results and dividends

The results for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set ocut on pages 76
to 140

An mtenim dividend for the year ended
31 December 2014 of 2 08p per share
was paid on 3 October 2014 The
Directors are recommending a final
dividend of 11 51p per share (2013.
11.51p), wiuch, if approved at the annual
general meeting, wilt be paid on 15 May
2015 to shareholders on the register on
20 March 2015 A special dividend of

9 15p per share was also paid in May
2004

Greenhouse gas emissions

All disclosures concerning the Group’s
greenhouse gas emissions can be found
in the Corporate social responsibility
review on pages 34 to 35

Employees

We operate in over 20 countries and value
highty the nch ethric and cultural diversity
of our people by nurtunng a working
environment that recognises, develops
and values people with different views,
styles and approaches

Qur policy 15 to provide equaiity of
opportunity for all employees without
discnmination and continues to
encourage the employment, training
and advancemant of disabled persons
in accordance with therr abilities and
aptitudes, provided that they can be
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employed in a safe working envircnment
Surtable employment would, if possible,
be found for any employee who
becomes disabled during the course

of employment

The Group operates an HM Revenue

& Customs approved Save as You Earn
Scheme In the UK which ams to align
employees interests within the Group's
performance

Further details on employee benefits are
set out In Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements

Equal opportunities

The Company 1s an equal opportunities
employer It complies with equal
opportunities legislation in the UK Our
objective is to ensure that no employee
or other worker or job applicant receives
less favourable treatment, directly

or indirectly, on the grounds of age,
gender reassignment, mamage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternty,
race (including colour, nationality and
ethnic or national engins), religien or
belief, sex or sexual orientation, or
chsability

Human rights

Our business activities take place
globally and therefore the matters
affecting our employees are camed

out under the junsdiction of a number
of different countnes However, not
withstanding this, we have actad to
ensure that each junsdiction follows the
same high standards of human rights
for employees Qur new human nghts
policy also sets out the expectations and
requirerments we have of our suppliers
You can find our human nghts policy at
www millenniumhotels comy/corporate/
investors htmi

Risk management

Significant short and long-term risks
have been identfied and assessed
and the Board believes 1t has recewved
adeguate information to ensure that
the Company has effective systems in




Overview Strategic report

place for managing the Group's key rsks
The Group's significant nisk factors are
included on pages 36 to 40

Financial isk management

An indication of the Group's financia! nsk
management objectives In respect of
the use of financial nstruments and 1tS
exposures to credit sk, interest rate
risk and foreign currency nisk are set

out in Note 22 to the conschdated
financial statements

Going concemn

Information on the principal nisks and
uncertainties that the Group faces
throughout Its global operations are
described on pages 36 to 40 The financial
position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and debt facilities

are described on pages 24 t0 25 In
addition, Note 22 to the consolidated
financial staterments sets out the Group’s
policies and processes for measuring

and managing nsk from its use of
financial nstrurments in relation to credit
nsk, hquidity nisk and market nsk (both
currency and nterest rate related} Further
details of the Group's cash balances

and borrowings are included in Notes

20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

In assessing whather the Group 1s a
going concern, the Directors follow a
raview process which s consistent with
the principles set out In the guidance
pubiished by the Financial Reporting
Council "Going Concern and Liquidity
Risk Guidance for Directors of UK
Companies 2009" Cash flow ferecasts
for the Group have been prepared for

a penod In excess of twelve months
from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements These
forecasts reflect an assessment of
current market conditions The forecasts
completed on this basis show that the
Group will be able to operate within the
current committed debt faciities and
show continued complance with the
financial covenants applicable to the
Company In addrtion, management has
considered various mitigating actions that

Governance

could be taken in the event that market
condiions are worse than thew current
assessment Such measures include
further reduction In ¢osts and In capital
expenditure

On the basis of the exercise as described
above and the avallable committed debt
faciities, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group and Company
have adequate resources to continue mn
operational existence for the foreseeable
future Accordingly, they continue tc
adopt a going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements of the Group
and the Company

Share capital

The foltowing information 1s given
pursuant to Section 992 of the Act

Details of the changes to the ordinary
issued share capital dunng the year are
shown in Note 29 At the date of this
report, 324,674,823 ordinary shares

of 30p each have baen issued, are fully
paid up and are listed on the London
Stock Exchange

Rights attaching to shares

Rights and obiigations attaching to the
Company's ordinary shares are set out
i the Company’s Articles of Association,
a copy of which can be obtained from
Companies House or from the Group's
weabsite at www millenniumbotels cormy/
corporatefinvestors htmi The Company’s
Artictes of Association may only be
amanded by special resolution of the
shareholders

The voting nghts attached to the
Company’s ordinary shares are not
restncted and there are no restnctions
on the transfer of the Company’s shares
None of the Company’s shares carry
special nghts with regard to contral of
the Company Neither the Company nor
its Directors are aware of any agreements
between shareholders that could result
in restrictions on the transfer of shares
or voting nghts

Financial statements

Further infformation
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All of the Company's employee share
plans contain provisions relating to a
change of contre! On a change of control,
options and awards granted to employees
under the Company’s share plans may
vest and become exercisable, subject

to the satisfaction of any applicable
performance conditions at that tme

Issue of shares and authority to allot
shares

At the Company’s annual general
meeting in May 2014, the Directors
wera authorised to allot shares up to

a nominal amount of £32,461,818 and

to allot such shares up to this nominal
amount in connection with a rights issue
and otherwise 1o allot shares for cash on
a non pre-emptive basis up to a norminal
amount of £4,869,272 In addition,

the Company was authonsed to make
market purchases of up to 109 of the
Company's issued share capital All of
these authorities remamed In effect as at
31 December 2014 and shareholders will
be asked to renew them at the annual
general meeting in 2015

Co-operation agreement with major
shareholder

There is In place a co-operation
agreement between City Developments
Limited {(“CDL"} and the Company which
provides that CDL may appoint up to five
Drractors to the Board As at the date

of thus raport, COL has appointed three
Directors The co-oparation agreement
was updated in 2014 to take account of
the UK Listing Rules amended controling
shareholder provisions The agreement
will continue to be placed before
shareholders annuaily for approval

in raspect of the independence provisions
included within the co-operation
agreement, the Company confums that
dunng the year

» |t has complied with such provisions,
and

* 11 so far that it 1s aware, CDL has
complied with such provisions as well
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Ditectors’ Report continued

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has provided each of its
Direttors with a qualifying third-party
indemnity, as defined in section 234 of
the Act In addition, the Company has
provided qualifying pension scheme
indémnities to the directors of Millennium
& Copthorne Pension Trustee Lirmited
which acts as trustee to the Group’s UK
pension plan and to the directors of its UK
subsidiary compantes These iIndemnities
remain In force as at the date of this
report

The Company purchased and mamtained
Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance
throughout 2014, which has been
renewed for the current year Neither

the Indemnities nor the insurance provide
cover in the event that the Director

1s proved to have acted fraudulently

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting will be held
at the Copthome Tara Hotel London
Kensington, Scarsdale Place, Kensington,
London W8 55R on 7 May 2015 at

10 00am The Charman’s letter and

the Notice of Meeting accompany this
report, together with notes explaining the
business to be transacted at the meeting
will be sent to shareholders

At the meeting, resolutions will be
proposed to declare a final dividend, to
receive the Annual Report and Financial
Staterments, approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report to alect or re-elect
all Directors, and to re-appoint KPMG LLP

Major interests in shares

as auditors In addition, shareholders

will be asked to renew both the general
authority of the Directors to issue shares
and to authorise the Directors to 155ue
shares without applying the statutory
pre-emption rights In this regard, the
Company will continue to adhere to

the prowisions in the Pre-emption Group's
Statement of Principles

Donations

The Company operates a politically
neutral policy with regard to political
donations No donations were made by
the Group for political purposes during
the year {2013 £nil)

See page 35 for details of the Company's
charitabla donations

Essential contracts

The Group has contractual and other
arrangements with numerous third parties
Iin support of its business activibes Whilst
some might cause temporary disruption,
none of the arrangements is individually
considered 1o be essantual to its business

Independent auditors

KPMG LLP has expressed their
willingness to be reappointed as

auditors of the Company Upon the
recommendation of the Audit & Risk
Committes, resolutions to reappoint them
as auditors and to authonse the Directors
to determine their remuneration will be
proposed at the annual general mesting

As at 19 January 2015, the Company had received details of the following material

share interests

Substanbal sharehoiders. %
Crty Developments Limited 6119
Aberdeen Assst Management plc 673
Schroders plc 584
Intemational Value Adwisers, LLC 477
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Statement of the Directors as to
disclosure of information to the auditor

Each Director who held office at the
date of approval of this Directors’ report
confirms that, so far as they are aware,
there 1s no relevant audit nformation

of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and all of the Directors have
taken all the steps that they ocught to have
taken as Directors to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information

By order of the Board

Jonathon Grech
Company Secretary

9 February 2015
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Govemance

Corporate Govemance Report

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to confirm once again that
the Company has fully complied with the
provisions and applied the main principles
of UK Corporate Governance Code, as
revised by the Financial Reporting Council
in 2012 {the “Code") The Board remains
commutted to ensurning that good practice
In corporate governance I1s ohserved
throughout the Group and it therefore
continues to be the responsibility of the
whole Board The Board 1s also commuitted
to maintaining the highest standards of
business integrity and professionalism

n all its activities

We continually review developments in
corporate governance, both in the UK and
internaticnally Following the amendments
to the UKLA Listing Rules the Company
revised its relationship agreement with

its parent company, City Developments
Lirmited, to take account of new
requirgments

| personally encourage the adoption

of emerging practice where it has the
potential to enhance and improve our
business performancs over the long term

Qur Board committees have continued
to perform effectively in what has been
an extremely busy year for them They
have each faced considerable challenges
and, in one way or another, they have

Board and Committee Structure

all been involved In the ¢hange in Board
membership that we have announced
You will find more on the work of the
commuttees in thewr individual reparts

We have engaged with our shareholders
regularly and welcome their feedback on
our approach to governance and what they
expect from us An example of this s the
clarnfication 1ssued by the Remunaration
Committee in April 2014 regarding the
discretional use of Listing Rule 9 4 2(2)
and its use in the recruitmant of a new
Executive Director This came about
through consideration of guidance from
and engagement with investors on their
expectations for executive remuneration

Pages 48 to 50 descnbe our corporate
governance framework in more detall and
how governance 1S applied on a day-to-day
basis | hope you will find thus helpful

in understanding our commitment

to goad governance

Kwek Leng Beng

Chairman

9 February 20156

Board of Directors

Financial statements
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Compliance

Millenrium & Copthome Hotels ple is the
Iisted holding company for the Milenmnium
& Copthorne Hotels group of companies
{the “Group”), its shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchange and it 1s therefore
subject to the Code The Code sets out
standards of good practice 1n relation

to board leadership and effectiveness,
remuneration, accountability and relations
with shareholders, and a copy 15 available
from the Financial Reporting Council

at www frc org uk

The Strategic Report on pages 20 to 40
provides information about the Group's
strategy and outlook, 1ts businesses,

the financial and operating performance
duning the vear, the principal risks and
uncertainties and corporate social
responsibility A description of the Group's
business model s included on page 20
as required by provision C 12 of the Code

The role of the Board and its
committees

The Board provides leadership to the
Group It sets the strategy and oversees
its iImplementation, ensunng that
acceptable risks are taken It ensures that
adequate resources are m place in order
to deliver long-term vaiue to shareholders
and benefits to the wider community

Audit & Risk
Committee

Nominations
Committee

Committee

Remuneration
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The activities of our Audit & Risk,
Nomnations and Remuneration
Cormmittees are set out in the reports
of each commuttee’s chairman which are
deexmed to be part of this report The
Cormpany Secretary acts as secretary

to allstanding committees of the Board

Reserved matters which require
Beard approval inctude

Ethits group-vwade business poiicies and practces

Strategy management and long-term plans

Annuai budgets

Capital expenditure acquisiions signficant
preparty transactons and investments

Major contracts and transacticns

Internal control systems corporate govemance,
compliance and communication

The Global Managerment Commuttee is
responsible to the Board for the Group’s
operational performance in¢cluding
implementng the Group strategy as
determined by the Board, maintaining
adequate internal control systems and
nsk Management processes, monitoring
aperavonal performance against plans
and targets and reporting to the Board
any sigrificant variances, maintamning

an effective management team and
succession planning

A wrnitten statement defining the
respective responsibiities of the Chairman
and Group Chief Executive Officer has
been agreed and approved by the Board

The Board currently comprises the
Charrman, one Executrve Director, five
independent Non-Exacutive Directors and
two other Non-Executive Directors who,
like the Chairman, are appointeas of the
majority shareholder, City Developments
Limited Each Director 15 expectad to
fulfill his duties for the benefit of all
shareholders The Company’'s Articles of
Association contain provisions concarning
the appointment and replacement of
Directors

Board and committee attendance

The Board meets up toc ten times a year
and has a schedule of matters reserved
for its attentton Certain matters which
are reserved for the Board have been
delegated to its standing committees
with specific delegated authornty

The scheduled number of Board and
Committee meetings held duning the year
15 shown below together with attendance
detaills of each Director The Board also
held one ad hoc meeting in the year

+ mentor the Group Chief Executive
Officer as and when required,

* balance the interests of management
and the Board as well as the needs of
shareholders and management,

+ act as a haison between management
and the Board as well as between
the Company and its shareholders,

* manage communications and
information dissemination processes
between the Company and its
shareholders and work closely with the

Audit & Risk Nominations Remuneration
Board Committes Committee Commuttee
Kwek Leng Beng 8(8} - 3(3) -
Wong Hong Ren 818} - - -
Shaukat Aziz 71(8) - 3(3) 5({5)
Sean Colling’ 8(8} 6(6) 3(3) 5(5)
Susan Farr 7 (8} - 3{3) 5(5)
Nicholas George 8i(8} 6(6) - 5 (5)
Kwek Leng Peck 5(8) - 3(3) -
Kwek Etk Sheng 88 - - -
Alexander Waugh 8(8) 6 (6] 3{3) 5 (5}

1 Sesn Colins stepped down from the: Board on
11 Decesnber 2014

2 |an Batey left the Company on 20 February 2014 and did
not gttend any mestngs in 2014

3 There have bean no meetngs since Gervase MacGragor
was apponted 1 the Boerd on 11 Decsmber 2014

The maximum number of scheduled

mesetings held dunng the year that each

Drrector could have attended 15 shown

In brackets

Audit & Risk Committee

During the year, the Board agreed to
rename the Audit Committee as the
Audit & Risk Commuttee 1o highlight
the emphasis that this committee
has in managing the Group’s nsk

The Chairman

The Chairman provides leadership for the
Board on all aspects of its role His key
duties are to

» formulate and set the strategic
direction and organisational structure
of the Group, subject to the Board's
approval,

* set a clear vision for the Group,
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Company's publc relations team
to achieve this objective,

e gstablish the agenda and manage
Board meetings,

e offer advice and tap the cotlective
wisdom and expernence of 8oard
members,

+ take a proactive role in the
appointment of Directors and,
following such appointments, oversee
the development of iIndividual
Directors, and

s develop the top management team,
In particular tha Group Chief Executive
Officer, and establish a succession
plan for the Group Chief Executive
Officer position

There have been no changes to the
Chairman’s other significant commitments
duning the year

The Group Chief Executive Officer

The Group Chief Executive Officer has
ultimate responsibility, reporting to
the Board, for the day-to-day running
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of the Group He 1s responsible for leading
the management and the operational
activities and performance of the Group,
including the effective delivery of the
strategy and the business plan, as agreed
by the Board, while managing the rnisks
His duties are to

* recewe the strategic vision of the
Group from the Board of Directors and
to imgplement such strategic vision,
develop the strategic plan, business
plan and budget and deliver the same
to the satisfaction of the Board,

* |ead and act as an advocate for the
Global Management Cormmittee,

* oversee the execution of the strategic
vision and plans, and assess the
Group's performance in meeting them,

= promote the growth of the Group,

« develop the managerment team and
estabiish a succession plan for key
management appointments,

= act on the feedback of the Chairman:

« ba responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group's
business and affairs and to ensure
that significant issues that anse
are resolved in an efficient and
timely manner, and

* lead the management team to improve
performance in every division

Role of the independent Non-Exacutive
Directors

The majonty of the Board 1s made up of
independant Non-Executiva Directors who
have wide ranging international expenence
at senior levels in areas of finance,
investment banking, fund management,
media, brands and nternational affairs
They bring strong, independent
judgement to the deliberations of the
Board, particularly In the areas of strategy.
finance and governance

Nicholas George, as the Senor
independent Director, 1s avalable to meet
with our institutional shareholders and
sharehc!der representative bodies and to
discuss any matters where 1t would be
inappropnate for discussions to be held

Governance

with either the Chairman or the Group
Chief Executive Officer He s also a
sounding board for the Chairman and 15
an intermediary for other Board members
when necessary

Independent Non-Executive Directors
have rolling contracts and appointrments
are subject to termination by either party
giving one month’s notice Appaintment
and any subsequent re-appointrment

15 subject at all imes to the Articles of
Association of the Company and any
necessary sharehotder ratification

On appointment, each independent
Nor-Executive Director receives a letter
of appomtment setting out the terms of
their appointment, inciuding committee
mermberships, fees to be paid, matters
such as confidentiality of information,
potential conflicts and share dealing
rastnctions

The Board has reviewed the
ndependence of each of the Comparny’s
Non-Executive Directors, taking into
account whether the Non-Executive
Director 1s independant in character and
judgement, and whether there are any
relationships or circumstances that are
tikely to affect, or could appear to affect,
therr judgement

Each independent Non-Exacutive Director
15 asked to confirm any relatonships
based on the prnciples of UK Lisung Rule
138 17 and provision B 1 1 of the UK
Comorate Governance Code Followtng

a review of the responsas, the Board
considers that their diverse business
backgrounds, skills and expenence

enable all of thern to continue to bring
independent judgement to bear on 1ssues
of strategy, performance, resources, key
appointments, standards of conduct and
other matters presented to the Board

and recommends that there 15 no change
to the independent status of the currant
independent Non-Exacutive Directors

Training and information

All Directors have access to the advice
of the Company Secretary, who 1s
responsible for ensunng the Board

Financial statements
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procedures and applicable rules and
regulations are cbserved In addiion,
the Directors are able, if necessary, to
take independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense Theres 1s the
opportunity for Non-Executive Directors
to mest separately with the Chairman

The Chairman, 1n conjunction with the
Company Secretary, 1s also responsible for
ensunng that Directors receve appropriate
trarung at the Company’'s expense where
specific expertise 1s required in the course
of the exercise of their duties All Directors
receive a Board Compendium detailing
matters relating to Board procedures

An induction prograrmme IS established
for any new directors

The Board has established agreed
procedures for managing potential
conflicts of interest These procedures
and any potentat conflicts authorised
i accordance with section 175(4)
Companies Act 2006, as parmitted by
the Company's Articles of Association,
are reviewed by the Board at least
annually The Board 1s satisfied

that the procedures for managing
potental conflicts remain effective

Evaluation process

During the year, an independent extermnally
facilitated Board evatuation was conducted
by Lintstock Limited, with the Directors
completing on-line questionnaires The
evaluation process focused on kay themes
including

* board composition, expertise and
dynamics,

» time management and Board support,

+ the operation of Board cormmittess,

s strategic oversight,

nsk management and mternal controls,
and

succession planning and human
resource management
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Corporate Governance Report continued

A report was produced identifying a number of priorities to improve performance The Board discussed the report at the Board meeting 1n
December 2014 and agreed on the following pnmary actions

Key @reas

Actions

The Board's focus should be mare strategic in nature and

thetr meetings should be less operaticnal

* A structured Board strategy day 1s to be hald in June 2015

* The matters reserved for the Board are currently being reviewed

The Board's revtew of the Company's caprtal expenditure + The mplementation of post capital investment reviews

programme could be improved

The ¢correct planning of the Group Chief Executive Officer * A search for a new Group Chief Exacutive Officer was conducted and

succession and enhancing the senor management structure

are pnoriies

Aloysius Lee Tse Sang was selectad
A talored induction programme for Aloysius Lee Tse Sang 1s in progress
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang has begun the process of reviewing the Group's

management structure in conjunctign with the Board

Continued greater interaction between the Board and serior

management

meet the Board

Increased structured opportunities for management to present to and

Continued opportunities for Board members to visit the Group's operating

regions and local management teams

Lintstock Limited has no ather significant
connaction with the Group

The performance of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors 1s assessed annually by
the Chairman Dunng the year, the Chairman
and independent NonExecutve Directors
maet without the Executive Dwector n
attendance to conduct such assessment.
Evaluation of the Chairman s conducted by
the independent Non-Executive Directors led
by the Senior Independent Director

Intamal control systam

The Board is responsible for the Group's
system of internal control, including the
Group'‘s financial reporting process and

the Group's process for preparation of
consolidated accounts, and for monitonng
its effectiveness In establishing this system,
the Directors have considered the nature

of the Group's business, with regard to

the nsks to which that particular business

18 exposed, the hkalihood of such nsks
occurring, their potental impact and the
costs of protecting agamst them Howaver,
such a system 13 designed tc manage rather
than eliminate the nsks and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal misstatement The Group's
significant nsk factors are included on pages
35t040

The Board confirms that, in accordance with
the Turnbull guidance, there 1s an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluatng end
managing the significant nsks faced by the
Group This process Is reviewed by the Audit
& Risk Committee on behalf of the Board
and has been in place for the year under
review, and up to the date of the approval of
the Annual Report

Pnmary responsibility for the operation of the
system of internal controls 1s delegated to

executive management The effectiveness of
the operation of the intemal control system
1s reviewed by an internal audit function

and, where appropnate, by the Group's
external auditor and extemnal consultants,
who report to management and to the Audrt
& Risk Committee In addrion, responsibility
15 delegated to executive management to
monior the effectiveness of the systems

of controt in managing dentfied nsks as
establrshed by the Board The internal audit
department reviews the effectiveness of key
internal controls as part of its standard work
programme, and individual reports are 1ssued
to appropnate senior management These
reports are summansed and distnbuted, as
appropnate, to the Audit & Risk Committes,
the Group Chief Executive Officer, semor
management and the extemnal auditors They
are subsequently reviewed by the Audit &
Risk Committes, which ensures that, where
necessary, recommendations on appropnate
corrective acton are drawn to the attention
of the full Board

The man faatures of the Group's internal
control framawork are

¢ the Group's strategic direction ts
regularty reviewed by the Board, which
sats businass ohjectives for the Group
Annual plans and performance targets
for each region are set by the executive
management team and reviewed by the
Board on a geographical basis in the hght
of overall objectives, and

* within the financial and overall objectives
for the Group, agreed by the Board, the
day-to-day management 1s delegated to
the Group Chief Executive QOfficer and
executive management The executive
management team carnes out regular
aperational reviews with business
managers 1o ensure approprate pursuit
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of the overall objectives and managemaent
of the primary nsks of the Group

Communication with shareholders

General presentations are made after the
announcement of final and half-yearty
results There 1s a programme of meetings
with institutonal shareholders to review

the Group’s performance and business
model and objectives In addition, the Sentor
Independent Director has meetings with a
range of major sharehoiders during the year
and other Nen-Executive Directors also have
the opportunity to attend such meetings
Regular feedback 18 prowided to the Board of
wviews axpressed by shareholders

The Group’s wabsite provides regular
updates for investors and contains all
announcements made by the Group

At general meetings, there 1s the opportunity
for all shareholders to question the
Chaiman and other Directors {including the
Chairs of the Audit & Risk, Remuneration
and Nominations Commuttess) The
Company prepares separate resolutions
on each substantially separate 1ssue put
to shareholders and does not combine
rasolutions together inappropnatety A
schedule of the proxy votes castis made
availlable on the Company's wabsite at the
conclusion of the proceedings and the
Annual Report and Financial Statements 1s
land before the shareholders at the annual
general meeting Notice of the annual
general meeting and related papers are
sent to sharshalders at least 21 working
days prior to the date of the meeting, and
the Company encourages all sharehciders
tc make positive use of the opportunity to
communicate with the Board
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Audit & Risk Committee Report

Dear Shareholders,

Following my appoimtment as an
independent Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee
in December 2014, | immedately started
familianising myself with the business,
with a specific focus on the nisks facing
the Cormpany and its internal controls

| have read and considered the minutes
and papers from each of the Committee’s
meetings In 2014 prior to my appointment
and discussed relevant matters with our
finance function, our Head of Internal
Audit, our senior statutory auditor and our
brokers | have also visited the Group's
hotals in London and New York and
discussed operational matters with local
general managers

Dunng 2015, | intend to meet with key
stakeholders and will be working closely
with my fellow Committee members, the
Head of Internal Audit and our external
auditors, KPMG My aim 1s that we have a
robust review body that assists the Board
in rmonitoring the integnty of the Group’s
financial reporting and ensunng that
sound systems of internal control and nsk
management are in place

As a chartered accountant in public
practice § am fully aware of the debate
over competition and reform in the market
for audit services This has been led by
the competiion authonties in the UK and
the European Urion This continues wath
the recent EU Audit Directive and the
consultation papers 1ssued by DBIS and
the FRC

A key part of this debate 15 the length of
time for which audrt firms should provide
audit services and the requirements for
companies penodically to re-tender the
provision of those services

The Financial Reporting Council’s revisions
to the UK Corporate Governance Code
and its Guidance for Audit Committees
were both 1ssued in this context and they
provide for the tendering for the external
audit contract at least every 10 yoars

The Committee has discussed these
developments and we have noted
the following relevant to our own
circumstances

* KPMG have been the Company's
auditors since listing on the London
Stock Exchange 1n 1996,

there has been no tender since that
date,

under the current transitional rules
the latest year in which KPMG would
be able to undertake an audit of the
Company 1s to 31 December 2022,

* Steve Masters, the senior statutory
auditor will rotate out of that role,
having completed his five year cycle
following the signing in early 2016 of
the 2015 full year results,

there are no contractual obligations
that would restnct the selection of a
cifferent auditor or the re-tendering
process taking place in the current
year should the Commuttee consider,
having regard amongst other things
to KPMG's continued effectiveness,
and that it would be in the Company’s
interast to do so,

s the Commuttee needs to take the lead
n any tender process and as chair of
the Commuttee, | require suffictent
time to formulate the programme for
any tender, and

+ other changes 1n seniof management
at the Company including the Group
Chef Executive Officer and senior
finance personnel would make a tender
distracting and challenging this year

Taking atl of the above into account

the Committee does not believe an
affective tender process can be run and
completed in the current year, and it 1S
the Commmuttea’s tntention 10 not put

the external audit contract out to tender
before 2016 Iritial invesugations into the
procass will begin this Spnng We will
continue, howeavar, with the annuat review
of the performance of the external auditor
and act accordingly

Finally, | would like to record my thanks to
Sean Colins for his assistance durng the
handover n roles and his work leading the
Committee throughout the majonty of the
year

Gervase MacGregor
Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee

9 February 2015
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Our objectives

The key objective of the Commutiee
throughout the year has remained the
provision of effective governance over the
appropriateness of the Group's financial
reporting including the adequacy of related
disclosures, the performance of both the
internal audst function and the external
audrtor, and the oversight of the Group's
systerns of internal control, business risks
and reiated compliance activities

Our members

The Board believes that amengst the
rmembers of the Committee they have
suitable broad commerctal knowledge and
significant business expenence The Board
has determined that Gervase MacGregor
has recent and relevant financial
experience as required by the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Group Chief Executive Officer, senior
finance managers, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit, although not
members of the Comrmuttee, also attend
the meetings, as does the semor statutory
auditor from our external auditor, who is
not present when we discuss the auditor's
performance and/or remuneration

As part of this process of working with
the Board and to maximise effectiveness,
mestings of the Committee generally
take place just pnor to a Company

Board meeting The Charrman of the
Commuttee reports to the Board as part of
a separate agenda item, on the activity of
the Committee and matters of particular
relevance to the Board in the conduct of
their work

Our role

The Committee’s tarms of raference are
availlable from the Group's website at
www millenniumhotels com/corporate/
mvestors htmil
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Audit & Risk Committee Report continued

Main activities of the Committee
during the year

During the year, the Commuttee has
performed the following

* members of the Committee have
visited operations in Singapore,
the US and the UK to improve their
understanding of the business and
assess the management of nsks,

* reviewed [T strategy, with particular
focus on technology-led improvements,

* monitored tax policy, impairment poficy,
gaoing concern reports, together with the
intenm results and fullyear annual report
and accounts, and

* monitored reiated party charges
between the Group and 1ts majority
shareholder

Financial reporting

The Committee monitors the integrity,
pnor to submission to the Board, of
penodic financal statements, annual
accounts, reports to shareholders and any
other public announcement concerming
the Group's financial position, corporate
governance statements and statements
on the Group’s system of internal controis
and reports its views to the Board to
assist in its approvai of the results
announcements and the

annual report

Significant financial statement
reporting issues

Foliowing discussion with both
managerment and KPMG LLP the
Committee deterrmuned that the key
significant financial reporting 1ssues are
related to the valuation of hotel assets,
classification and valuation of investment
propartes and IFRS 10 consolidation
accounting

Impairment of hotel assets

Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements states that the camrying
amount of assets as at 31 December
201415 £2,753m The Group continues
to engage external valuation experts to
assist with the valuation exercise and

imparrment review Financial performance
and sensitivity of the valuation models

1o the other key Inputs means that the
valuation rermains inherently subjective
The property, plant and eguipment assets
are carnied at historical cost, which
mitigates the nisk of impairment of these
assets

During the year, the Committee examined
management’s recommendations in
respect of the valuation of the Group’'s
hotel and property portfolio and agreed
that

» the selaction of assets to be tested
was done appropriately, taking mnto
account indicators of impairment nsk
and materiality,

* there was the appropnate use of third
party valuation expertise,

+ sufficient robust challenge was given
to management by the external
auditors,

« matenal judgemental assumptions
that were used in the valuations were
within reasonable parameters, and

* conclusions have been appropriately
drawn

Valuation & classification of investment
properties

In general, the carrying amount of
investment properties (s the fair value
of the properties as determined by

a registered independent appraiser

Fair values were determined having
regard to recent market transactions for
similar properties in the same location
as the Group's iInvestment properties
Where a fatr value cannot be reasonably
determined, the property i1s held at cost

Classification of an asset as investment
property requires judgement, and 1S
determined by reference to future
intentions and the Group's business
rmodel

The total carrying amount of Investment
properties as at 31 December 2014

is £479m as shown in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial stataments
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Dunng the year, the Cormmittee examined
management’s recommendations in
respect to the classification and valuation
of investment properties and agreed that

¢ there was appropriate classification of
asset as investment propertes,

* there was approprate use of third
party valuation expertise,

» sufficient robust challenge was given
to management by the external
auditors,

* matenal judgemental assumptions
that were used Iin the valuations were
within reasonable parameters, and

* conclusions have been appropriately
drawn

IFRS 10 consolidation accounting

As described in Note 2 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the
Group adopted IFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Staterments from 1 January
2014 As a result of the adoption of this
new accounting standard, the Group
consohdated the results of COLHT which
was previously equity accounted for as an
associate

The Committee assessed the relationship
between the Group and CDLHT to
determine whethes, under IFRS 10, the
Group should consolidate COLHT even
though 1t owns less than 50% of its

units That assessment Is subjective and
mvolves a review of both the financial and
business relationships

The Committee examined management’s
recommendations in respect to the
adoption of IFRS 10 and agreed that

* there was sufficient yustification to
support the existence of control by the
Group over CDLHT,

* there was agreement from the extemal
auditor with the treatment,

* previous year's balances were
reascnably restated, and

* conclusions have been appropnately
drawn
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Intemal controls and risks

The Commuttee is responsible

for reviewing, and conducting an

annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal control and nisk
management procedures

Accepting that nsk 15 an inherent part of
doing bustness, the Commuttes reviewed
the Group’s risk management strategy

to ensure that any required reredial
action on any identified weaknesses 1s
taken This includes a regular review of the
nsk registar which contains the significant
risks faced by the Group and identifies
thewr potentiat impact and likelihocd

Where specific actions are agreed

to mitigate risks to & level deemned
acceptable, these are agreed with specific
timeframes for delivery and are monitored
closely until fully implemented

The system of intemal contrals audited
by Intemal Audit (and commented on by
the externzl aud:tor from tme to trne)
encompasses all controls including those
refating to financial reporting processes,
operational and compliance controls

and those relating to nsk managerment
processes

The Committee ensures that
amangements are in place for amployees
to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible fraud nsk or wrong-doing in
financial raporting or other matters
Where a whistieblowing incident occurs,
this 1s investigated by Internal Audit on a
confidential basis and 1n a proporticnate
manner Appropriate actions are
recormmended and undertaken which
are reported to the Committea which
then reviews the recommendations and
focuses on possible trends and potential
systematic weaknesses

intamal audit

The Committae monitors and reviews

the effectivaness of the internal audit
function, agrees its annual work plan

and reviews whether the function has

the proper resources to enable 1t 1o
satisfactorly completa such work plans It
reviews status reports from Internal Audit

Govamance

and considers managernent's response
to any major finding, prowviding support,
if necessary, for any follow-up action
required and ensures that the function
obtains free and unrestricted access to
all Group activities, records, property
and personnel necessary to fulfil its
agreed objectves

The Head of Internal Audit produces a nsk
based Global Internal Audit work plan of
hotel audits and function by region and
reports on regional and global patterns
that affect the Group as well as specific
1ssues of interest in relation 1o systems
and controls

Extemal audit

Duning the year, KPMG Audit Plc
conducted an orderly wind down of its
businass and ceased to be the Company’s
auditor KPMG LLP was appointed at the
annual general meeting in 2014

Prior to making a recommendation

on the appointment of KPMG LLP for
shareholders to constder at the annual
general meeting the Committee reviewed
both therr terms of appointment and fees

The Commuttee reviewed and agreed with
the external auditor, KPMG LLP its annual
strategy and plan for the audit pnor to the
commencement of the work

The plan includes

* a view of the current and future nsks
of the business,

« the overall strategy and scoping,

* the approach to the sigmficant nsks
and areas of focus to be addressed in
the audit,

» the approach to materiality,

* an explanation of developments in the
regulatory landscape, and

datails of matters that need to be
discussed with the Committee

The auditors also reported to us the
misstaternents that they had found in
the course of the audit and we have
confirmed that the financial statements
did not contain any unadjusted materal
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misstatemernts

Meetings are also held with the external
auditor without the presence of any
member of executive management

External audit effectiveness

The Commuttee places great importance
on ensuring there are high standards of

quality and effectivenass in the external

audrit process

The key measures which the Comrmuttee
focused on are

* the level of challenge to management,
particularly on matters of significant
judgement,

* appropriate scoping, methodology
and cost effectiveness of KPMG LLP’'s
audit process, and

= the approprate quahty and expenence
of senor audit team members in the
Group's operating regions

The Committee measures KPMG LLP's
audit quality and effectiveness throughout
the year, by means of, but not limrted to

s raview of strategy and planning for the
audit cycie, to ensure relevance to the
Group's evolving business,

* review of the quality, relevance and
addimonal value grven to the Group by
the audit findings,

+ monitor the independence of the audit
and comphance with the Group’s non-
audit fee policies,

feedback from management on the
auditors' performance, and

¢ review of the Financial Reporting
Council's Audit Quaiity Review (AQR)
reports for KPMG LLP and other audit
firms

Auditor appointment

Given the auditor's continuing objectivity
and independence, ongoing performance
and the cost effectivensss of the

service provided, the Committee has
recommended 1o the Board that the
auditor be reappointed for 2015
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Safeguards on non-audit services

The use of KPMG LLP for non-audit
services 1s governed by a Group policy,
which sets out clear parametars as to
what KPMG LLP are permitted to do, and
what lsvel of fees they are permitted to
receive

All non-audit fees from KPMG LLP require
authorrty of the Finance department, and
all fees over a certain specified threshold
require chrect authorisation by the
Committee

The Committee requires clear efficiencies
and vaiue added benefits to the Group

to exist for the auditor to be awarded

any non-audit services The Committee
receves a schedule of both non-audit
fees incurred and forecast non-audit fees
yet to be incurred, at every meeting, so
that it can closely monitor the fees and
type of work being performed

in addition to this, confirmation of
independence is sought at every
reporting date from KPMG LLP

The majonty of non-audit work
undertaken by KPMG LLP during the

year was for tax and acquisition related
services where the Committee concluded
that it 1s more cost effective to uthise their
services

The Committee 1s satisfied that there
were safeguards in place to protect the
ohjectivity and independence of the
auditor

A copy of the policy on the provision

of nonaudit services by the auditor is
avallable from the Group's website at
www millenniumhotels comfcorporate html

Detalls of the fees for non-audit services
are provided in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Cormmuttes has noted recent
developments in the regulatory
restrictions on non-audit services
provided by the Group's external auditor
The Committee will continue to monitor
this area closely
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Govemance and compliance

The Committee carried out its annual
review of the Group’s ethics and
whistleblowing policies and reviewed

the process for, and the effectiveness

of, our whistleblowing procedures It

was decided that Internal Audit should
continue to monitor and action emails and
calls which will be reviewed on a regular
basis

The Committee’s performance is
reviewed annually through a facilitated
evaluation conducted by Lintstock
Limited, the results of which showed that
the Committee was effective in terms

of expertise and use of time A number
of areas of improvernent were identified
including iImproved access to regional
management Ve have agreed the
following prionties for 2015

* more engagement with non-financtal
senior management, both at the
corporate and regtonal levels,

* 1ncreased focus on IT nsk and
technological improvement, and

* assess financial returns for newly-
refurbished hotels
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Remuneration Committee Report

Dear Shareholders,

2014 has remained an extramely busy year for the Remuneration Commuittee {the "Committee”) as we finalised and gained
shareholder approval for our Directors’ Remuneration Policy, and approved the remuneration arrangerments for our outgoing and
incoming Group Chief Executive Officers

The Remuneration Policy was approved at our annual general meeting i May with an extremely positive 39% of shareholder votes
cast in favour In the lead up to the meeting and followang feedback from various proxy advisor agencies, the Commuttee took the
opportunity to clarify that the prowision of discretion under Listing Rule 9 4 2(2) {referred to on page 60 under the Policy Table} would
be used only to compensate a newly-appointed Executive Director for long-term Incentive scheme awards forfeited on leaving a
previous emnployer Any such buyout awards will have a farr value no greater than the awards forfeited The Policy that exists for current
Executive Directors, as set out in the Policy Table, would then apply to the balance of the individual’s remuneration package Other
than this point of clanfication, the Remuneration Policy remains unchanged and therefore, in line with best practice, will not be put to
shareholders for re-approval at the 2015 annual general mesting

After taking into account the performance of the Company and considerng MrWong's persona! achievements, the Committee has
awarded a bonus of £609,364 (2013 £649,838) which represents 62% of the maximum oppoertunity

Turming to our Long-Term Incentive Plan, the performance measures of total shareholder raturn and earnings per share for the three-
yaar penod ended on 31 December 2014 did not meet the minimum thresholds required and, therefore, the awards granted in 2012
will lapse

In addition to its annuat agenda, the Commuttee has also been closely involved In determining the remuneration arrangements
relating to the change of Group Chief Executive Officer The outgoing Group Chief Executive Officer, Wong Hong Ren, has mads

an outstanding contnbution to the Group over the past fourteen years, especaily the last three {eading the Company We took this
Into account when determining the amangements in connection with hus leaving his post. These arrangements, which are within the
epproved Remuneration Policy and the discrebons available to the Comrmitiee, are disclosed fully on pages 63 and 64 of this Report
and on the Company’s website at www millenniumhotels com/corporate/investors htmil

In the competitive recruitrment environment that exists, the Committee has been acutely aware of balancing the need to create
an attractive package for the new Group Chief Executive Officer that would incentivise him and remain wathin the Company’s
Remuneration Policy

| am very pleased that Aloysius Les Tse Sang will be leading the Compary through its next chapter and, on joning, his salary wiil
be £500,000 per annum, with other elements of the package aligned to our existing Remuneration Policy This package has been
designed to reflect his expeniance and to ensure (through the vanable elements of remuneration) that he will be appropnately
incentivised and rewarded for bnnging success to the Company

Sean Collins stepped down from the Board during December 2014 and left the Commitiee and | would like to record my thanks for
the dedication and wise counsel that he brought to our meetings

| would also ke to take the opportunity to reiterate that the Commuttes’s continued commitment to focus on pay for performance and
rewarding the leadership team in a way which aligns them with the interests of our shareholders, while staying true to the Company's
values The Drrectors’ Remuneration Report, consisting of this Annual Statement, the Drectors’ Remuneration Policy and the Annual
Report on Remuneration, 18 comphant with the reporting requirements, and the Committee welcomes any feedback from our
shareholders and trust that you will support the policies and practices outtined 1n thrs report

Alaxander Waugh A’\“‘ ’JJ ‘ \’J u/z/k.

Chairrman of the Remunegration Committee

Yours faithfully

9 February 2015
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Membership

Algxandsr Waugh chairs the Remuneration Committee which comprises ali of the current ndependent Non-Executive Directors
except Gervase MacGregor All Committee members served throughout the full year and both lan Batey and Sean Colling served for
the penod they were Directors of the Company The Rermuneration Committee held five scheduled meetings in 2014 and a number of
ad hoc mestings as required Attendance of the scheduled meetings 1s shown on page 48 The Chairman and Group Chief Executive
Officer are invited to attend meetings as appropriate but they are excluded when their own performance and remuneration are being

discussed

No member of the Commuttee has any personal financial interest, other than as a shareholder of the Company, In the matters to be
decided by the Committee or involvernent in the day-to-day management of the business of the Group

Our role

The Remuneration Committee has delegated authonty from the Board to determmine the total remuneration arrangements of the
Chairman, Executive Directors and, in consultation with the Group Chief Executive Officer, executive management It also oversees
the Group's share-based incentive arrangerments

In practice, the Committee agrees

+ the policy for cash remuneration, executive share plans, service contracts and termination arrangements,

« the framework for the remuneration of the Chairman, the Executive Directers and, tin consultation with the Group Chief
Executive Officer, executive management,

the actual reward packages of Executive Directors, executive management and any new senior hires,

« actual termination arrangements for any Executive Directors,

* mcommendatons to the Board concerning any new executive share plans or changes to extsting schemes which require
sharehoiders’ approval; and

* the basis on which awards are granted to executives under the LTIP

The Remuneration Committes’s terms of reference are available at www millenmiumhotels com/corporatefinvestors htmil
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Directors’ remuneration policy
Remuneration Policy

The Company’s Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 1 May 2014 and remains
unchanged In Aprii 2014, following feedback from various proxy advisor agencies, the Remuneration Committee clanified ts discretion
touse 94 2{2) of the UK Listing Rules 1ssued by the UKLA (“Listing Rule 9 4 2(2)") and this Is now disclosed within the Policy

The Remuneration Policy sot out below Is as disclosed in the 2013 Remuneration Report save for the pay scenario chart on page 61
which has been updated for Aloysius Lee Tse Sang's package as Group Chief Executive Officer and the clarfication mentioned above
on the use of Listing Rule 9 4 2(2}

Policy for Executive Directors

Presently there I1s only one Executive Director, the Group Chief Executive Officer, but a similar policy would be applied to any other
Executive Directors appointed to the Board

Base salary

Purpose and Iink to strategy ~ Salanes are a key compenent of the reward package in attracting, motvatng and retaining executives

Crperation Salanes in the Group are based on tha value of the mdmdual the leve! of responsibility expenence and market
condipons

Salanes ars reviewsd at least annually but are not necessanly increased In rewewing salanes account s taken of market
conditions, significant changes in role pay and conditons alsewhere in the Group nflaton and budgets

Maximum The meparnum salary payable 15 the amount agreed by the Remuneranon Commttse for the penod The Comrmittas
doesnotp'asmbean'axwmmsalarvforawen'plwaemmemasnmshestoremnmoflaxtbulnytoset levals
mwmmmmmmTMemdmmesmManeakmc
expectahons of employees and weaken the Company s negotating posibon

Purpose and fink to strategy Exacutive Drectors are ebgbie to partcpate n an annual bonus scheme to
e Incentivise executives ta dnve Group strategy and performance gver the short term, and

» ensure that a signihcant proporbon of the total reward of executives’ packages 13 Iinked to parformance dunng
the year

Operaton The performance penod for anmual bonuses comasponds with the financial vesr Bonus measures, wesghtings and
wmwammwmmmdmewmmmmmmmw
calcutated bonus downwards, but not upwards, f 1t s falt to have becorne rmesalgned wath the Group's performmance

Payment of the annual bonus 15 contingent on the employee stll beng emploved by the Group at the tme of vesting and
not hawng served notice

Annuat bomss 1s not pensionable The Com mitee may defer and pay a proporton up to 100% of the annual bonus in
sharas which must be heid for three years before vesting No performance conditons apply to such dafered bonus
sharos other than a requrement for continuous empkayrment but such deferred bonus share awards would be elgible for
a drwdend equivalent
|nﬂ'\9m1tthutmnualbmusosarafmndmhawbeenpadmmoba&sofwmmaimsmmofﬁnmcd
perfarmance, the nues of the scheme prowde for appropnate means of radress, including the acgustment of future
bonuses and any unvestad long-tem incentve awards'

Maarmum The lavel of bonus opportunty for Executve Drectors o
Group Cruet Other Executive Directors
Exacutrve Officor Bonus a3 a % of base salary

Thrashoid 0% 0%
Target 75% 50%
Maarmm 150% 100%
The maximum vaiue of a deferred bonus share award 1s the watus of the cash bonus that would otherwise have been
pad

Parformance™ TO%Gfbmuapotemalmllbalmkadtoﬁnanuﬂperblmm.mmﬂ*reremamderhnlmdmpormloqmaand

\ndivdual contnbution However, the Commyttee has discrebon to vary those percentages by plus or minus 10% for any
performance penod 1o reflect partcular corporate objectves Financial measures may nclude, but are not Lmted to,
operatng profit, profit befors tax, revenue and revenue per available room

1 The Remunerabon Committes wish to danty that a clawback of paid bonuses has and will continue to exist within its Rernuneraton Fohcy
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Long-Term Incentive Plan

Purposs and ink 1o strategy

Cperation

Maximum

Performance™

Tha Company adopted a Long-Term Incentive Plan {"LTIP '} in 2006 winch forms the long-term vanable alement of
executive remuneration The Plan allows for the award of performance shares, nil cost shara options and defarred bonus
shares

Performance share awards am to drive and reward sustained performance over the long term align the interrgsts of
axecutivas and sharebolders and support retention

Performance share awards are made annually and vest on the third anruversary of the date of grant subject to the
achwevement of performance conditions over three yaars and continuad employment with the Group, subject to the rules
of the plan Thers Is no re-testing The Plan provides for dnadends or their equivalent to be pad

In the event that performance shares are found to have vested on the basis of any matenal misstatement of financial
performance, the rules of the schemas provide for appropnate means of redress including the adjustment of future
bonuses and any unvested long-term incentive awards

The maxarmum value of an award of performance shares and il cost share options 15 150% of basae salary, though 200%
may be awarded in exceptonal crcumstances included but not rruted to the recrutment of new Executive Diractors
The level of awards 15 ctherwise determined by the Commuttea at the tme of grant

Thae performance measures are Earmings per Shara {“EPS"), Relative Total Shareholder Retum ("TSR ™} and Net Asset
Valua {plus diadends) {"NAV")

The weightings applving t each performance measure may vary yearon-year reflecting strategic pnones VWhilst a
nurmnber of perfonmance measures are applied weighting for any one measure 1s expected to range between 10% and
60% Under each measure entry leve! parformance will result in 25% of maximum vastng for that element, nsingona
straight-ine basis to full vestng

Purposa and Iink 1o strategy

The provision of retrerment beneafits 15 an importam element of executive reward packages m attracting and retanng
exgcutves and promoting long-term retrement planning

A detined cash contribabon eray be made mto exther a Company sponsored pension plan or a pnvate pension plan or as
cash m lieu of pension

20% of base salary and by exxeption up to 30% of base ssiary

Maxmurn

Help recrurt snd ratain through the provision of cost effectve benefits consistant with rmarket practice

Benefits ere determned to ensure they are compettive with market practice by location and the responsibirtes of the
indivdual These may compnsa (although are not limitad to) a motor vetucle and driver or an appropnats allwance,
msurances for life, personal acadent, disabdity and famdy medical cover

Addihonal benefits such a3 relocation, removal, tax equaiisation, house purchasa/rental and dhildren’s educaton may
need 1o be offered to attract the nght candidate i the evant that an Exacutive Dractor 1s appantad on expatnate or
ntamatonal assignment tenms

There 13 no maarum The walue of ‘other benefits’ 3 consistent with market practcs and 13 kept undar review by the
Comyvuttee but would not be expectad to excaed more than the equrvalant of a month's satary, other than in excephonal
areumstances (such as a relocation requirement}

Notes
1 The Commuties

mnmmwﬁmmn&msmmmmmmwmsmwmmsmnumdum

winch are ciosely shigned with the Group s short-term strategec p Targets for fi

2 The Commuttoe datenmines the level of LTIP awards and the sssocsted performance messures tangats and wesghtings annuzlly The performancs measures of EPS and retatrve TSR ansure

with the Groups strategac pnonties by capunng a balance sheet measure The targats for the financal meesures are set by reference to the Group's budgst and strategc pians &s wail as talong
accourtt of broker forecasts for both the Group and other sector peers Tha TSR 1arget messures comparztve performance aganst a reievant benchmeark winch for 2015 will be spit aqually
between the FTSEZ50 market ndex and an index of peer companes

3 The Commttos ratains discrenon to use Listng Rule 34 2(2) wathn the rermet confirmed on pags 80, to sl awards in eap } Carcur
4 The Commsttee retans discrebon to makas non-sgrificant changes to the Rermunerabon policy without reverting to sharshoiders.

Miflennium & Copthome Hotels ple Annual report and accounts 2014




Overview Strategic report Govemance Financial statements Further information

59

Shareholding requirements

Within five years of being appointed to the Board, Executive Directors are required to build up, and retain, ordinary shares in the
Cornpany equivalent in value to 100% of their base annual salary Provided that Executive Directors hold and mamntain the appropnate
level of shares, they may sell shares, subject 1o the normal requirement far directors’ dealings under the Listing Rules and Disclosure
and Transparency Rules

Share Interasts which do not count against the shareholding guidelines inctude

» unvested performance share awards,

+ SAYE options,

* ynvested deferred bonus shares, and

* any notional accrued dividend eguivalent shares

Directors to whom this requirement applies are prohibited from engaging n any hedging transactions with respect to Millenmum &
Copthorne Hetels pic shares including trading in any derivative security

There are no formal shareholding guidelines for the Chairman, the Non-Executive Directors and the senior management, however,
they are encouraged to hold shares in the Company 1n order to align therr interests with those of shareholders

The remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors is set out below

Fees

Basic fee Feespa:dmNon-ExawﬁvaDlrecmtsatedetermmedb/meBoardasawholetakmgmmacoountmeumcormnmemand
responsixhtes Thepdx.yssmsetfeesatorawndﬂ'\emedanforoompm&esofamhrsuemdcomplexnyThmrpurpose:sm
attract and retain Non-Executive Drectors.

Additonal fees Nm-ExectmvaDlrecmtsarapadanad&bonaifesforbemgamemberofaBoardcormw:aemdfordwnngaBoardoomml:oe

Other matters The independent Nen-Exacutive Directors each have roling letters of appointrent which may be terminated by erther party on one
month's notuce
All foas sre paid in cash
Non-Exscutive Directors are not entitied to bonuses, benefits or pension scheme contnbubons or to partcipats in any share schame
operated by the Company
In additon to ary remuneration payable a Non-Exacutive Director may be paid raasonabie traveling, hoted and othar expenses
property incurred in discharging the Director’s dutes
Feas cease /mmadiately in the event the Non-Executrve Dirsctor ceases to be a Diractor

Ramuneration on recruitment

Reward packages for new Executive Directors will be consistent with the pohicy sat out on pages 57 and 58, which descnbes each
component of remuneration for the Executive Directors of the Company Fixed remuneration elements would be paid onty from

the date of employment and any bonus will be pro-rated to reflect the proportion of amployment over the ygar The maximum level

of vanable rernuneration s as stated in the policy table above If, conseguent to jaining the Group, a new director forferts elements

of variable reward linked to their previous empioyment, the Committee reserves the nght to make compensatory awards up to the
maximum amount of the individual's loss Any such awards would be made taking mto account the performance conditions and tume
honzon of the forfeited awards In the event that an internal candidate 1S appointad as an Executive Cirector, any contractual obhgation
in respect of a previous role will be honoured even if it is inconsistent with this pohicy at the ime the obligation 1s fulfilled
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As disclosed on the Company's website in Aprl 2014, the Committee confirms that Listing Rule 9 4 2(2) will only be used to
cormpensate an Executive Director for long-term incentive scheme awards forfeited on leaving a previous employer Such buyout
awards will have a fair value no greater than the awards forfeited The arrangements that exists for current Executive Directors, as set
oyt In the Policy Table, would then apply 1o the balance of the individual’s remuneration package

Directors service agreaments and letters of appointment

To reflect current practice, 1t 1s the Company’s policy for Executive Directors to have service contracts that provide for a notice pertod
for termination of up to 12 months

The dates on which Directors’ mitial service agreements/letters of appointmeant commenced and the current expiry dates are as
follows

Name Date of contract Notce penods/unexpried term

Chaiman

Kwek Leng Beng - Nominee of majonty shareholder

Executive Director

Wong Hong Ren 14 February 2012* 12 months written notice to be given by the Company at any tme and six

months by the axecutive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Shaukat Aziz 16 June 2009

Susan Farr 12 Decernber 2013

Nicholas George 16 June 2009 Rollng latters of appointment terminable by erther party on one months notice
Gervase MacGragor 11 December 2074

Alexander Waugh 16 June 2009

Non-Exscutive Directors

Kwek Eik Sheng -

Kwek Lang Peck - ]» Nominees of majonty shareholder

* Effective a3 at 27 June 2011

Service contracts are kept at the Group’s corporate headquaters at Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc, Scarsdale Place, Kensington,
London W8 5SR

There exists no other ocbligation that might give rise to or impact on remuneration payments or payment for loss of office which 1s not
disclosed elsewhere in this report

Termination payments

The Company's normal policy 1s to hmit payments to Executive Directors on termination to entitliement under service agreements
and the rules of any incentive and pension plan Thers 1s no automatic entitlement to bonus as part of the termination arrangements
and the value of any terminating arrangement will be at the discretion of the Committee, having regard to all relevant factors This
discretion allows the Committes to determine good leaver status, the consequences of which are set out in the table below
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The Rules of the incentive schemes provide that
Good” leavars Other leavers Changs of Control Discretion
Performance Shares Performance condriions Award lapses Performance condiions The Committee has discretion to disapply
applied taking into account the applied taking into account the  the pro rata vasting or decide that the
fareshortened performance forashortanad performance award will vest on the Normal Vesting Date
penod penod
A time pro rata reduction s then A time pro rata reduchion 15
appled than applied
Annual Bonus Performance canditions No bonus Performance conditions The Committee has discretion to disapply
apphed taking into account the  payable applied taking nto account the  pro rata reduction and maintain original
foreshortened performance foreshortaned parformance sum
penod period
Atime pro rata reduction 1s then A time pro rata reduction 1s
appled then apphed
Deferved Bonus shares  Vest in full Award lapses Vast in full To determine the number of shares
which vest up to the value of the applicable
bonus

Reasons for a “good” leaver inglude death, ill health, retirernent, office of employment ceases to be a part of the business or any

other reason determined by the Commttee

Remuneration scenarios

Millennium & Copthome CEO scenario chart

| o

Notes.

The Threshold” scenano refiacts base salary pension and benafits (Le fixed remuneration} whnch are the
only slements of the CEC's package not knked to performance

scenanc reflacts fixad remunerahon as above plus a target bonus payout of 5096 of maarmum

The Target
and LTIP threshold vasting at 25% of maamum sward
The Maxmum scenano reflacts fixed remuneration, plus il payvout of all incentves

No share pnce growth has been assumed r any sCenand.
Consideration of employment conditions in the Group

When setting the policy for executive remuneration, the Committee does
not consult employeas The Group Human Resources Director does,
however, ensure that the Committee 1s aware of pay and conditions
throughout the Group and that these are taken into account when

framing executive remuneration As a global group, in a sector with ready
mobifity, the more senior the roie, the more reward needs to reflect the
global market, whilst for the majority of employees it 1s set with greater

consideration of local market conditions and practices The annual bonus schema and awards under the LTIP are firmited to the senior
management team and those employees respansible for managing the hosptality business

Shareholder views

When determining remuneration, the Commuittee takes nto account the views of investor representative bodies and those of its key
shareholders and 1s commutted to undertaking consuitation before committing to significant changes in aspects of remuneration
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Annual report on remuneration

Directors’ remuneration - audited

£000 Total salary and fees’  Taxable benefns? Bonus LTIP Pension Total ramunaeration
204 2013 2014 2013 2m4 2013 2m4 203 2014 23 2n4 2013
Chaiman
Kweak Lang Bang 268 256 - - - - - - - - 268 256
Executive Diractor
Wong Hong Ran® ® 650 650 40 106 609 650 - 751 130 130 1429 2287
Nor-Executive Dirctors
Shaukat Aziz 56 50 - - - - - - - - 56 50
lan Batgy® 6 45 - - - - - - - - 6 45
Sean Collins® 77 72 - - - - - - - - ” 7
Susan Farr 55 2 - - - - - - - - 5 2
Micholas George 59 52 - - - - - - - - 59 52
Kwek Eik Sheng 5 47 - - - - - - - - 51 47
Kwek Leng Peck 57 53 - - - - - - - - 57 53
Gervasa MacGragor” 3 - - - - - - - - _ 3 _
Alexander Waugh 7 64 - - - - - - - - 7 &84
Total 1353 1291 40 106 609 650 - 751 130 130 2,132 2,928
Notes

1 Salanes and fees ara shown nclusve of sums recenabla by the Diractoes from the Compearty and any of its subsidiary undertakangs
2 Benefis comprse a motor vehacle and dnver medical, personal accxdent and travel nsurance

3 The LTIP swerrd of 128,215 shares, made on 28 November 2011 vestad on 28 Novernber 2074 The value of the award on vesting wes calculatod by reference to the share pncs on that date

which was 585.5 penca The perfomnance conckbons for thes awerd wers measurad over the three years ended on 31 December 2013
Wong Hong Flen wall step down fram the Boend on 28 February 2015,

Ian Batey resigned troen the Bosrd on 20 February 2014,

Seon Colns resigned from the Boand on 11 December 2014

Gervass MacGragor owned the Board on 11 December 2014

@ ~New; e

Annual bonus for 2014

The table below shows how the annual bonus was calculated for the year ended 31 December 2014

Financial performance representing 70% of the opportunity

Wong Hong Ran s the highest pai Duector His iography on page 42 reports the pnncipel other directorsiyps that he holds 1 cifver Group and assoGate compsmes

Borus peyout

Mirwmum Torpet Mzxarmum Actual Weghong (9% of salary

Group revenue 95% 100% 105% 97% 15% 2%
Group profit before tax nN% 100% 108% 105% 55% 43%

Actual targets are considered by the Committee to remain sensitive, gven their ¢close alignment with the Company's strategic
plans Addrtionally, the Committee 15 of the view that disclosing targats would put the Company at a competitive disadvantage to its

competitors, some of which ara not subject to sirmular raporting requirements

Personai objectives and contribution representing 30% of the opportunity

Borus
Weghting (% of payout!

Asset managerment and refurbishment obyectves

Growth opporturity obyectves
Marketing, sales and e-commerce objectives
LS regponal restructunng objectivas

10% 3%
5% 5%
0% 7%
5% 2%
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Long-Torm Incentive Plan (LTIP) awards made tn 2012

Performance Share Awards made under the LTIP in 2012 were subject to performance conditions compnsing both EPS growth and
relative TSR performance over the three-year penod ending 31 December 2014 Performance Share Awards would normally vest on
the third anniversary of the award being made, with 50% vesting subject to growth of the Company’s EPS exceeding RPI by set
targets The remaining half of each Performance Share Award was subject to a performance condition that compares the Company’s
TSR against the TSR of each company within a comparator group comprising those companies within the FTSE 250 index {excluding
investment trusts)

Based on the Company’s EPS growth and relative TSR performance for the three years ended 31 Decernber 2014, the Commuittee has
determined that the LTIP award made on 16 August 2012 will lapse mn full

LTIP awards made in 2014 — audrted
The following Performance Share Award was made under the LTIP to Wong Hong Ren on 4 Apni 2014

Basss of No of shares Face velus' threshold Parformencs
awerd awerded 000 performnance Performance crmena panod end
Wong Hong Ren 150% of 173,796 £975 25% Disclosed inthe 31 December 2016
salary table below
Note
1 Caloulated usmg the mwddle market share pnce of 561 penca on the day pnor 1o the grant
Performancs meesun 2014 Weghtng Threshold  Level of vestng Maamum  Lavel of vesting'
Cumulative EPS 50% 104 pence 25% 132 perce 100%
NAY + Dnadend 20% 6% per year 25% 13% per ysar 100%
TSR - FTSE250 15% Index 25% Index + 9% pa 100%
TSR - peer group? 15% Index 25% Index + 9% pa 100%

Notes.
1mmmmmwuumamum
ZMdeembmwmwmumnmwﬂmnﬂmzma

Change in Group Chief Executive Officer and remuneration arangements

As detailed In the announcement made on 7 November 2014, Wong Hong Ren will step down as Group Chief Executive Officer on

28 February 2015 and Aloysius Lee Tse Sang will replace him The Remuneration Committee has been actively involved in agreeing the
terms of Wong Hong Ren’s remuneration in connection with his departure and in setting the armangements for the new Group Chiaf
Executive Officer

Terms of Wong Hong Ren'’s departure

The Remuneration Committee has determined the following treatment for Wong Hong Ren's remuneration in connection with his
departure He will

e receive a cash payment aqual to one year’s salary which will be paid in 12 equal nstalments untl the end of February 2016 as
provided for under his service agreement,

 be efigible for an annual bonus for both the full year ended 2014 and for the propartion of 2015 that he remains as an employee
of the Company,

e actin a consultancy capacity as Semor Adviser to the Group for a period from 1 March 2015 He waili not earn addinonal fees for
any transition assistance that may be required Fees payable under the consultancy arrangement in relation 10 special projects
will be determined and agreed by Mr Wong and the Board of Directors in the future for each such project and will not be
deducted from his monthly base salary instaiments,

» be permitted to retain any fees or other compensation payable to him by any associate or non-controlled joint venture of the
Company or by any third party company Any fees payable to him for cantinuing to serve as a director of any subsidiary of the
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Company will be payable to the Company,
* notrecewve an LTIP award in 2015,
* not be entitled to an acceleration of vesting for any existing share awards,

* retain hus interest in the 2013 and 2014 LTIP awards, which will not be trme pro-rated and will vest at the normal date, subject to
the agreed performance conditions being met, and

* beentitled to receve a lump surm payment for up to five days of accrued, but unused holiday, and up to £5,000 for
rembursement of legal fees related to his review of these arrangements

The above arrangements ensure that any remaining payments from employment (e g bonus and any LTIP vesting) beyond contractual
entitlernents to Wong Hong Ren are aligned wath the performance of the Company following his departure and are a sign of his
confidence in the new management and the busiNess’s continuiNg prospects

From 1 January 2015 to 28 February 2015, Wong Hong Ren's remuneration will rernain at a rate paid dunng the year ended 31 December
2014 Wong Hong Ren’s base salary has not increased since his appointment as Group Chief Executive Officer on 27 June 201
Appointment of Aloysius Lee Tse Sang as Group Chief Exacutive Officer

Aloysius Lee Tse Sang will be appointed as Group Chiaf Executve Officer and an Executive Director on 1 March 2015, after serving as
Group Chief Executive Officer designate from 1 February 2015 His remunaration package will consist of

* 3 salary of £500,000 per annum,

* a maximum annual bonus opportunity of 150% of salary,

* LTIP awards of up to 150% of salary per annum A first grant of shares will be made i the spning of 2015,

* a cash allowance of 20% of base salary in leu of participation in the Group’s pension plan,

* a car allowance of £10,000 per annum, and

+ other benefits in ine with the Company’s stated policies

The Committee considered Aloysius Lee Tse Sang's package in light of the role, the indvidual and relative market positioning They
also determuned that the overall level of vanable incentive opportunity for the new Group Chief Executive Officer should remain
unchanged No 'huy-out’ arrangemants were entered into as part of Aloysius Lee Tse Sang's recruitment

Annual bonus

The 2015 annual bonus performance conditions for Aloysius Lee Tse Sang as Group Chief Executive Officer and any other Executive
Director are set out in broad terms in the table balow The Committee believes that the detalled KPIs for Aloysius Lee Tse Sang are
commercially sensitive and that consequently it is not appropriate to disclose them in this set of accounts Consideration will be
given in preparation of the 2015 accounts to the appropnate disclosure required to support any bonus awarded for that year without
disclosing any commercially sensitive data

Performance meesure Waghtrg
Group profit before tax 50%
Group revenue 10%
Personal KPis 40%

Wong Hong Ren will recerve a bonus for the proportion of 2015 that he remains as an employee of the Company The performance
conditions applicable to him are set out in broad terms in the following table

Parformence messure Weghtrg
Group profit before tax 50%
Group revenue 10%
Parsonal KPis 40%

« delivery of the Annua! Report and Accounts 2014 to agreed timescale and quality, and
* orderly transition of the Group Chief Executive Qfficer responsibilities to Aloysius Lee Tse Sang
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LTIP structure for 2015 awards

The maximum value of LTIP awards granted will remain at 150% for Aloysius Lee Tse Sang as Group Chief Executive Officer and
100% for any other Executive Director Wong Hong Ren will not receive an LTIP award in 2015 The structure of awards will be
disclosed in due course once determined

Percentage changes in remuneration of the Group Chief Executive Officer

The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration (based on salary, fees, benefits and annual bonus) between 2014 and
2013 for the Group Chief Executive Officer and employees as a whole

Average
increase
ama am3 across
£000 £000 Charge empoyess
Base salary 650 650 - 25%
Taxable benefits 40 108 62)% -
Annual bonus 609 850 {61% -
The graph illustrates the performance of the  Total shareholder retum {“TSR")
Company and a broad equity market index .
over the past six years As the Company
1s a constituent of both the FTSE 250 and 350
the FTSE Ailshare Travel & Leisure, the 300
Directors consider these indices to be the 250
most appropriate broad equity market indices
against which the Company's performance
should be compared for these purposes 0
00
50
0
Dec 2008 Dec 2009 Dac 2010 Dec 2011 Dac 2012 Dec 2013 Dec 2014
- Milanmum & Copthorne FTSEZ50 excluding mvestment trusts = FTSE Aitshare Travel & Lesure
Group Chief Executive Officer's total remuneration over past five years
2009 20 2011 am2 203 F ]
000 000 000 00 000 000
Total remunerstion £797 £1,243 £3.558 £1,495 £2,287 £1.429
Annual bonus payout against Maximum opportunity 25% 100% A% 37% B67% 2%
LTIP vestng rates against maxmum opportunity 0% 0% 100% 100% 50% %

Notes
1 wwmumwmmﬁwmmmnwmmwmmmvmzmm-gmamw-mdmmaemwmomm
78 Fetwusry 2015

Non-Exacutive Diroctors’ foes

The basic fee for a Non-Exacutive Director is £50,000 per annum (2013 £45,000) Fees for Nor-Executive Directors ara determined by
the Chairman and Group Chief Exscutrve Officer following recommendation by the Group Human Resources Director

It 1s not proposed to review the fees paid to Non-Executive Directors i 2015
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Non-Executve Directors also receive a separate annual fee for membership of and chainng a Committee Detalls are given below

Fee for
membership of a Addkbonal
Comsmtzg Commtee  Chanman's fee
Aucht & Risk Committee £5,000 £10,000
Rermuneration Committee £5,000 £10,000
Norminations Committee £2,000 -

The addwional fee paid to the Semor Independent Director 1s £10,000 per annum

The annual fee for the Chairman 1s unchanged at £250,000 He also receives a further £18,000 fees from subsidiary companies

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below Illustrates the yearon-year change In total colleague pay (being the aggregate staff costs as set out in Note 8 to the
financial statements) and distributions to sharehoiders (being declared dividends) The average number of colleagues employed by the
Group has decreased from 10,353 to 10,257 duning the year

e 2013 % Change
Employee Remuneration Costs 330 284 182%
Dividends Distnbuted £m 73 44 65 9%

Commuittes evaluation

During the year, the Committee, with the assistance of Jonathon Grech, Company Secretary, Karen Caddick, Group Human Resources
Director, and Kepler Associates implemented a number of the actions identified durning the 2013 evaiuation process These include
regular governance and best practice remuneration updates, received both dunng and outside of meetings, and more regular access
to the external advisers dunng meetngs

Lintstock Limited conducted a further externally facilitated evaluation, with members completing or-ine questionnaires The review
wdentfied a number of pronties including an evaluation of senior management remuneration in conunction with the new Group Chief
Executive Officer These prionties are being acted upen in 2015

Statement of voting at 2014 annual general meeting

The following table sets out the voting in respect of the resolutions to approve the Company’s Remuneration Policy and the 2013
Directors’ Remuneration Report, put to shareholders at the Company’s annual general mesting held on 1 May 2014

Resolution Votes for % of vote Votss against % of vota  Votes withheld
Approve the Remuneraton Policy 281,458,849 99 2,673,585 oM 10,619,954
Approva the 2013 Directors’ Remuneration Report 293,577,746 9992 243433 008 831,178

The Directors ware pleased with the response receved from shareholders to the resolutions proposed

This report on Directors’ remungration will be put to an advisory vote at the annual general meeting on 7 May 2015 The Dyectors
confum that this report has been prapared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and reflects the provisions of the Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts & Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 and was approved at a meeting of the
Directors held on 8 February 2015 In hine wath best practice, it 1s next intended to present the Remuneration Policy to shareholders for
approval at the annual general meeting 1n 2017 unless any alterations are required before then

Advisers

The Committee 1s authonsed by the Board to appoint external adwisers Iif 1t considers this beneficial Over the course of the year,
the Committee was supported by its appointed advisers, Kepler Associates, who attended all of the Committee’s meetings Kepler
Associates provided advice to the Comrmruttee on a range of topics including remuneration trends, best practice and incentive plan
design

The Company also separately received from Kepler Associates advice on the accounting treatment of share options required by
IFRS 2 Share-based payments Kepler Associates provided no other services to the Company
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Kepler Associates s a founding member and signatory to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants, details of which can be
found at www remunerationconsultantsgroup com

Jonathon Grech, Company Secretary, acts as secretary to the Comrittee Kwek Leng Beng, Wong Hong Ren and Karen Caddick,
Group Human Resources Director, are invited to attend Commuttee meetings The Committee considers their iews when reviewing
the remuneration of the Executive Director and other senior executives Individuals who attend Remuneration Committee rmeetings
do not participate in discussions concerning thesr gwn remuneration

Fees paid to the above consultants were as follows

M4 2013
Nama of consuttark Actes £000 £000
Kepler Associates Adwice to Remuneration Committee 70 93

External appointments

The Company recognises that Executive Directors may be invited to becorme non-executive directors of other companies and that
such appointments can broaden executives’ knowledge and experience, to the benefit of the Group Fees payable to Executive
Directors in connaction with external appomntments would be retained by them wath the approval of the Cormmittee

Directors’ interests in performance shares awarded

Performance conditions attaching to shares awarded under the Company’s LTIP are detalled on page 63 or in prior year Remuneration
Reports Since MrWong's appointment as Group Chief Executive Officer on 27 June 2011, the basis of awards has been 150% of
base salary

Fac Maonetry

Favundn. valus of vahm of

Bevgrcts el Attty heidat Makat prce awvard on asted

a1 ey made dumg L -] Anerds  31Decamber  of shareson  dntn of gt Parfomance varicst price avard

Dy avwerded p.ul the year vastad pead o swaard 000 pancd endt \strg dsto atvestng 000
Wong Hong Ren

28 1201 128215 - 128,215 - - £38020 £976 31122013 28112014 £5855 £781

16 08 20122 203,898 - - 203,898 - f47818 £975 31122014 1608205 - -

11092013 175,834 - - -~ 179,834 £55450 £975 31122015 NM092016 - -

04 04 20143 - 173,796 - - 113,798 £56100 £975 31122016 04 04 2017 - -

Notes

1 The number of sharss swartied wey caiculatsd usryg the rmddie markst share prcs for the five devs pnor to the grant. Based on the Compeny's EPS growth for the three yeers ended 31
Decembar 2013 the Commrties deterraned that haif of the LTIP awerd vested The award trme vested on 28 November 2014

2 mamwdmmmmmwnwsmmmWhmfmmwwmmmmwmmmmmwmw
3 mnwwdmmmmmﬂmmmemmwwmmmmmbmmPMMmMAuwmmw
63

The aggregsate velus of Dwactors LTIP awards which vestad dunng and 5t the and of the year wes £750 639 2013-£322.542

Funding of share plans

Awards of share-based incentives are made for nil consideration and are sausfied either by the 1ssue of new shares or through markat
purchase of shares LTIP awards made in 2011 were satisfied via The Miltennium & Copthome Hotels plc Empioyse Benefit Trust 2006
(the “EBT™) As a1 31 December 2014 the EBT held 5,758 shares (2013 54,985 shares) n rust representing approxtmately 0 0177%
of tha Company’s 1ssued share capital The Executive Director, together wath other employees of the Group, are potental beneficranes
of the EBT and, as such, are deemed to be interested in any sharas held

Dilution

The Company ensures that the level of shares granted under the Caompany’s share plans and the means of satisfying such awards
remains within best practice guidelines so that dilution from employee share awards does not exceed 10 per cent of the Company’s
issued share capital for all-employee share plans and 5 per cent in respect of executive share plans in any ten-year roling penod The
Company monitors dilution levels on a regular basis and the Committee reviews these at least once a year
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Share price

The market price of a Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc ordinary share at 31 December 2014 was 589 5 pence and the range during
the year was 543 0 pence to 605 O pence

Diractors’ share interests - audited

The nterests of the Directors holding office at 31 December 2014, and therr connected persons, in the ordinary shares of Millennium
& Copthorne Hotels pic were as follows

Nurnber of shares
Orminary shargs' LTIP awerds

Urvested and  Urvested arxd subject
performance 0 periormance  Cosmbanad tots as st
31 Ducember 2014 1 Jarwary 2014 measunes completed condiions 31 Dy ber 2014

Chaiman

Kwek Leng Beng? - - - - -
Executive Director

Wong Hong Ren 125,136 125,136 - 349,630 474,766
Non-Executive Directors

Shaukat Aziz - - - - -
Susan Far - - - — -
Nicholas George 12,500 5,000 - - 12,500
Kwek Eik Sheng® - - - - -
kwek Leng Pedd@ - - - - -

Gervase MacGregor - - - - _
Alexander Waugh - - - - -

1 Ondinary shares are banehaal holdings which nchude the Directors” personal hoidings and those of thesr spouses and menor chedren
2 The intecasts of the Cay Developments Lamstec nomenated Disctors n that compeny anct its ultimats parent company Hong Laong Investment Holdngs Pt Ltd, are disclosed in the accounts
of thoss companies.

Thera have been no changes to Directors’ interests between 31 December 2014 and the date of this report

The minimum shareholding requiremenits for the Company’s Executive Director requires him to hotd shares to the value of 100% of
base salary and this requirernent has been met.

Thera ts no requirement for Non-Executive Directors to hold shares
On behatf of the Board

Alexander Waugh
Charrman of the Rermuneration Committee

9 Febryary 2015

ﬂ'\,-u.Jl W WUL\;
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Nominations Committee Report

Dear Shareholders,

You will have already read in our
Directors’ report about the changes to
the Company’s Board of Directors and

| cannot emphasise how important the
process to recruit both a new Group Chief
Executive Officer and an independent
Non-Executive Director has been The
Committee has been involved dunng
every stap of the process, setting the
agenda, and ensuring that only the most
suitable candidates have been appointed
to each role

As a Commmittee our priorities during the
year have been to

+ manage the succession process for
the Group Chief Executive Officer and
ensure a smooth transition occurs In
2015,

undertake the appointment of a new
Senior Independent Director follow:ng
the decision of Sean Collns to step
down from the Board,

« raview more generally the skills and
diverse experience of the Non-
Executive Directors on the Board and
make plans for any future rotation, and

* ambed the senior management
appomntmants made in 2013 so that
change can be implemented as
smoothly as possible

Board and Management changes

The Company announced on 7 November
2014 that Wong Hong Ren would be
stepping down as Group Chief Executive
Officer from 28 February 2015 and that
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang would raplace

him The Committes engaged Inzito
Partnarship, in the prehrminary stages,
and also used internal resources n 1ts
search It extensvely reviewed a number
of candidates and concluded that Mr Lee
Tsa Sang had the skills and ambition best
suited to the role

I would like to thank Wong Hong Ren for
his considerable contrbution as a Director
of the Company since it was first listed on
the London Stock Exchange | am pleased
that a hand over penod between the two
has been arranged to allow Aloysius Lee

Tse Sang to swiftly famiianse himself
with the business and also that\Wong
Hong Ren has agreed to act as Senior
Adwiser for an mial 12 mentbh peried

Sean Collins notified the Board in
Septernber 2014 that he intended to step
down as an independent Non-Executive
Director and the Cormimittee moved
swiftly to recommend the appointment
of Gervase MacGregor in a similar
capacity Mr MacGregor is head of
htigation support at BDO LLP and brings
with hum a wealth of expenence He
has also assumed the role of Chairman
of the Audit & Risk Committee and 15
recognised to have recent and relevant
financial experience

In last year's report | highlighted a number
of key senior management appointments
below board level In 2013 which we had
made 1 am very pleased to confirm that
these appointments, along with further
recruits to the management team, are
working well as we create a focused,
driven team

Kay priorities for 2015

The Committee will continue to review
tha structure of the Board and | am
personally committed to ensunng that we
continue to lock for the nght capabilites
and competencies for the future, looking
tn parbicular in greas such as guest-facing
technology and hospitality expenence We
will monitor the transitton of the Group
Chief Executive Officer roie to ensure that
the procass is as smooth and effective

as we currently envisage The Committee
will also review the senior finance team

in conjunction with the new Group Chief
Executive Officer

Kwek Lang Beng
Chairman of the Norminations Commuttee

9 February 2015

Rote and responsibility

The Nomination Committae’s role 1S to
consider the skills and expertise that are
required by the Group in future, how such
skills and expertise should be reflected

in the structure, size and composition of

Financial statements
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the Board and how such requirements
should influence succession pianning for
Directors and other senior executives The
Committee 1s responsible for identifying
and nominating candidates to fill Board
vacancies when they anse and for the
subsequent approval by the Board

Membership

The Norminations Committee comprises
a majerty of independent Non-Executive
Directors and meets on such occasions
as necassary, but at least twice a year
Kwek Leng Beng chairs the Committee
except when the business of the meeting
concerns his succession The Company
Secrstary, the Group Chief Executive
Officer and the Global Human Resources
Director are invited by the Chair of the
Committee to attend meetings when
appropriate to do so External advisers
are also consulted as necessary to

grve advice or market perspective

All members have the expenence

and expertise necessary to meet the
Committee’s responsibilities

The Nominations Comrmittee’s terms of
reference are available at

www millenmiumhoteis comycomorate/
invastors htrmni

Evaluation procass

Dunng the year, the Commitiee
discussed the Board evaluation process
and considered that the use of external
assistance in that process continued to
make a vatuable contribution

Board diversity

The Committee continues to recognise
the value of diversity and that it can

only sarve to strengthen the Group We
continue to incorporate all aspects of
diversity as an objective critarion for the
selection of future Board members and
also ensure that this is reftected at all
levels of the organisation We support the
aspirations of the UK Lord Davies Report
on "Women on Boards’ including the
representation of wornen at the highest
level in the organisation Selection of
candidates to join the Board s based on
merit and the contribution which they will
bnng to the working of the Board
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
annual report and the financial statements

The Directors are rasponsible for
preparing the annual report and the Group
and parent company financial statements
in actordance with applicable law and
regulations

Cornpany law requires the Directors

1o prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial
year Under that law they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements
tn accordance with IFRSs as adopted

by the EU and applicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements it accerdance with
UK Accounting Standards

Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements
unless they are satished that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affars
of the Group and parent company and
of their profit or loss for that period In
preparing each of the Group and parent
company financtal statements, the
Dwrectors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistantly,

* make judgements and estmates that
are reasonable and prudent,

s for the Group financial statements,
state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU,

e for the parent company financial
statements, state whether applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosaed and explained
in the parent company financial
staternents, and

prapare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to prasume that the
Group and the parent company will
continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounttng records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
company’s transactions and disclose
with r@asonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent company

and enable them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They have general
rasponsibiiity for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other rregulanties

Under apphcable law and regulations,
the Directors are also responsibie for
preparing a Strategic Beport, Directors’
Report, Directors' Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Staterment
that complies with that law and those
regulations

The Directors are responsible for

the mamntenance and integrity of the
corporate and financiat information
included on the Company’s wabsite
Legistaticn in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financal
statements may differ from legislation in
other junsdictions

Responsibility statement of the
directors in respect of the annual
financial report

We confirm that to the best of our
knowledge

¢ the financial statements, prepared In
accordancse with the applicable set
of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of
the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as
a whole,

& the strategic report includes a
farr review of the development
and performance of the business
and the position of the 1ssuer and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principal nsks and uncertainties that
they face, and

» the annual report and financial
statemants, taken as a whole,
provides the information necessary to
assess the Company's performance,
business model and strategy and 13
farr, balanced and understandable
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The statement of Directors’
responsibilities was approved by the
Board of Directors on 9 February 2015

Wong Hong Ren
Group Chief Executive Officer

9 February 2015
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels pic only

Opmions and conclusions arising from
our audit

1 Our opimion on the financial
statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements
of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc for
the year ended 31 December 2014 set
out on pages 76 to 146 In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2014 and
of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

the Group financial statements
have been properly prepared in
accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union,

& the parent company financial
statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards, and

« the financial statements have been
prepared 1n accordance wrth the
requrements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the
|AS Regulation

2 Our assessment of risks of
material misstatement

In armving at our audit opinion above
on the financial statements the nsks
of material misstatement that had the
greatest effect on our audit were as
follows

valuation of Hotel assets {£2,753m)

Refer to Audit & Risk Committee Report,
Note 2 3 (Summary of signsficant
accounting policies), Note 3 {Accounting
estimates and judgements), and Note 12
{(financial disclosures)

e The risk: The Group has £2 8 billion
of hotel assets, which are subject to
annual reviews to assess whether
they may be impaired Cartain hotels
were imparaed in 2013, meaning that
the headroom for these properties
1s brrited and any further deciine in

performance may result n further
impairrnent being recorded The
Group uses a mixture of external
valuations and internal analyses to
assess 1ts hotels for impairment

The estimation of the recoverable
amount of hotel assets 15 complex
and dependent on assumptions about
the future Specifically, significant
Judgement is required n relation

to the appropriate discount rates,
growth rates, occupancy rates,
terminal values and forecast cash
flows to use in determiming value 1n
use Therefore, this 1s one of the key
judgemental areas on wiich our audit
is concentrated

Our response: Our procedures
included, among cthers, using our
own valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation model used, including
comphance with relevant accounting
standards and alignment to market
practice Our valuation specahists
also helped us assess the scope

of work performed, compsetancy,
professional qualfications, experience
and independance of the external
experts used by the Group With
sinput from our valuation specialists,
we challenged the key assumptions
used in determining the recoverable
amount of the assets, which was
generally considered to be their value
in use This included a comparison

of occupancy rates, revenue per
available room, market growth and
axpected inflation with externally
denved data wncluding external hotel
industry reports We also performed
our own assessment of other kay
inputs such as estimated future
costs, discount rates and terminat
multiphers, and applied sensitvities
to key assumptions to assess the
impact on avallable headroom We
assessed the principies and integnty
of the discounted cash flow models
and considered whethar the Group's
disclosures met the requirements of
relevant accounting standards

Classification and Valuation of
investment properties (E479m)

Refer to Audit & Risk Committee Report,
Note 2 3 {Summary of significant
accounung policies), Note 3 (Accounting
estimates and judgements), and Note 14
{financial disclosures}

* The risk Classification of an asset
as investment property {rather than
as Property, Plant & Equipment)
requires judgement, and 1S determined
by reference to the Group’s future
intentions and the Group's business
mode! As discussed in Note 2 3, this
also results in a different accounting
treatment because Property, Plant
and Equipment Is recorded at
depreciated cost whereas investment
properues are carried at fair value
The valuation models applied to
determine the value of iInvestment
properties are complex and sensitive
to assumptions around occupancy
rates, market growth, sales and
rental rates, as well as discount rates
and terrmunal muttiphers The Group
also currantly invests in properties
under construction The Group
angaged external experts to value its
investrnent properties Valuing these
properhes 1s complicated by the lack
of comparable market transactions,
and the difficulty of forecasting
expected cash flows sufficiently
reliably before the construction
1s complete Therefore, for these
propaerties, the Group may apply a
cost model Judgement i3 required
in determining when the far value
model becomes more appropriate On
this basis, classification and valuation
of investment properttes are key
|udgermental areas on which our audit
is concentrated

* Our response: Whan considenng the
appropriate classification of a property
our procedures included making
enquiries of the semor members
of the finance tearm and Directors,
inspecting internal business plans,
and considering key terms of external
contracts and agresments We
analysed the approprateness of the
valuation methodology applied, and
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considered whether 1t 1s In ine with
acCcounting requirements and business
practice We challenged the key
assumptions used in determiming far
valug This included a companson of
forecast rental rates, market growth,
octupancy rates, and real estate sales
prices with externally derved data We
also performed our own assessment
of other key inputs such as discount
rates and terrminal muluphers Qur
valuation specialists assisted in the
evaluation of the more subjective and
complex assumptions and analyses
Finally, we assessed whether the
Group's disclosures properly reflected
the nsks inherent in the calculations
and met the requirements of relevant
accounting standards

Consolidation accounting

Refer to Audnt & Risk Commuttee Report,
Note 2 2 {changes in accounting policies)
and Note 3 (Accounting estimates and
judgernents}

= Thae risk: Following the adoption
of the new accounting standard
dealing with consolhdation and the
introduction of a new definition of
“control” the Group has reassessed
whaether 1ts investment in CDL
Hospitality Trust ("CDLHT") should
be consolidated Following this
analysis, the Group consolidated
CDLHT for the first time in 2014
The assessment of control requires
a signficant level of Judgement,
particularly in relation to COLHT
where the Group holds less than
50% of the units in COLHT but has
other significant nghts in respect
of its management which the
Group has concluded are sufficient
to constitute control In hight of
these facts, whether the COLHT
should be consolidated under the
newv accounting standard and the
subsequent accounting entries were
areas on which we focused our
audit

s Our rasponse Cur work In this area
included assessing the judgements
and conclusions made by the Group
n detarmsming whether it has

control over CDLHT under the new
consolidation standard We critically
assessed the Group's analysis and
key agreements between the Group
and CDLHT in order to understand
the key rights that the Group holds
over CODLHT We also considered
the financial relationship between
the Group and COLHT through our
review of the historical dividend
flows and management agreements
We assessed the significance of

the Group's financial returns from
CDLHT and the Group's ability to
control them  Finally, we reviewed
the breakdown of holdings of
CDLHT's equity to assess whether
the holdings by other investors are
widely dispersed, thus giving the
practical ability to the Group to make
decisions at general meetings We
further tested the integrity and
principles of the Group’s calculations
to reflect the change of the accounting
treatment of CDLHT in the Group's
financiat statements This testing
focused on intercompany elimmnations,
consolidation adjustments and
alignment of CDLHT's results to the
Group’s accounting policies We also
assessed whether the disclosures in
the annual report are compliant with
the relevant accounting standards

Management override

* The risk: There were a number
of changes in senicr management
personnel that coincided wath the
2014 year end reporting timetable
This means that there was a greater
nsk of management overnde of
internal controls durning this penod
In addition, 13As (UK & Iretand)
require that we consider the nisk of
management override of internal
controls

¢ Qur response: In response
we reduced the thrashold for
testing manual journal entries,
mcorporating unpredictability into
our approach We increased the
nature and extent of our work In
respect of the areas of the balance
sheet most prone to management
overnide, particulariy accruals and
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provisions We considered whether
there was evidence of bias by the
directors or by management in the
significant accounting estimates
and judgements refevant to the
financial statements and for the
matenal unusual and far one-off
transactions iImpacting the income
statement We increased the scope
of our interviews with mddle and
lower level management and used
the information gathered to assess
whether there were any indications
of management overnde taking
place We also assessed the overall
control environment of the Group,
with a focus on those controls
designed to prevent instances of
fraud and the arrangements for
staff to “whistleblow” inappropriate
actions To assess the strength of
the Group's governance and controls
self-assessment, we interviewed
senior management, members of
the Board and the Head of Internal
Audit.

In our audit report for the year ended

31 December 2013 we included taxation
and revenue recognition on development
propertes as two of the nsks of matenal
misstaternent that had the greatest effect
on our audit We considered taxation nsk
to be less significant in the current year
as the Group's tax modsls are now better
established, following the completion

of the extensive exercise to assess

the appropriateness of its Deferred Tax
balances Furthermore, there are no
significant new tax matters impacting

the Group which require a significant
level of judgement With respect to
revenue recognition, iast year the Group
recognised a one-ime sale of a parucular
development in its Asia region, which was
a judgemental area |n the current year,
most of the revanue represents income
from hotel operations and rental income
While significant, these revenue streams
are not susceptible to a sigmificant nsk of
fraud or error




Cverview Strategic report

3  Qur appiication of materiality and
an overview of the scope of our
audit

The matenalty for the Group financial
statements as a whole was set at £8 3m
This has been deterrmined with reference
to a benchmark of the Group profit before
tax and after non-controlling interest,
which wea consider to be one of the
principal considerations for members of
the company 1n assessing the financial
performance of the Group Matenality
represents 5 0% of the Group profit
before tax and after non-controling
interest

We agreed with the Audit & Risk
Committes to report to 1t all uncorrected
misstatements we identified through our
audit with a value in excess of £410,000,
in addition to other audit russtatements
below that threshold that we behieve
warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds In additon we considered
whether any misstatements corrected by
management identified dunng the course
of the audit should be communicated to
the Audit & Risk Committee to assist it in
fuffilling its governance responsibilties

Audsts for the Group reporting purposes
were performed by component aucitors
at the reporing companents in the
following temtonies United Kingdom, Asia
{in particular Singapore and New Zealand,
as these are considered to be the
materal components n that region}, and
the US In addition, reviews for the Group
reporting purposes were performed by
component teams in the Middle East and
China Together, these Group procedures
covered 94% of total the Group revenus,
Q3% of the Group profit before taxation,
and over 90% of the Group total assets

The segment disclosures in Note 5 set
out the iIndmvidual significance of a specific
terntory

The audits and reviews undertaken for
the Group reporting purposes at the key
reporting components of the Group were
all performed to component materality
levels set by, or agreed with, the Group
audit team These component materiality
levels were set indwvidually for each

Govemance

component and ranged from £0 2m to
£6m

Detalled instructions were sent to all

the auditors in these locations These
instructions covered the significant areas
that should be covered by the component
auditors {which in¢cluded the relevant nsks
of material misstatement detalled above)
and set out the information required

to be reported back to the Group audrt
team The Group audit team carried out
reviews of audit workpapers covenng the
significant risks identified for Singapore,
New Zealand and US The senior statutory
auditor also visited the Singapore and

US offices during the planning stages of
the audit Telephone planning and closing
meetings were also held with the auditors
at all of these locations

4 QOur opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies Act
2006 is unmodified

In our opinion

¢ the pan of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

« the information given in the
Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for
which the financial statemants are
prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements

§ We have nothing to report in
respect of the matters on which
we are required to report by
exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are

reguired to report to you if, based on the

knowledge we acquired dunng our audit,
we have identified other information in
the annual report that contains a matenal
inconsistency with erther that knowledge
or the financial statements, a matenal
misstaternent of fact, or that 15 otherwise
musleading

In particular, we are required to report to
you If

Financial statemeants

Further information
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« we have identifted material
Inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired during our
audit and the directors’ statement
that they consider that the annual
report and financial statements
taken as a whole 1s fair, balanced
and understandable and provides
the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's
performance, business modsl and
strategy, or

e the Audit & Risk Committee Report
does not appropnately address
matters communicated by us to the
Audrit & Risk Commuttee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required te report to you if, n cur opinion

» adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

* the parent company financiat
statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

& cortain disclosures of directors’
remuneration spacified by law are not
mads, or

* we have not received all the
information and explanations we
requira for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required
1o raview

* the directors’ statement, set out on
page 45, in relation to going cencern,
and

* the part of the Corporate Governance
Statement on page 47 relating to the
Company’s compliance with the ten
provisions of the 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our
raview

We have nothing to report in respect of
the above responsibibities
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Scope of report and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responstbiities Statement set out on
page 70, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied

that they give a true and fair view A
description of the scope of an audit of
financial statements 1s provided on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate This
repor is made solely to the company’s
members as a body and 1s subject to
important explanations and disclaimers
regarding our responsibilites, published
on our website at www kprmg comy/
uk/audrtscopeukco2014a, which are
incorporated into this report as If set out
in full and should be read to provide an
understanding of the purpose of this
report, the work we have undertaken and
the basis of our opinions P

Steve Masters {Senior Statutory
Auditor} for and on behalf of KPMG
LLP Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

9 February 2015
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76 Financial statements
Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Restated’

2014 203

Notes £m £fm

Revenue 5 826 1,064
Costof sales {333) {457)
Gross profit 433 607
Administrative expenses 6 {325) {313}
Other operating income 7 29 23
Other operating expense 7 2) (23}
Operating profit 195 294
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 15 10 14
Finance income 7 6
Finance expense @24 19
Net finance expense 9 (17 {13}
Profit before tax 5 188 295
Income tax expense 10 (37 {30)
Profit for the year 151 265

Attributable to

Equity holders of the parent 10 224

Non-controlling interests 4 a1
151 265

Basic earnings per share (pence} " 3.0p 694p
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 11 3.9 69 0p

* Restatad due to the adogton of IFRS 10, 23 desribed n Nota 22,

The financial results above dernve from continuing actvities

The notes on pages 83 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Restated’
2014 2013
Note £m £m
Profit for the year 151 265
Other comprehensive income/{expense)
items that ere not reclassifisd subsequently to income statement
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan actuanal net gans/losses) 23 3 n
3 {n
items thet may ba reclassified subsequently to income statement
Foreign currency translation differences — foreign operations 47 (100}
Foreign currency translation differences — equity accounted investees 7 1
Net (loss)/gain on hedge of net investments in foreign operations {17} 5
7 (94)
Other comprehensive income/{expenss) for the year, net of tax 40 {95)
Total comprehensive income for the year 19 170

Total comprehensive income attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 162 160
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year m 170

' Rastated due to the adoption of IFRS 10 as described m Note 2.2

The notes on pages 83 to 140 are an integral parn of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As 8131 December 2014

Restated’ Restated’
31 Dec2074 31 Dec 2013 1Jan 2013
Notes £fm £m fm
Nosmcurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 2,753 2,370 2.381
Lease premium prepayment 13 98 87 92
investment properties 14 479 414 392
investment in joint ventures and associates 15 235 203 193
Leans due from associate - - 29
Othrer financial assets 16 5 5 4
3,570 3,079 3,091
Current assets
inventories 17 4 4 4
Development properties 18 72 Al 173
Lease prermium prepayment 13 2 1 1
Trade and other receivables 19 104 183 74
Loans due from associate - - 18
Cash and cash equivalents 20 392 351 418
674 610 688
Total assets 4,144 3,689 3779
Non-current lishilities
Loans due to associate - - (16}
Interest-bearnng loans, bonds and borrowings 3| (518) (489) {289}
Employee benefits 23 (18) (18) (17}
Provisions 24 (1)) n (8
Other non-current liabilities 25 (m 8 (123}
Deferred tax liabilnties 26 (221} {208) {232)
r2) (730} {(685)
Current lisbilities
Interast-bearing loans, bonds and borrowings Al (299) (77} (307)
Trade and other payables 27 (197) {156} (162)
Other current financial habilities - {1} {2)
Provisions 24 ()] (6} ()]
Income taxes payable {33) (a0} (25)
637 (280} {502)
Total linbilities {1.409) {1.010) 1,187}
Nst assets 273 2,679 2,592

* Restated due to the adopbon of IFAS 10 as descnbed wn Note 22

The notes on pages 83 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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. n - - L]
Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2014
Restated’ Restated®
31Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 1.Jan 2013
Note €m £m £m
Equity
Issued share capital 97 97 97
Share premium 843 843 843
Translation reserve 210 160 223
Treasury shara reserve 30 {4) 2) (2}
Retained earnings WAL 1,078 898
Total equity sttributable to squity holders of the parent 2263 2,176 2,059
Non-controlling interests 472 503 533
Total equity 2,735 2,679 2,592

' Restated due to the adogtion of IFRS 10 as descnbed n Note 2 2

These financial staterments were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 February 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

m Beng Wong Hong Ren
Charrman Group Chief Executive Officer \/\_).(\S “t
\ ‘ ;

Registered No 3004377
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Far the year ended 31 December 2014

Total

excluding
Trans- Treasury non- Non-
Share Share tation share Rotaned controlling controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earmngs mterests witerests squity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balence at 1 January 2013, as previously
reported 97 843 253 {2} 975 2,176 187 2,363
IFRS 10 adjustments - - {40} - (77} M7} 346 229
Restited balance at 1 January 2013* 97 843 223 {2) 898 2,059 533 2,592
Profit - - - - 224 224 41 265
Other comprehensive expense - - {63) - {1 (64) (31 {95)
Total comprehensive incomef{expensel) - - {63) - 223 160 10 170
Transactions with owners, recordad directly in
squity
Contributions by and distributions to ownars
Dwidends - equity holders - - - - {44) (44) - (a4)
Dividends - non-controlling interests - - - - - - {40} {40}
Share-based payment transactions (net of tax) - - - - 1 1 - 1
Total transactions with owners - - - - (43} (43) (40) (83)
Restated at 31 Decomber 2013! 97 843 160 {2 1078 2,376 503 2,679
Balsnce at 1 January 2014, as previously
reported 97 843 191 (2) 1,160 2,289 179 2,468
IFRS 10 adjustments - - {31) - (82) (113) 34 nm
Restated balance #t 1 Junuary 2014" a7 843 160 2) 1078 2178 503 2678
Profit - - - - 110 110 41 151
Other comprehensive incomef{expense} - - 50 - 2 b2 {12} 40
Total comprehensrva iIncome - - 50 - 12 162 29 191
Transsctions with owners, recorded directly in
ocquity
Contributions by and distrihutions to owners
Dividends - equity holders - - - - (73} {73} - {73}
Dividends - non-controlling interests - - - - - - {35} {35)
Purchase of own shares - - - (2) - (2) - (2)
Contribution by non-controlling interests - - - - - - 3 3
Changes In ownership intsrests
Distribution to minonty intarests - - - - - - {28) {28)
Total transactions with owners - - - (2) (73} {75) {60) (135)
Balsnce at 31 December 2014 7 843 210 (4} 117 1203 412 2703

' Restated dus 10 the adopbon of IFRS 10, as descnbed n Note 2 2

The notes on pages 83 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the yeer ended 31 December 2014

Restated!
2014 2013
£&m fm

Cash flows from opersating activities
Profit for the year 151 265
Adjustments for

Depreciaticn and amortisation 52 47

Share of profit of joint ventures and associates (10) {14
Other operating income (30} {23)
Other operating expense 3 23

Equity settled share-based transactions - 1

Finance income m {6}
Finance expense 24 19

Incomae tax expense 7 30

Opersting profit bafora changes in working caprtal and provisions 20 342

Movement in inventories, trade and other recervables 76 (110)
Movement in development properties il 95

Movement in trade and other payables s {122)
Movement in provisions and employee benefits - n
Cash genoretad from operations 30 204

Interest paid (17) (17}
Interest receivad 8 5

Income tax paid 371 (32}
Nst cash generated from opersting sctivities o] 160

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends recewed from joint venture - 36

Decrease in loans due from associate - 43

Increase in investment in associate (4d) -

Return of capital from associate 3 -

Neot proceeds from sale of assets - 3

Acquisition of proparty, plant and equipment, lease premium prepayment and investment properties (429) {173}
Net cash used in Investing sctivities {470) (85)
Balance carried forward (189} 75

' Rastatad due to the sdapbon of IFRS 10 23 descnbed i Nate 22

The notes on pages 83 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2014

Rastated'
014 2012
Note m £m
Balance brought forward {189} 75
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (49} {420}
Drawdown of barrowings -1 44 426
Payment of transaction costs related to borrowings (1 {1}
Payment on termination of financial instruments - (2}
Dividends pard to non-controlling interests (35} {39)
Movement in loan due to associate - (7
Purchase of own shares 2) -
Capital contrnibution from non-caontrolling interests 3 -
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent 28 (73) (44)
Net tash used In financing activities 220 {97
Net increass/{decreass) in cash and cash squivalents n {22)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 351 418
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held ] {45}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 388 351
Reconciliation of cash and cash squivalents
Cash and cash equivalents shown in the consolidated statement of financial position 392 351
Bank overdrafts included in borrowings (4) -
Cash and cash squivelents for consolidated statement of cash flows 388 3

R d dus 1o the adopoon of IFRS 10, as described n Note 22

The notes on pages 83 to 140 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Reporting entity

Muillennium & Copthorne Hotels ple (the “Company™) 1s a Imsted company incorporated in England and Wales whose shares are
publicly traded The registered office 1s located at Victoria House, Victoria Road, Horley, Surrey RHE 7AF, United Kingdom These
consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidianes {collectively the “Group”) The consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authonsed for 1ssue In accordance with a resolution of the
Directors on 9 February 2015

21 Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements are prepared on the histonical cost basis except for investment propertios and, from 1 January
2005, dervative financial instruments, financial iInstruments held for trading and financial mstruments classified as avalable-forsale
which are stated at therr fair values Hote! properties are stated at cost or deerned cost Deemed cost is calculated based on the
hotel’s frozen valuation as at 1 January 2004 Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell The Group’s income statement and segmental analysis separataly dentifies operating profit and other operating
income and expense This is In accordance with I1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and i1s consistent with the way that
financial performance 1s measured by management and assists in providing a meaningful analysis of the trading results of the Group
The financial statements are prasented in the Cornpany’s functional currency of sterling, rounded to the nearest million

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP

Basis of accounting

Thase consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as required by EU law {IAS Regulation
EC 1606/2002) Detarls of the Group’s accounting palicies, including changes during the year, are included below

Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has nghts to, vanable

ratums from its involverant wath the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity The financial
stataments of subsidianes are included i the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences untl the date
that control ceases

(ii) Interests in oquity-accounted investees

The Group's Interests in equity-accounted INvestees coOMPNse Interests in joINt-ventures and associates

An associate 1s an entity in whuch the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating
policies A joint-venture Is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, Group has nghts to the net assets of the arrangemsnt,
rather than fnights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities

Interests in joint-ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method They are mitially recognised at cost, which
includes transaction costs Subsequent to inital recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive iIncoma of equity-accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint
control ceases

{iii) Transactions efiminated on consolidation

intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised ncoms and expenses ansing from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
Unrealised gans ansing from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the invastment to the extent of
the Group's interest 1n the investee Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only t0 the extent that
there is no evidence of imparrment
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

22 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any consequential amendrents to
other standards, with a date of intial apphcation of 1 January 2014, in ine wath therr effective dates

{FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Staterments

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The nature and effects of the changes are explained below

{il Subsidiaries

As aresult of IFRS 10, the Group has changed its accounting policy for deterrmining whether it has control over and consequently
whether it consolidates its investees IFRS 10 introduces a new control model that focuses on whether the Group has power over
an \nvestea, exposure or nghts to variable returns from its nvolvernent with the nvestee and ability to use its power to affect those

returns

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 10, the Group reassessed the control conclusion for its investees at 1 January
2014 As a conseguence, the Group bas changed its control conclusion in respect of its investrment m COL Hospitality Trusts
{"CDLHT"), which was previously accounted for as an associate using the equity methad Although the Group owns less than half
of the voting powaer of the Investae, management has determined that, under IFRS 10, the Group has had control over the investee
since its inception This is because a subsidiary of the Group, M&C REIT Management Limited acts as REIT Manager with s fees
having a performance-based element Accordingly, the Group apphed acquisthon accounting to the investment from the year it was
first established in 2006, and restated the relevant amounts as if the investee had been consolkdated from that year. The quantitative
impact of the change 1s set out In (V) below

(m Joint arrangemonts

Under IFRS 11, the Group has to classify its interests in joint arrangements as esther joint operations (f the Group has nights to the
assets, and obligations for the habilities, relating to an arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group has nghts only to the net assets
of an arangement) When making the assessment, the Group considered the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of any
separate vehicies, the contractual terms of the arrangeamants and other facts and circumstances Praeviously, the structure of the

arrangement was the sole focus of classifrcation

The Group has re-evaluated its involvement in its joint arrangements and has retained its classification as joint-ventures The
investments continue to be recognised by applying the equity method and thera has been no impact on the recognised assets,
labtiliies and comprehensive income of the Group

{lii} Disclosure of interests in other entities
As a result of IFRS 12, the Group has expanded its disclosures about its interests in subsidianes (see Note 34) and equity-accounted
invastees (see Note 15}

{iv] Summary of quantitative impacts
The following tables summanse the impacts of the above changes on the Group’s financial position, comprehensive incorme and cash
flows The impacts relate to the consolidation of an additional subsidiary

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of interasts in Other Entiies Transiion Guidance (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and {FRS 12), and has not included in
the following tables the impact of consolidating the additional subsidiary on the Group's financial position, comprehensive income and
cash flows as at and for the year ended 31 Decamber 2014
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Consolidated statement of financial position
1 January 2013

Impact of changes 1n accounting policy

As previously

reported 1FRS 10 As restated

£m £m Erm

Praperty, plant and equpment and lease premum prepayment 2,096 377 2,473
Investment properties 169 223 392
Investment in and loans to joint ventures and associates 469 (247} 222
Other financial assets 8 (4) 4
Non-current sssots 2,742 349 3.091
Current assets excluding cash 264 6 270
Provisions and other labilities excluding interest bearing loans, bonds and borrowings {467) 108 {359)
Net cash/{debt} 52 {230) {178)
Deferred tax habilities (228} 4 (232
Net assets 2383 229 2592
Total equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 2,176 n7a 2,059
Noan-controlling interests 187 346 533
Total equity 2363 2592

31 December 2013

Impact of changes in accounting policy

As previously

reported IFRS 10 As restated

Em £m £m

Property, plant and equipment and lease premium prepayment 2,064 323 2,457
Investment propertias 164 250 414
Investment in joint ventures and associates a1 (238) 203
Other financial assets 8 {3) 5
Non-current ssssts 28 402 3.0
Current assets excluding cash 255 4 259
Provisions and other liabilities excluding interest bearing loans, bonds and borrowings {341) 105 {238)
Net cash/{debt) a1 {(296) {215)
Deferred tax habdities {203) (5} (208)
Not ssasts 2489 10 679
Total equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 2,290 (114) 2,176
Non-controlling intarests 179 324 503
Total equity AAL9 210 261
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Impact of changes in accounting policy

As previously

reported IFRS 10 As restated

£m £€m £m

Revenue 1,037 -~ 27 1,064
Cost of sales {450} n {457)
Gross profit 587 20 607
Administrative expenses {347) 34 {313
Other operating income 12 n 23
Cther aperating expensge (21) (2) (23}
Opaernting profit =1 294
Share of profit of joint-ventures and associates 38 (29 14
Net finance expense {5) (8) {13)
Profit befors tax 264 n 295
Income tax expense (29) (1) (30)
Profit for the yesr 235 30 265
ltems that are not reclassified subsequently to incoma statement (1} - (1
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement 81) {13) (94)
Totsl comprehensive income for the year 153 17 170

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year anded 31 December 2013

Impact of changes in accounting policy

As previously
raparted IFRS 10 As restated
Em £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 379 39 418
Net cash generated from operating activities 108 54 160
Others {1687) (60) (227)
Cash and cash equivaisnts st end of the yesr ns b <] 381

23 Summary of significant accounting policies

Except for the changes explained in Note 2 2, the Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods
presented in these consolidated financial statements

A Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiion method The cost of an acquisition 1S measured as the aggregate

of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisiion date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acqures For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquires either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree's identfiable net assets Acquisition costs incurred are expensad and identifiable net asset
acquired are measured at the acquisition date farr value

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for approprate classification and
desighation in accordance with the contractual terms, econormic circurnstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree
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if the businass combination 1s achieved in stages, the acquisition date farr value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree 1s remeasured to farr value as at that date through the income statement

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability wall be recogmsed either in the
ncome statement or as a change to other comprshensive income  If the contingent consideration Is classified as equity, 1t s not
remeasured and its subsequent settlement I1s accounted for within equity

Goodwill 1s imtially measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the far value of the Group’s net
identifiable assets acquired and habilies assumed, and are allocated to each of the Group’s hotels that are expected to benefit
from the combination If the consideration 1s iower than the farr vatue of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s
recogrised m the income statement

B Foreign cumency

(il Foreign currency translation
The financial statements of each of the Group’s businasses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business
Transactions in foreign currencies other than the functional currency are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of

the transaction

Monetary assets and liabiities denominated m foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the foreign
exchange rate at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on translation are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary
assets and habilibes that are measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated at the date of the transaction
Non-monetary assets and habilites denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into sterling at foreign
exchange rates ruhng at the date the far value was determined

{f) Financial statements of foreign oporations

Cn consolidation, the assets and liabilives of foreign operatiors, including fair value adjustments ansing on consolidation, are
translated to stering at forexgn exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to sterling at rates approamating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange
differences arising on retranslaton are recognised directly In equity in the foreign currency transiation reserve VWhen a foreign
operation 1s disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the translation reserve Is transterred to the income staterment

{ii} Net investment in foreign operations
Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of related hedges are taken to

translation reserve They are released into the ncoms statement upon disposal or partal disposal of the foreign operation

C Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses dervative financial mstruments to hedge !ts exposure to foreign exchange and nterest rate nsks ansing from
operational, fimancing and investment activites In accordance with 1ts treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue darvative
financal Instruments for trading purposes However, denvatives that do not qualry for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading
instruments

Dernvative financial Instruments are recogmsed initially at fair value, any directly attributable ransaction costs are recognised in the
\ncome statemant as incurred Subsequent to initial recognstion, dervative financial instruments are stated at fair value The gain
or loss on remeasuremant to fair value 1s recognised immediately in the income statement However, where dervatives quahfy for
hedge accounting, recogrition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item beng hedged

The fair value of nterast rate swaps 1s the estimated amount that the Group would recenve or pay to terminate the swap at the
balance sheet date, taking 1nto account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties The fair
value of forward exchange contracts 1s their quoted markst price at the balance sheet date, beng the present value of the quoted
torward price
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D Hedges

(1  Cash flow hedges

When a denvative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variabihity in cash flows of a recogmised asset or hability, or a
mighly probable transaction, the effective part of any gan or loss on the denvative financral instrument 1s recogrised directly in equity
When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognitton of a non-financial asset or nen-financial hability, the associated
cumulative gain or loss 1s removed from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
llability If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results n the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, then the
associated gains and losses that ware recognised directly In equity are reclassified to the iIncome statement in the same period or
periods durtng which the asset acquired or liabihty assumed affects the income statement (1 e when interest income or expense I1s
recogrised)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the above policy, the associated cumulative gain or foss 1s removed from equity
and recogrised In profit or loss in the same period or periods duning which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss The
Ineffective part of any gain or loss Is recognised immediately in the income statement

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge relationship but
the hedged forecast transaction Is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and IS recognised
In accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, then
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recogrused in equity 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

{(iii Hedge of monetary assets and liabilities

When a derivative financial instrument 1s used as an sconomic hedge of the foreign exchange exposure of a recognised monetary
asset or hability, hedge accounting 1s not applied and any gain or loss on the hedging instrument i1s recogrused i the income
statement

{iiil Hedge of net iwestment in foreign operations

The portion of the gain or ioss on an insttument used to hedge a net Investment in a foreign cperation that 1s determined to be an
effectivea hadge 1s recognised directly in equity within the translation reserve The mneffactive portion 1s recogmised immediately in the
wncome statement.

E Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(i) Recognition and measurement

Land and bulldings {other than investment properties) are stated at cost, except as allowed under IFRS 1 transition rules, less
depreciation and any provision for imparment All other property, plant and equipment 1S stated at cost less depreciation and any
provision for impairment Any impairment of such properties below depreciated historical cost 1s charged to the income statermnent

Under the transition provisions of IFRS 1, land and builldings which were previously revalued under UK GAAP ware measured on the
basis of their deemed cost, being their UK GAAP carmying value, including revaluations, as at 1 January 2004 being the effective date
of the Group's conversion to IFRS

(ii) Depreciation
Freehold land 1s not depreciated All other assets are depreciated to therr residual values on a straght-ine basis over thair estmated

useful lives as follows

Building core 50 years or lease term if shorter
Building surface, finishes and services 30 years or lease term if shorter
Plant and machinery 15 - 20 ysars

Furniture and equipment 10 years

Soft furmishings 5~-7 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Software up te 8 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

No residual values are ascribed to building surface finishes and services Residual values ascribed to buillding core depend on the
nature, location and tenure of each property
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{iil Subsequent costs

Capital expanditure on major projects is recorded separately within property, plant and equipment as capital work in progress
Once the project Is complete the balance 1s transferred to the appropriate fixed asset categories Capital work In progress s not
depreciated

Interest attributable to funds used to finance the construction or acquisition of new hotels or maor extensions to existing hotels Is
capitalised gross of tax rehsf and added to the cost of the hotel core

Operating supplies, which include china, inen, glass and silverware, were stated at their deemed costs as at 1 January 2008 and
subsumed into the costs of the hotel bulldings Subsequent renewals and replacements of such stocks and new supphes upon initial
hotel opening are wnitten off as incurred to the iIncome statement

F Leases

(11 Leased assets
Leases where the Group assumes substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases The leased
asset 1s Imitially recorded at the lower of farr value and the present value of minimum |sase payments

The equivalent liability, categorised as appropnate, s included wathin current or non-current liabilities Assats are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful economic ives Finance charges are allocated to accounting periods over the period of the
lease to produce constant rates of return on the outstanding balance

Rentals payable by the Group under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term
even if payments are not made on the same basis In cases where rents comprnse a fixed and a vanable element, the fixed element
only 1s charged to the ncome statement on a straightdine basis with the vanable amounts being charged as they become due Lease
incentives recewved are recogrised as an integral parnt of the total lease expense

Rentals recevable by the Group as lessor under operating leases, including the sub-leting of retail outlets wathin hotel properties, are
credited to the Income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term even if the receipts are not made on such a basis Costs,
ncluding depraciation incurred in earning the lease incoms, are recogrised as an expense

(i} Lease premium

The Group makes and recerves initial payments on entenng both into long and short leases of land and bulldings Where payment
for leased land 1s equivalent to the purchase of the freehold intarest, the lease is classified as a finance lease All other payments for
leases of land are classified as operating

On the statement of financial posiuon, financial lease payment attributable to the land 1s recorded as property, plant and equipment
and for operating leases, the land 1s recorded as a lease premium prepayment Both lease types are charged to the income statement
on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease Interest attributable to funds 10 finance the purchase or lease of land 15 caprtalised
gross of tax relief and added to the cost of lease

In the casa of lease premiums received, these are reflacted on the statement of financial position as deferred income, appropnataly
classified between current and non-current iabiities and are credited to the income statement on a straight-ine basis over tha term of
the lease

G Impaiment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than investment propertigs, inventones, employee beneft assets and deferred tax
assets are reviewed to detarmine whether there 1s any indication of impairment If any such indication extsts, the asset's recoverable
amount 1S estimated

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their net selling pnce and value n use In assessing vatus in use, the estimated

future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
tme value of money and the nsks specific to the asset
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Impairment Is recognised in the Income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount Imparrment losses are reversed if there has been a change in the estmates used to determine the recoverable
amaunt Where permissible under IFRS, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does

not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, If no iImpairment had been
recognised

In the case of equity investments classified as avalable-forsale, a significant or prolonged dechne in farr value of the asset below its
costis considered In determining whether the asset 1s mpaired If any such evidence exists for avaitable-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measurad as the difference between acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the income statement — 1s removed from equity and recognised In the income statement

H Investment properties

Investment properties held by the Group are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or
both Investment properties are stated at far value Any increase or decrease 1n the far value on annual revaluation Is recogrused in
the income statement in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property In himited circumstances, the deterrmination of fair value 1s
uncertain, and these properties are carried at cost Impairment analysis over these properties 1$ carmed out annualty

An external Independent valuer, having an appropriate recognised profassional qualfication and recent expertence in the location and
category of the property being valued, values the portfolio annuzlly The farr values are based on market values, being the estimated
amaount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a wifing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion

I Inventories

inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable velue 1s the estmated selling pnce in the ordinary
course of business, less the esttmated costs of completion and selling expenses.

J Devalopment properties

Development properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value They are held for sale in the short term and are
therefore classified as current assets The cost of development properties includes interest and other related expenditure incurred
in order to get the asset ready for its intended use Borrowing costs payable on loans funding a development property are also
capitalised, on a specific identification basis, as part of the cost of the development property until the completion of developrment
Payments received from purchasers ansing from pre-sales of the property units prior to the completion are included as deferred
income under other financial lkabilities in the statement of financial posiion

K Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less

Bank overdrafts that are repayabte on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents

L Bomowings
Borrowings are recognisad initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised

cost any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recogmsed in the iIncome staterment
over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

M Income tax

Income tax on profit or loss compnses current and deferred tax Income tax 1s recognised 1n the mcome statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly In equity, in which case it is recognised in equity

Mitienmum & Copthome Hotsls plc Annual report and accounts 2014




Overview Strategic report Govemance Financial statemaents Further information

9N

Current tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided for using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and kabiites for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences
are not provided for (1) the inttial recognition of assets or habilities that affect nerther accounting nor taxable proft, and (4} differences
relating tc Investments In subsidianes to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settiement of the carrying amount of assets and habiities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferrad tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it i1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised Deferred tax assets ars reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that the benefit will be realised

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset only to the extent that {} the Group has a legally anforceable nght to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabiites, (i1 the Group intends to settle net, and () the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax kabihities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority

N Employee benefits

(i} Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recogrised as an expense In the iIncome statement

(il Defined benefit plans

The Group’'s net obligation in respect of defined benefit post-employment plans, including pension plans, I1s calculated separately for
wach plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned In retum for their service In the current and pnor
penods That benefit s discounted to determine 1ts present value, and the tarr vatue of any plan a2ssets is deducted The calculation 13
performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit crednt method.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the ncreased benefit relating to past service by employees 1s recognised
immediately as an expense in the tncome statermnent

The Group recognises remeasurement gains and losses within the consolidated statermnent of comprehensive incoms in the penod n
which they occur

The Group determines the net interest expensa (income) on the net defined benefit labilives {asset) for the penod by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual perod to the then net defined benefrt liability
{asset, taking into account any changes In the net defined benefit liability {asset dunng the penod as a result of contrnbutions and
benefit payments Net interest expense and other expenses related to dafined benefit plans are recognised in the income statement

{iiil Long-term service benefits

The Group's net obfigation in respect of long-term service benefits, other than post-employment plans, 1s the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their sarvice in the current and pnor periods The obligation s calculated using the projected
unit credit method and 1s discounted to its present value and the fair value of any plan assets I3 deducted

{iv) Share-based payment transactions
The share-basad incentive schemes allow the Group’s employees to acquire shares of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employess for awards granted after 7 Novermber 2002 s measured by reference to the
fair value at the date on which they are granted The fair valua 1s determined by using an appropriate pricing maodei, further details of
which are given in Note 23

The cost of equity-settled transactions i1s recognised, together with a corresponding Increase in equity, over the penod in which

the performance and/for service conditions are fulfilled The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will uttmately vest The income statement expense or credrt for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that penod
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No expense i1s recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting 1s conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting wrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition 1s satisfied, provided that alt other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recognised 1S the expense as If the
terrns had not been modified, if the onginal terms of the award are met An additional expense 1s recogmised for any modification that
Increases the total fair value of the share-based payrment transaction, or 1s otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the

date of modification

Where an equity-settled award Is cancelled, it 1s treated as If 1t vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award 1s recognised iImmaediately This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity
or the employee are not met However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it 1s granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the onginal award, as
described in the previous paragraph All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally

The dilutive effect of outstanding options 1s reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share
{further daetails are given in Note 11)

O Provisions
A provision IS recognised on the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and 1115 probable that an outflow of aconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation If the effect 1s matenal,

provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, when appropnate, the risks specific to the liability Further details on provistons are given in Note 24

P Rovenue and its recognition
Ravenue compnses

* Income from the ownership and operation of hotels - recogrised at the point at which the accommodation and related services are
proviced,
= Management fees — eamed from hotels managed by the Group, usually under long-term contracts with the hotel owner Management

fees include a base foe, which I1s generally a percentage of hotel revenue, and/or an incentive fee, which s ganerally based on the
hotel’s profitability, recognised when eamed on an accrual basis under the terms of the contract,

» Franchisa fees — receved in connection with licensing of the Group'’s brand names, usually under long-term contracts with the hotel
owner The Group charges franchise royalty fees as a percentage of room revenus, recognised when eamed on an accrual basis under
the terms of the agreement,

* [ncome from property rental — recognised on a straight-ine basis over the lease term, lease mcantives granted are recognised as an
integral part of the total rental income, and

* Development property sales — recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer, which 1s
usually when legal title transfers depending on junsdictions The tngger for revenue recognition depends con the laws within each
unsdicton in 2013, the Glyndebourne development sales were recognised on the recept of the temporary occupaton permit, as this 1s
the point at which the nsks and rewards of ownership passad to the buyers

Q Dividend distribution

Dividend distnbution to the shareholders 1s recognised as a liabiity in the Group's financial statements in the penod in which the
dwvidends are appropnately authonsed and approved for payment and are no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpad
dividends that do not meet thase cntena are disclosad In the notes to the financial statements
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R Operating segment information

Disclosure of segmental information 1s pnncipally presented in respect of the Group's geographical sagments The segments reported
reflect the operating information included in internal reports that the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM”), which 1s the Board,
regularly revtews Further details are given in Note 5

An operating segment Is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expanses, mcluding revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components Discrete financial
information 1s reported to and 1s reviewed by the CODM on & geographical basis Operating segments have Chief Operating Officers
{*COQs") or equivalent who are directly accountable for the functioring of therr segments and mantain regular contact with the
Group Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the CODM to discuss the operational and financial performance The CODM makes
decisions about allocation of resources to the regions managed by the COOs

Segment results that are reported to the CODM in¢lude items directly attnbutable to a segment as waell as those that can be allocated
on a reasanable basis Unallocated tems principally comprise interest-beanng loans, borrowings, cash and cash equwvalents, net
finance expense, taxation balances and corporate expenses

S Non-curment assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups comprising assets and iiabilities) that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale
rather than through continuing use are classified as held-forsale Generally the assets (or disposal group) are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell Any impairment loss on a disposal group 15 first allocated to property, plant
and equipment and lease prermium prepayment, and then to remaining assets and labdities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss
s allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets and investment property, which continue
to be measured 1 accordance with the Group’s accounting policies Impairment losses on irtial classification as heid-forsale and
subsequent gains or losses on rameasurerment are recognised in the income statement. Gains are not recognised n excess of any
cumulative mpaiment loss.

T Other financial assots and labilities

Trade nvestments are classified as available-forsale assets and are included under non-current assets wathin ‘other financial assets’
They are recorded at market value with movements in velue taken to equity Any impairment to value is recorded In the income
statement

Trade and other recevables are stated at therr nominal amount (discounted if matenal) less any iImpaiment

Trada and other payables are statad at therr norminal amount {discounted if matenal)

U Rolated parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, partigs are considered to be related to the Group f the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control tha party or exercise significant influence over the party making financial and operating decisions, or VICe versa, of
where the Group and the party are subject to commeon control or common sigrificant influence Related parties may be indwviduals or

other enbties

3  Accounting astimates and judgements

Management has discussed with the Audrt & Risk Commuttee the selection and disclosure of the Group's cntical accounting policies
and estimatas and the application of these policies and estimates

The preparation of financial staternents under IFAS requires the Group to make estimates and assurmptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and habilites and the disclosure of contingencies and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the
year The Group evaluates Its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis Such estimates and judgements are based upon
histoncal experience and other factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, which form the basis for making
judgerments about the carrying value of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources
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Certain critical accounting policies, among others, affect the Group’s more significart estimates and assumptions used in prepaning
the consolidated financial statements Actual results could differ from the Group’s estimates and assumptions Key estimates and
Judgements have been made in the following areas, of which the most significant are listed first

Asséet carmrying values

Management performs an assassment at each balance sheet date of assets across the Group where nsk of imparment has been
identfied Key judgement areas include the carrying values of property, plant and equipment and investment properties, iInvestment
tn and loans to joint ventures and associates, and development properties The recovery of these assets is dependent on future cash
flows being recewable and the provision of future services or goods by third parties

Whera risk of imparment has been identified an impairment review has been performed on property, plant and equipment, iease
premium prepayments and investments (in and loans to joint ventures and associates held across the Group on a cash generating
basis Where approprate, external evaluations are also undertaken The impairment review is performed on a “value In use’ basis
which requires estimation of future net operating cash flows, the time period over which they will occur, an approprate discount rates
and appropriate growth rates The discount rates used reflect appropriate sensitivities involved in the assessment Discount rates
used for impaired properties and investment properties are disclosed in Notes 12 and 14

Investment properties

The Group holds a number of iInvestment properties and accounts for such properties in accordance with the accounting policy set out
n Note 2 3H The Group owns hotel assets which are leased to external third parties with lease rentals and related charges varying
according to the agreement involved The Group accounts for such hotel assets in its financial statements i accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2 3H

Where the indicators are such that on balance the Group 1s shown to be a passive investor, the relevant property s accounted for in
accordance with IAS 40 and the Group accounts for the fair value change through the iIncome statement as other operating income or

expense

Adoption of IFRS 10

As further explained in Note 2 2, the Group adopted IFRS 10 dunng 2014 The most significant test in deterrmening whether a control
relationstip exists under the Group's previcus accounting policy (under IAS 27), was whether the Group had a shareholding of over 50%

One key change in IFRS 10 1s a new requirement for an investor to consider whether 1t has de facto powar over an investes, this

1s relevant for the decision regarding the treatment of COLHT which was previously accounted for as an associate under equity
accounting The new ‘control’ model 1s complex and judgement was required in assessing the nature of the relationship between the
Group and COLHT under the new accounting standard

Business combination

The group purchased five hotels duning the yaar The Group had to make a judgernent whether to account for each acquisition as an
asset purchase or a business combination, which results in a different accounting treatment In particular, under business combination
accounting, goodwill and additional intangible assets may anse and the valuaton of acquired assets 1s complex In addition,
transaction costs can be capitalised in an asset acquisiton, but have to be charged through the income statement for a business
combination The ctassification of each acquisition and related accounting 1s highly judgemental and complex

Taxation

The tax charge for the year i1s recognised in the income statement and the statement of comprehensive iIncome, according to the
accounting treatmant of the related transaction The tax charge compnses both current and deferred tax The calculation of the
Group’s total tax charge invelves a degree of estimation and judgement, particularly when tax treatment for certain items cannot be
deterrmined until a final resolution In addition, recognition of deferred tax assets 1s judgemental as it depends on expected ttiming and
level of future taxable income
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Provisions for tax accruals require judgemenits on the interpretation of tax legislaton, developments In tax case law and the potential
outcames of tax audits and appeals The final resolution of certain of these tems may give nse to matenal ncome staterment and/or
cash flow variances

Land leases classification

The Group holds a number of hotels with leases of land that are determined to have an indefimte economic ife These are classified as
a finance lease, even If at the end of the lease term title does not pass to the lessee In determining whether the lease of tand should
be accounted for as a finance or an cperating lease, the following factors were considered

+ tfransfer of ownership
* purchase options

« present value of minimum lease payrmments in comparison to farr value of land

Going concem

The Group's business activities, together with the factors hkely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out
in the Strategic Report on pages 20 to 40 The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, iquidity pesition and berrowing faciities
are described in the Strategic Report — Financial performarnce on pages 24 to 25 and in the key performance indicators on page 23

In addition, Note 22 of the financial statements includes the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its
financial nsk management abjectives, details of its financial instrurnents and hedging activities, and s exposures to credit nisk and
liquidity nsk The Group has considerable financial resources and plans for refinancing maturing facihities are under way

Cash flow forecasts for the Group have been prapared for a perod in excess of twelve months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements These forecasts reflect an assessment of curtent market conditions The forecasts completed on
this basis show that the Group wall be able to operate within the current cormrmitted debt faciiibes and show continued cormpliance
with the financial covenants. In addrion, management has considenad vanous mitigating actions that could be taken in the event

that market conditions are worse than therr current assessment Such measures include further reduction in costs and in capital
expenditure On the basis of the exercise as described above and the available committed debt facimes, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the fcreseeable
future Accordingly, they continue to adopt @ going concern basis in prepaning the financial statements of the Group and the Company

In assessing whether the Group s a going concern, the Directors follow a review process which s consistent with the principles set
out In the guidance published by the Financial Reporting Council "Going Concern and Liquidity Risk Guidance for Directors of UK
Comparies 2009"

Definad banefit pension plans

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension plans As sat out in Note 23, the calculation of the present value of the Group's
defined beneft obligations at each period end 1S subject to sigrficant estimation An appropriately quaiifed, mdependent actuary is used
to undertake this calculation The assumptons made by the actuary are the best esumates chosen from a range of possible actuarial
assurptions, which due to the tmescale covered may not necessanty be borne out in pracuce The valuation of scheme assets IS based
on ther fair value at the balance sheet date As these assets are not intended to be soid in tha short term, thew values may be subject
to significant charge before they are realisad In reviewing the work of the independent actuary, managament 15 required to axercise
judgement to satsfy themsalves that appropnate weight has been afforded to macro economic factors

Details of the assumptions used are set out in Note 23

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non
financial labdites

The Group has an estabhished control framework with respect to the measurement of far values Management reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuations adjustments |f third party information 1s used to measure fair values, then management assesses
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the evidence obtained from third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the
level in their fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified Significant valuation 1ssues are reported 10 the Group
Audrit & Risk Committee

When measuring farr values, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible Fair values are categonsed into different levels
tn a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuations technigues as follows

* Level 1 quoted prices {unadjusted)} in active markets for identical assets and liabilites

s Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices led in Level 1 that are observable for an asset or hability, either directly or indirectly

» { evel 3 inputs for an asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data

If the Inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or labtlity might be categonised m different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the far value measurement I1s categonsed in its entiraty in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest leve! input that
1s significant to the entire measurement

further mformation about the assumptions made In measuring fair values 1s included in Note 14 ‘Investment Properties’ and Note 23
‘Employee Benefits’

4 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2014, however,
the Group has not applied the following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements, as these

have not beeen adopted earty

IFRS 9 Financial Instrurments
IFRS 15 Revenue from contiacts with customers

The Group 15 assessing the potential mpact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from impiementation of these
standards

5  Operating segment information
Disclosure of segmental information 1s principally presented in respect of the Group's geographical segments
Segment results, assets and liabibities include tems directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a

reasonable basis Unallocated items principally compnse interest-bearng loans, borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, net finance
expense, taxation balances and corporate expenses

Geographical segments

The hotel and property operations are managed on a worldwide basis and operate in seven prnincipal geographical areas as foliows
* NewYork

Regional US

* London

Rest of Europe (including the Middle East)

» Singapore

Rest of Asia

Australasia
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The segments reported reflect the operating segment information included in the internal reports that the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM"}, which is the Board, regularly raviews

The reportable segments are aligned with the structure of the Group’s internal organisation which 15 based according 1o geographical
region Discrete financial information 1s reported to and 1S reviewed by the CODM on a geographical basis Operating segments
have Chief Operating Officers ("C0O0s™) or equivalent who are directly accountable for the functioning of thew segments and who
maintan regular contact with the Group Chief Executive Officer and Chairrman of the CODM to discuss the operational and financial
performance The CODM makes decisions about allocation of resources to the regions managed by the COOs

The results of COLHT have been mncorporated within the existing geographical regions  In addition, CDLHT operations are reviewed
separately by iis board on a monthly basis

Segment rasuits
2014
Regional Rost of Rest of Central Total
New York us London Europe Singapore Asia Australasia Costs Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revsnus
Hotel 123 106 125 7 131 152 42 - 750
Property operations - 2 - - 9 1 24 - 36
REIT - - - - 1 16 13 - 40
Total revenue 123 108 125 n 181 169 7 - 528
Hots! gruss operating profit 35 4] 84 138 62 53 17 - n
Hotel fixed charges® (22) {16) (19) {11} 2} {28} (4 - {102)
Hotel operating profit 13 5 45 7 60 25 13 - 168
Property operating prafit/{loss) - {1} - - 8 - 8 -~ 15
REIT operating profit/{loss) - - - - {3} 8 13 - 16
Central costs - - - - - - - (31) {31)
Other operating iIncoma ? - - - - 3 16 - - 19
Other operating income - REIT? - - - - 5 1 2 - B
Operating profit/{loss) 13 4 43 7 73 48 » 31) 188
Share of joint ventures and
associates profit - - - - - 10 - - 10
Add Depreciation and amortisathon 6 7 5 3 1 17 2 1 52
EBITDA? 19 1" 80 10 B4 i) 38 (30} a7
Less Depreciation and amortisation {52)
Net finance expanse (17)
Proft before tax 188

1 mwmmmmmaamuwmmmmmwmmmmm
2 See Note 7 for detads of other g fCOME ahd &xp
3 EBITDA 13 aammngs befors witerest, tax, depreciaton and amontsaton
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Restated 2013

Regional Rest of Rest of Cantral ‘Tota!
New York us Landon Europe Singapore Asia Australasia Costs Group
£m fm £m £m Em Em fm Em £m
Revenue
Hotel 106 m m 69 140 151 43 - 731
Property operations - 2 - - 276 - 21 - 299
REIT - - - - 14 5 15 - 34
Total revenue 108 13 m 430 158 79 - 1,084
Hotel gross operating profit 28 19 89 17 67 60 18 - 258
Hotel fixed charges ! {19} {18) (15} (12) (2) (26) (5) - {97)
Hotel operating profit 7 1 44 5 65 24 13 - 159
Property operating profit/(loss) - (1) - - 11 - 9 - 149
REIT operating profit/{loss) - - - - {2} 5 14 - 17
Central costs - - - - - - - {31) (31
QOther operating tncome ? - - - - 9 2 - - 1
Other operating expense 2 - (12) - {3} - (6} - - (21}
Other operating income - REIM? - - - - 1 4 5 - 10
Operating profitAioss) 7 {12) “ 2 214 2 41 {31) 294
Share of joint ventures and
associates profit - - - - - 14 - - 14
Add Depreciation and amortisation 6 7 5 10 13 2 1 47
EBITDA ? 3 (5} 49 2 43 (30) 58
Less Depreciation and amortisation 47
Net finance expense {13}
Profit before tax 295

1 Hotel fixad charges mchude deprecton, smortsaton of leese pramesn prepayments, property rent, tas and insurancs, cperating lsasa mrttals and menagement fees

2 See Note 7 for details of other aparating ncome and expansa
3 EBTDAs gs before tax, aspr and amort:sabon
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Segmental assets, liabiltties and capital expenditure

2014
Regional Rest of Rest of Total
Neaw York us London Europe Singapore Asma Australasia Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Hotel operating assets 542 279 502 242 18 654 147 2,384
REIT operating assets - - - - 539 128 162 829
Hotel operating habiities (34) {22) {34} {19) (21} {59} (8} (197}
REIT operating habilities - - ~ - (15} (3) (2) {20}
Investment in joint ventures
and associates - - - - - 96 - 96
Total hotsl opersting net assets 508 257 468 a3 821 g6 299 3,062
Property operating assets - 31 - - 97 102 74 304
Property aperating habiliies - n - - (8 {6) (4) 19}
Investment in joint ventures and
assoctates - - - - — 139 - 139
Total property operating net assets - 30 - - 89 235 70 424
Deferred tax habilities {221}
Income taxes payable (35)
Net debt (525)
Net assets 2,735
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Restated 2013
Regional Rest of Rest of Total
New York us London Europe  Singapore Asia Australasia Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Hotel operating assets 239 272 436 191 a7 626 145 2,056
REIT operating assets - - - - 488 87 163 738
Hotel operating habilities {12) (31) {30) (16) {25} (52} (7} {173}
REIT operating Labilities - - - - (3) - 2) (54
Investment in joint ventures
and essociates - - - - - 87 - 87
Total hotel operating net assets 327 241 406 175 607 748 299 703
Property operating assets - 28 - - 182 63 €8 341
Property operating habilities - - - - (15} {1} {2} (18)
Investment in joint ventures and
associates - - - - - 16 - 116
Total property opersting net assets - 28 - - 187 178 66 439
Deferred tax habilities {208)
Income taxes payable (40)
Net debt {215)
Net assots 2,679
Geographic information
Restated
2014 2013
£m £m
Revenue from sxternal customers
United States ;n 219
United Kingdom m 156
Singapore 151 430
New Zgaland 68
Taiwan 60 41
South Korea 48 49
China n 24
Maldives 16 5
Malaysia 10 18
France " 15
Australia 9 n
Philipptnes 8 9
Indonesia [] 7
Germany L] 5
Other 12 7
Total revenua per consolidated income statement s 1.064

The revenue information above 18 based on the location of the business The £826m (2013 £1,064m) revenue 1s constituted of £750m
{2013 £731m) of hotel revenue, £36m (2013 £299m) of property operations revenue and £40m (2013 £34m} of REIT revenue The
property operations revenue comprises £24m (2013 £21m) from New Zealand, £9m {2013 £276m) from Singapore and £3m (2013

£2m) from other countries
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Restated
2014 2013
£m £m

Non-current assets
United States 830 614
United Kingdom 630 564
Singapotra 600
Taiwan 258 242
China 1 230
New Zealand 190 187
South Korea 178 170
Japan m 63
Australia 109 112
Maldives 92 85
Hong Kong 19 69
Malaysia 64 64
Italy 56 -
France ” 40
Philippines n 29
indonesia n 10
Total non-current assets per consolidated statement of finencial position 3570 3,079

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, lease premium prepayment, investment properties,
iInvestment In joint ventures and associates, loans due from associate and other financial assets

6 Administrative expensas

The following items are inciuded within adrmunistrative expenses

Restated
2004 2013
tm [ay]
{a) included in administrative expenses ts the auditor’s remuneration, for sudit and non-audit services as
follows
Auditor’s remuneration
Statutory audit services
— Annua! audit of the Company and consolidated financial statemeants 1 1
— Audit of subsidhary companies 1 1
2 2
MNon-audit related sarvices
- Tax advisory 1
Total 3 3
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Restated
2004 2013
fm £m
(b} Impairment {Note 7} - 21
{¢) Repairs and maintenance » 37
{d) Depreciation 80 a5
(e) Lease prermium amortisation 2 2
{(fl Rental paid/payable under operating leases
- land and bulldings 3 3
- plant and machinery 4 4
7 Other operating iIncome and expense
Restated
2014 2013
Notes Em £m
Cther operating income
Rewvaluation gain of investment properties
- REIT properties (a) 10 12
- Millennium Mitsui Garden Hote! Tokyo (a} 16 -
- Tanglhn Shopping Centre (a} 3 9
Gamn anising on disposal of assets (b} - 2
29 23
Other operating sxpense
Revaluation deficit of investment properties
— REIT properties (a) (2} (2)
tmpairment {c} - {21}
@ (23)

la) Revaluation gain/deficit of investment propertias
At the end of 2014 and 2013, the Group’s Investment propertes were subject to external professional valuation on an open-market
existing use basis Based on these valuations, the revaluation gain or deficit was recorded as considered appropriate by the Directors

{b) Gain arising on disposal of assets
In 2013, the Group disposed of its investment in India for £3m (350m rupees) resulted i a profit of £2m after deducting its book cost

of E1m

{c) Impaiment

The Directors undertook their annual review of the carrying vatue of hotels and property assets for indication of impairment and where
appropnate, external valuations were also obtained As a resuit of this review, no impairmeant charge was rmade for the year ended

31 December 2014 For 2013, the total imparment charge was £21m consisting £4m in relation to four Regional UK hotels n Rest of
Europe, £12m for a hotel in Regional US and £5m in relation to a hotel in Rest of Asia
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8  Personnel expenses

Restated

2014 2013

&m Em

Wages and salaries 278 233
Compulsory social security centributions 37 36
Contributions te defined contribution schemes 1 il
Defined benefit pension costf{gain) - recorded in the statement of comprehensive income (3} 1
Defined benefit pension cost— recorded in the iIncome statement 2 2
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions - 1
328 284

The average number of employees employed by the Group iincluding Directors) duning the year analysed by category was as follows

Restated
2014 2013
Number Number
Hotel operating staff 1954 8,009
Management/admuinistration 1253 1,306
Sales and marketing 4684 438
Repairs and maintenance 588 600
10,257 10,353
Directors’ "
Rastated
v 2013
&m Em
Remunaration 2 2
Raceived by the Directors under long-term incentive schemes & pensions - 1
2 3
9  Net finance expense
Restated
s 2013
o ) ~ L £m fm
interest iIncome 4 4
Interest recevable from joint ventures and 2ssociates 1 ]
Foreign exchange gamn 2 1
Finance income 7 8
Intarest expense @2 (“mn
Foreign exchange loss @ (2}
Finance expense {24) 19
Net finance expense {17 13)
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10  Income tax expense

Restated
2014 2013
£m £m
Current tax
Corporation tax charge for the year 27 49
Adjustment in respect of prior years 4 1)
Total current tax expense a 48
Deferred tax (Note 28)
Origination and reversal of timing differences ] (8)
Effect of change in tax rate on cpening deferred taxes 3 {3)
Benefits of tax losses recognised {1 {2)
Over provision in respect of prior years {1} {5}
Total deferred tax expensefcradit) 6 (18)
Total income tax charge in the consolidated income statement 37 30
UK 10 5
Overseas 7 25
7 30

Totel iIncome tax charge in the consolidsted income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a tax expense of £37m {2013 £30m) excluding the tax relating to joint
ventuses and associates, gnvng nse 1o an effective tax rate of 20 7% (2013 10 7%) The effective tax rate has been affected by a

number of factors which include the following items

= Other income and expense of the Group: and
& Tax adjustrnents i respect of previous years

Excluding the impact of the items noted above, the Group's underlying effective tax rate 1s 172% (2013 20 9%)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, a charge of £6m (2013 £5m) relating to joint ventures and associates 1s included in the profit

before tax

Adjustments in respect of settlement of prior years tax liabilities

The Group's tax charge on ordinary activites 1s the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges The calculation of the Group's
total tax charge necessarity involves a degres of esumation and judgement in respect of certain tems whose tax treatment cannot be
finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authonty or, as appropnate, through a formal legal process
The final resolution of soma of these items may gve nse to matenal profit and loss and/or cash flow vanances The geographical
complexity of the Group's structure makes the degree of estimation and judgement more challenging The resolution of Issues 18 not
always within the control of the Group and it i1s often dependent on the efficacy of the legal processes in the relevant tax junsdictions

in which the Group operates
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Income tax reconciliation

Restated
2074 2013
£m £m
Profit before Income tax in consofidated income statement 1es8 295
Less share of profits of joint ventures and associates {10} (14)
Profit on ordinary activities exctuding share of joint ventures and associates 178 281
Income tax on ordinary activities at the standard rate of
UK tax of 21 49% {2013 23 25%) 38 65
Tax exempt iIncome {27) {25)
Non-deductible expenses 1 9
Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised 2 1
Effect of tax rates on other operating income and expense 1 {3)
Other effact of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions - {9)
Effect of change in tax rate on opening deferred taxes 3 {(3)
Other adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 3 {5
Income tax axpense per consolidated income stetemaent 37 30
11 Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated using the following information
Restated
014 2013
{a} Basic
Profit for the year attnbutable to holders of the parent {Em} 110 224
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue (m) 34 324
Basic sarnings per share (pence) M.0p 69 4p
{b) Diluted
Profit for the year attributsble to holders of the parant (Em) o 224
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue {m) 24 324
Potentially dilutive share options under the Group’s share option schemes {m} 1 2
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue (diluted) (m) -] 326
Diluted sarnings per share {pence) $3.9p 69 0p
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and
Land Caprtal Fixtures, machinery
and work in  fittings and and
buildings progress equipment vehicles Total
m £m £m £m
Cost
Restatad balance at 1 January 2013 2,401 28 213 22 2,863
Additions 63 27 6 24 120
Transfers " {30) 10 9 -
Disposals (5} - ~ {1} {6)
Written off - - 2 (18} (20}
Foreign exchange adjustments (59} - {1 {9} {79)
Restated balance at 31 December 2013 241 25 216 226 2,878
Balance at 1 January 2014 24n 25 216 226 2,878
Additions — Acquisitions 271 - 7 15 233
Additions - Others 41 20 19 19 99
Transfers 8 21 2 8 3
Disposals - - - {2} (2)
Written off - - - {10} (10}
Foreign exchange adjustments 42 - 5 5 52
Baiance at 31 December 2014 2773 24 249 281 3,307
Accumuiated depreciation
Restated balance at 1 January 2013 244 1 65 172 ag2
Charge for the year 16 - 8 21 45
tmparment 20 - 1 - 21
Disposals {s) - - (1) (6)
Written off - - (2} (18} {20)
Foreign exchange adjustments 8) - {2 () (14)
Restated balance at 31 December 2013 267 1 70 170 508
Balance at 1 January 2014 267 1 70 170 508
Charge for the year 15 - n 24 50
Disposals - - - (2) 2)
Written off - - - (10) (10
Foreign exchange adjustments 4 - 2 2 8
Balance st 31 December 2014 256 1 < 184 554
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2014 2487 a3 168 77 arss
At 31 December 2013 restated 2,144 24 146 56 2,370

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases at 31 December 2014 was £5 6m (2013 £nil}
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a Impaiment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on each cash generating unit (“CGU") The CGUs are indvidual
hotels The carrying value of iIndivicdual hotels was compared to the recoverable amount of the hotels, which was predorminantly
based on valuedn-use For 2014, where indicators of impairment were present, the Group estimated value-in-use through creation
of discounted cash flow models, based on future trading performance expected by management The underlying basis for the
impairment model involves each hotel’s projected cash flow for the financial year ending 31 December 2015, extrapotated to
incorporate individual assumptions in respect of revenue growth {principally factoning in reom rate and occupancy growth) and major
expense ines The future cash flows are based on assumptions about competitive growth rates for hotels in that area, as well as
internal business plans These plans and forecasts include management’s most recent view of trading prospects for the hotel i the
relevant market The forecasts cover a five 1o ten year period, and cash flows beyond this peniod are extrapolated using a growth rate
ranging between 2% and 3%, which 1s based upon the expected trading growth for each hotel and inflation in the country Where
appropriate, the Directors sought guidance on value from a registered ndependent appraiser with an appropniately recognised
professional qualfication and recent experience in the location and category of the hotel being valued

On the basis of both external and internal valuations in 2014, the Group recorded an impairment charge of £nil 2013 £21m) The
£21m In the previous year impairment charge compnised £4m for four Regional UK hotels in Rest of Europs, £12m for a hotel in
Regronal US and £6m for a hote! in Rest of Asia

b Key assumptions used by the extemal appraisers
The key assumptions used were as follows

Pre-tax discount rate —The discount rate is based on the country in which the hote! 1s located and is adjusted for nisks associated with
the hotel Discount rates ranged from 11% to 12% in the US, 8% to 12% n Europe, 9% in Asia and 9% in Australasia

Occupancy rate — The occupancy growth rates ranged from 0% to 7% in the US, 0% to 4% in Europe, 0% 1o 3% m Asia and 0% to
5% n Australasia

Average room rate - The average room rate growth ranged from 3% to 4% in the US, 0% to 7% in Europe, 0% to 6% in Asia and 1%
to 4% In Australasia

c  Sensitivit
The Group’s iImpairment review s sensitive to changes in the key assumptions used, most notably the discount rates and revenue
grawth assumptions Based on the Group's sensitivity analysis, a reasonably possible change in a single factor could result In
impairment in certain hotels in Regional UK, Regional US, Asia and Austratasia as therr farr vatue currently axceeds their carrying value
only by a small percentage

d Land and buildings
Land and buildings includes long leasehold building assets with a book valus of £695m (2013 £534m) The net book value of land and
buldings held under short leases was £100m (2013 £88m), n respect of which depreciation of £2m (2013 £1m) was charged dunng

the year

No interest was capitalised within land and busidings dunng the year (2013 £nif) The cumulative capitalised interest within land and
buildings 18 £6m {2013 E£5m)

e Pledged assets
At yearend, the net book value of assets pledged as collateral for secured icans was £227m (2013 £280m) The secunty for the loans
1s by way of charges on the properties of the Group compantigs concerned

f  Business combination

On 12 June 2014, the Group acquired Novotel New York Times Square for a purchase price of US$274m (£161 m) The purchase price
consists of property, plant & equipment, which has been included in the Group’s New York geographical segment The fair value asset
allocation indicates that the purchase price approximates the fair value of the acquired assets and thers 1s no goodwill The results of
Novotel since the acquisition date have been included in our consolidated financial statements In conjunction with the acquisition, we
entered into a finance lease arrangement for a part of the property for US$9m (£6m)
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In addition, on 19 December 2014, the Group acquired two hotels in Japan, as well as all the outstanding shares of capital stock of

& company that operates them The total consideration was S$66m (£32rm}) The prelirminary far value asset allocation indicates that
the purchase price approximates the fair value of acquired assets and thera wiil be no goodwill The Group has one year from the
date of purchase to finalise the allocation of the purchase between tangible and intangible assets Based on the preliminary analysis,
the purchase price has been fully allocated to property, plant & equiprnent on the Group's balance sheet, and full analysis will be
completed in 2015

g  Other acquisitions

On 25 March 2014, the Group acquired the leasehold interest in a hotei property located within the Chelsea Harbour district in London
for a purchase price of £E65m The total acquisition cost including other expenses 1s £68m, which were capitalised as property, plant &
equipment within the Group’s existing hotels portfolio

In addition, on 9 October 2014, the Group completed the purchase of its first hotel in Italy, for €66m (E51m) The total acquisition
cost was caprtalised as property, plant & equipment within the Group's exasting hotels portfolio In conjunction with the acquisition,
the Group entered into a holdback escrow agreement with tha seller Pursuant to the holdback escrow agreement, we withheld
approximately €6m {£5m) from the purchase pnice and placed it Into an escrow

The preliminary estimated fair value asset allocation indicates that the purchase prices approximate the far value of the identifiable
assets acquired, and there will be no goodwili The Group has one year from the date of purchase to finalise the allocation of the
purchase price between tangible and intangible assets Based on the preliminary analysis, the purchase price has been fully allocated
to property, plant & equipment on the Group's balance sheet, and full analysis will be completed for the yearend

13 Lease premium prepayment

2014

tm
Cost
Balance as at 1 January, as previously reported 49
IFRS 10 adjustments B0
Restated balance at 1 January -]
Transfer from PPE {Nots 12) 3
Foreign exchange adjustments n
Restated balance at 31 December 13
Amortisstion
Balance as at 1 January, as previously reported 8
IFRS 10 adjustments 8
Restated balance at 1 January "
Charge for the year 2
Foreign exchange adjustments -
Restated batance at 31 December 13
Carrying amount 100
Analysed between
Amount due after more than one year included 1n non-current assets ]
Amount due within one year included in current assets F ¢

100

The IFRS 10 adjustrments relate to the leasehold interast in Grand Copthorne Waterfront Hotel and Studio M Hotel Singapore acquired
by COLHT
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14 Investment properties

Completed investment properties comprise Tanglin Shopping Centre, Biltmore Court & Tower, CDLHT properties and Millennium
Mitsu Garden Hotel Tokyo which was fully constructed in Septernber 2014 and siarted operating In Decemnber 2014 Investment
properties under construction represents the land site at Sunnyvale

Movements in the year analysed as

investmant
Completed properties
Investment under
proparties construchon Total
Em £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2013 (restated) 314 78 392
Additions 47 6 53
Adjustment to fair value 19 - 19
Foreign exchange adjustment (35) {15) (50)
Balance at 31 Decembar 2013 (restated) 345 44
Balance at 1 January 2014 345 69 414
Transfers 63 (63} -
Additions 42 - 42
Adjustment to fair value 27 - 27
Foreign exchange adjustment (4) - {4}
Balence at 31 Dacember 2014 473 8 479

In general, the carrying amount of mvestment property other than those under construction s the fair value of the property as
getermined by a registered independent appraiser having an appropnate recognised profassional qualification and recent experience
in the location and category of the property being valued Fair values were determined having regard to recent market transactions for
similar properties in the same location as the Group's Investment property

Only the land site at Sunnyvale, California 1s classified as invastment properties under construction at 31 Decemnber 2014 as it1s still
i the planning stage This asset 1S carned at cost on the balance sheet Construction of Millennium Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo was
completad dunng December 2014 and the carrying book cost was transfered from tnvestment properties under construction to
completed investrant properties, and has been revalued to fair value

At the end of 2014, those Group Investment properties ware subject to external professional valuation on an apan market existing use
basis by the following accredited independent valuers

Properties o Valuers

Tanghin Shopping Centre, Singapore DTZ Debenham Tie Leung {SEA) Pte Ltd
Bitmore Court & Tower, Los Angeies Sequoia Hotel Advisors, LLC
Land site at Sunnyvale, California Sequoia Hotel Adwisors, LLC
Miltennium Mitsur Garden Hotel Tokyo Jones Lang LaSalle KK
CDLHT - Singapore property Kmght Frank Pta Ltd
CDLHT - Austraha properties CBRE Valuations Pty Limited
CDLHT - Maldives property CBRE Pte Ltd
CDLHT - New Zealand property Coihars International New Zealand Limited

Based on these valuations tagether with such considerations as the Directors consider appropriate, Millenmum Muitsu Garden Hotel
Tokyo and Tanghin Shopping Centre recorded upiifts 1n value of £16m (2013 £nil} and £3m (2013 £9m) respectively In addition, the
REIT properties recorded a net ravaluation gain of £8m (2013 £10m) All the other investment properties recorded no change as they
are carried at cost and no impairment was identified

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value measurement for Investment properties not under construction of £473m (2013 £345m) has been categonsed as a
Level 3 fair value based on inputs to the valuation technique used
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Valuation technique and significant unobservahle mputs
The following table shows the valuation technique used i measunng the fair value of investment property, as well as sigrificant

unobservable inputs used

Valuation techmque

Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between key unobservable
nputs and fair value measurement

The techmque applied in the valuation
of the Tanglin Shopping Centre s based
on market comparison of sales of
similar properties in the vicinity Further
adjustmaeants are made to this value to
account for differences in location, size,
tenure, view, accessibility, condition and
other factors

Biltmore Court & Tower and Millennium
Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo were valued
using a discounted cash flow techmique
based on expected rental income

and discount rate appropnate for the

property

Investment propertes held by the REIT
were valued using the discounted cash
flow, capitalisation or companson
techmiques

Tanghin Shopping Centre
Open market values for other properties

Bidtmore Court & Tower
Discount rate of between 8% to 10% and
capitalisation rate of 7% to 9%

Millenmium Mitsun Garden Hotel Tokyo
Discount rate of between 4% and 5% and
capitalisation rate of 4% to 5%

CDLHT investment properties
Discount rate of between 7% and 12%,
capitalisation rate of around 8% and
terminal yield of 8% 10 10%

The estimated fair value would increase/
{decrease) (f

Expected market rental growth were
higher/{lower), and

Risk adjusted discount rate was lower/
(higher), capitalisation rate was higher/
(lower} and terminal yield was lower/
(higher)

Further details tn respect of investment property rentals are given in Note 31

15 Investments in joint ventures and associates

The Group has the followang significant investments n joint ventures and associates

Fair
value of
ownership Effective Group interest
Principal place of nterast
business £m 2004 2013
Joint ventures
New Unity Holdings Limited {“New Unity”} Hong Kong - 0% 50%
Fena Estate Company Limited {“Fena”) Thailand - 0% 50%
Associste
First Sponsor Group Limited (“First Sponsor”} People’s Republic 127 6% 39%
of China

The Group has 50% interest in both New Unity and Fena which operate the hotel business in Hong Xong and Bangkok respectively
First Sponsor 1s a property company based in China
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Jont
ventures Associates Total
£Em £m £m
Share of net assets/cost
Balance at 1 January 2013 (restated) 98 95 193
Share of profit for the year 7 7 14
Additions - 31 31
Dividends received (36} - {36)
Foreign exchange adjustments {1) 2 1
Balance at 31 December 2013 (restated) 68 135 203
Balance at 1 January 2014 88 135 203
Share of profit for the year 6 4 10
Additions - 44 44
Restructuring - (28) {28)
Foreign exchange adjustments L] 2 7
Other movements - {1} {1}
Balance at 31 Decamber 2014 79 158 s

The following 1s a summarised financial information for First Sponsor and New Unity based on ther respective financial statements
prepared i accordance with IFRS

The investment in Fena 1s not matenal 10 Group’s financial statements

First Sponsor New Unity

2014 2013 2014 2013

im Em £m £m

Non-current assets 161 88 ns 295
Current assets 469 373 5 49
Non-current habilities (a8} {82) {12 (182)
Current habilities (v48) (108) (28) {25)
Net sssets {100%) 438 n 158 137
Camrying amount by the Group 158 106 % 68
Revenue 7 80 100 102
Operating profit 14 20 F -] 28
Interest Income e 1 1)) ()
Income tax expense ®) {6) {4) {5)
Profit for the yesr n 15 n 22
Non-controlling interests - - (s} 8
Profit for the year after non-controlling interests n 15 13 14
Other comprehensive income 12 16 - -
Profit and total comprehensive income (100%} a N 12 14
Group's share of profit and total comprehensive income ] 15 ? 7
Dividends recefved by the Group -~ - - 36

At 31 December 2014, the Group's share of the total capital commitments of joint ventures and associates amounted to £20m
(2013 £56m) At 31 Dacember 2014, the Group’s joint ventures and associates had no contingent kabilities (2013 Enil)
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16 Other financiat assets

Restated
2014 2013
£m £m
Other financial assets included within non-current assets compnse
Unquoted equity investments available-for-sale 8 5
17 Inventories
Restated
2014 2013
£m £m
Consumables 4 4
18 Developmaent properties
Restated
2014 2013
m £Em
Development properties comprise
Development land for resale
- New Zealand landbank 49 43
Development properties
—Zenith Residences 23 24
- Glyndeboume {redevelopment of Copthome Orchid hotel) - 4
T2 n
19 Trade and other receivables
Restated
2014 2013
m Em
Trade and other receivables due from joint ventures and associates - 1
Trade recaivables 50 32
Other recervables 24 14
Prepayments and accrued income 30 136
104 183

Trade recervables are shown net of an impairment allowance of £2m (2013 £1m) relating to the kkely insolvencies of certain

customers and non-recoverability of debts

The Group's exposura to credit and cumency nsks and impairment losses related to trade and other recevables are disclosed in Note 22

20 Cash and cash equivalents

Restated

014 2013

tm Em

Cash at bank and in hand n 239

Short-term deposits o] 231
Cash pool overdrafts {125) {119}
Cash and cash equivalents on the statemant of financial position m 3
Overdrafts included 1n borrowings (4) -
Cash and cash equivalents shown in the cash flow statement 388 351
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The Group’s exposure to nterest rate nsk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets are disclosed in Note 22

As at 31 December 2014, £5m {2013 £nil} of the cash balance was restricied This forms part of the consideration paid (payable) on
the acquisition of a hotel in Rome (Note 12)

21 Interest-beanng loans, bonds and borrowings

Restated
204 2013
£m Emn

Included within non-current habilities
Bank loans 323 335
Bonds payable 198 154
518 489

Included within current habihities

Bank loans and overdrafts 370 44
Bonds payable 29 33
399 77

Further details in respect of financial habilines are given in Note 22

22 Financial instruments

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following nsks from s use of financial instrurents:

= credit nsk,
* liguidity nsk, and
» market nsk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nisks, and the Group's pohcies and processes for
measunng and managing nsk

(a) Credit risk
Credrt nsk is the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a customar or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mest its contractual
obhigations, and arises principally from the Group's recevables from customers and investment securties

Exposure 1o credit nsk 1s monitored on an ongoing basis, with credit checks performed on all cttents requinng credit over certatn
amounts Credit is not extended beyond authorised iimits, established where appropnate through consultation with a professional
credit vetting organisation Credit granted ts subject to regular review, to ensure it remains consistent with the client’s current
creditworthiness and approprate to the anticipated volume of business

investments are allowed only n iquid shart-term instruments wathin approved imits, with investrment counterparties approved by the
Board, such that the exposure to a single counterparty 1S minimised

The maximum axposure to credit nsk 1s represented by the carrying value of each financial asset on the balance sheet, these being
spread across the vancus currencies and junsdictions in which the Group oparates
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was

Carrylng value

Restated

2014 2013

£m Em

Cash at bank and in hand (see Note 20) 28 239
Short-term deposits {see Note 20} 289 231
Uncjuoted equity investments available-for-sale (see Note 16) 5 5
Trade receivables (see Note 19) 50 32
Trade and other recaivables due from joint ventures and asscciates (see Note 19) - 1
Other receivables (see Note 19) 24 14
6§96 522

The maximum exposure to credit nsk for trade recevables at the reporting date by geographic reglon was

Carrying value

Restated
204 2013
£m Em
New York ? 6
Regional US 7 5
Rest of Europe 8 4
Singapore 20 10
Rest of Asia 7 5
Australasia 4 2
50 32

The ageing of trade recervables at the reporting date was

Gross raceivable Impairment atlowance Carrying value

Restated Restated Restatad
201 2013 2014 2013 201 2013
£m £m m £m &m £m
Not past due » 24 - - b ) 24
Past due 0 - 30 days [} 4 - {1) [ 3
Past due 31 - 60 days 3 3 - - 3 3
Past due 61 - 90 days 1 1 - - 1 1
More than 90 days | 2 @ n 1 1
52 34 &) (2) ) 32
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The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade recevables during the year was as follows
Restated
2014 2013
£m £m
Balance at 1 January 2 2
Impairment recognised - -
Balance at 31 December 2 2
Contractual msturities of finencisl assets 2014
6 months 6 months 1-5 Morae than
Total orless -1vyear yoars 5 years
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial Assets
Fixed Rate
Sterling 4 4 - - -
US dollar 22 22 - - -
Korean Won 7 7 - - -
Singapore dollar 175 175 - - -
New Taiwan dollar 6 6 - - -
Austrahian dollar 12 12 - - -
New Zealand dollar a7 47 - - -
Malaysian Ringgt 16 16 - - -
Euro 7 7 - - -
Others 16 16 - - -
Non interest Bearing
Sterl:ng 23 23 - - -
US dollar 30 25 - - 5
Korean Won - - ~ -
Singapore dollar 25 25 - - -
New Taiwan dollar - - - - -
Malaysian Ringgt 1 1 - - -
Euro 4 4 - - -
Others 16 16 - - -
intsrest Bearing Cash Pool deposits
Singapore dollar m m - - -
US doliar - - - - -
Total cash and othaer financis! essets 522 517 - - 5
interast Besring Cash Pool Overdrafts
Sterling {44) (a4) - - -
US dollar {2) 2} - - -
Euro (12) {12) - - _
Japanese Yen (20) {20) - - -
Hong Kong doliar (30} (30 - - -
Non Interest Besring Cash Pool Overdrafts
Sterling (7 {17} - - -
US dollar - - - - -
Singapore dollar - - - - -
Total overdrafts (Note 20} {125} {125) - - -
397 392 - - 5
Represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 392
Other financial assets (non current) {Note 16) 5
397
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Restated Contractual matunties of financtal assets 2013

6 months 6 months 1-5 More than
Total or less —-1year years 5 years
£m fm fm £m £m
Financial Assets
Fixed Rate
Sterling 16 16 - - -
US dollar 80 80 - - -
Kaorean Wan 5 7] - - -
Singapore dollar 19 19 - - —
New Taiwan dollar 13 13 - - -
Awustrahan dollar 13 13 - - -
New Zealand dollar 35 35 - - -
Malaysian Ringgit 12 12 - - -
Euro 156 15 - - -
Others 35 35 - - -
Non Intsrest Baaring
Sterling 16 16 - - -
US dollar 13 8 - - 5
Korean Won - - - - -
Singapore doilar 34 34 - - -
New Taiwan dollar - - - - -
Malaysian Ringgit 1 1 - - -
Euro 1 1 - - -
Others 7 7 - - -
triterest Bearing Cash Pool deposits
Singapore dollar 60 60 - - -
US dollar - - - - -
Total cash and other financisl assets 475 470 - - 5
Interest Bearing Cash Pool Overdrsfts
Sterling - - - - -
US dollar {60} (60) - - -
Euro - - - - -
Japanese Yen (14) {14) - - -
Hong Kong dollar (32) {32} - - -
Ncen Iinterest Bearing Cash Pool Overdrafts
Sterling {13) (13) - - -
US dollar - - - _ -
Singapore dollar - - - - -
Total overdrafts (Note 20} (M) {n9) - - -
358 351 - - 5
Repressnted by:
Cash and cash equivalents 351
Other financial assets {non-currant) {Note 16) 5
356
(b} Liquidity risk

Ligudity risk is the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financal obligations as they fall due The Group's approach to
managing iquidity 1s 10 ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient iguidity to meet 1ts labwlites when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incumng unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group’s reputation
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The following are the contractual matunties of financial liabilities, including estmated interest payments using the interest rates
prevailing as at the reponting date

Contractual meturities of financial liabilitiss

Carrying  Contractuai 6 months 6-12 12 2-5 More than
amount cash flows or lass months years years 5 years
31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m €m Em £m
Floating rate financial habilities
Secured loans 67 72 2 2 8 63 -
Unsecured loans 526 540 58 265 87 162 -
Unsecured bonds 1686 m 30 1 74 68 -
Bank overdrafts 3 4 4 - - -
Fixed rate financial habilities
Unsecured loans 87 105 2 81 1 81 -
Unsecured bonds 58 63 - 1 1 81 -
Trade and othar payables
Trade payables 23 3 19 4 - - -
Other creditors 16 16 18 - - - -
Non-current habilittes
Other non-current habilities " n - - 1 2
967 1,005 129 324 139 405
Contractual maturittes of financral iabiiities
Carrymg  Contractual 6 months 6-12 12 25 More than
amount cash flows or less months years years 5 years
Restated 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Foating rate financial liabilities
Secured loans 77 88 2 2 4 80 -
Unsecured loans 256 266 2 38 180 46 -
Ungecured bonds 26 1M 1 1 8 n -
Bank overdrafts 1 1 1 - - -
Fixed rate financial habilities
Unsecured loans 45 52 1 1 1 49 -
Unsecured bonds 91 S8 1 34 2 81 -
Trade and other payables
Trade payables b3 21 19 2
Amounts owed to associates 3 3 3 - - - -
QOther creditors -] 5 5 - - - -
Forward cross currency contracts
designated as cash flow hedges 1 1 1 - - - -
Non-current habilitias
Other non-current habilies 8 8 - - 2 5 1
604 644 36 78 217 312 1
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Undrawn committed borrowing facilities

At 31 December 2014, the Group had £255m (2013 £255m) of undrawn and commutted facilities available, compnsing committed
fevolving credit faciliies which provide the Group with financial flexibility Matunties of these facihties are set outn the following table

The conditions precedent to the availability of thase facilities are all satisfied at the balance sheet date

Restated

2014 2013

£m £m

Exprring in one year or less 169 9
Exptring after more than one year but not more than two years 16 143
Expiring after more than two years but not more than five years 70 103
Expinng after more than five years - -
Total undrawn commutted borrowing facilities 255 255

Security
Included wathin the Group's total bank loans and overdrafts of £693m (2013 £485m) are £70m {2013 £77m) of secured loans and
overdrafts Total bonds and notes payable of £224m (2013 £187m) are unsecured

Loans, bonds and notes are secured on land and buldings with a carrying value of £283m (2013 £280m} and an assignment of
nsurance proceeds in respect of insurances over the mortgaged properties

Of the Group's total facilittes of £1,188m, £575m matures dunng 2015, compnsing £29m unsecured bonds, £196m committed
revolving credit faalties, £45m uncornmutied faalibes and overdralis subject to annual renewal, £303m unsecured term loans and
£2m secured term loans. Plans for refinancing of matunng facilities are underway

{c} Market risk
Market risk 1s the nsk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange ratas, interast rates and equity pricas will affect the

Group's Income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments

The pnmary objectives of the treasury function are to prowvide secure and competitively priced funding for the activities of the Group
and to identify and manage financial nisks, including exposure to movements in interest and foreign exchange rates ansing from those
activities If appropnate, the Group uses financial instruments and dervatives to manage thesa rnisks, as set out below

(i} Foreign cumency risk
The Group 18 exposed to foreign currency nsk on revenue, purchases, borrowings and cash deposits denominatad in currencies

other than the functional curencies of the respective Group entities The currencies giving nse to this risk are primanly US dollars,
Singapore dollars, New Zsaland dollars, New Tamwan dollars, Korean won, Chinese ranminbs, Japanese yen and Euro

The Group's principal policy, wherever possible, 1 to maintain a natural hedge whereby kabilities are matched with assets
denominated in the same currency Foreign currency investmant exposure 1s also mimirmised by borrowing in the currency of the
investment

To mutigate foreign currency translation exposure, an appropnate proportion of net assets are designated as hedged against
corresponding financial llabilities in the same currancy
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Net investment hedging

The Group has US$429m {2013 US$164m) US dollar loans and overdrafts, €61m {2013 €nil) Euro loans and overdrafts, ang
JPY3,704m (2013 JPY2,373m) Japanese yen overdrafts designated as hedges of corresponding respective proportions of its net
invastment in foreign operations whose functional currencies are US dollars, Euros and Japanese yen The nsk being hedged is the
foreign currency exposure on the carrying amount of the net assets of the foreign operation upon consolidation The fair value of the
hedging mstruments as at 31 December 2014 was £343m (2013 £113m)

There was no ineffectiveness recogmised In the consolidated income statement that arose from hedges of net Investments in foreign
operations

An analysis of borrowings by currency and therr fair values as at 31 December 1s given below

31 Dacember 2014 Rastated 31 December 2013

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Em £m £m £m

Singapore dollar 204 204 197 197
Australia dollar 49 49 50 50
US dollar 438 4338 193 193
New Zealand dollar 34 M 41 41
Chinese renminbi 36 38 36 36
Japanese yan 89 89 43 43
New Taiwan dollar 10 10 6 6
Korgan Won 21 n - -
Euro 36 38 - -
817 917 566 566

Exchange differences ansing on foreign currency loans during each accounting penod are recognised as a component of equity, to the
axtent that the hedge 1s effective The foreign exchange exposure ansing on the Group’s net Investment in its subsidianes 1s expected
to be highly effective In offsetting the exposura ansing on the Group's foreign currency borrowings

Foreign currency transaction exposure 1s primarnly managed through funding of purchases from operating 1ncome streams ansing In
the same currency

Hedging of transaction exposure is undertaken wiath approved counterparties and within designated imits, using spot or short-

term forward contracts to buy or sell the currency concamed, once the tirming and the underlying amount of exposure have been
determined Foreign exchange dervatives may also be used to hadge specific transaction exposure where appropnate Thers are no
foreign exchange denvatives In place at 31 December 2014

The following significant exchange rates apphed dunng the year

Average rate Closing rate

204 2013 204 2013
US dollar 1848 1569 1558 18647
Singapore dollar 2.087 1363 2.059 2088
New Taiwan dollar 49.938 46.634 49.419 49 450
New Zealand dollar 1890 1917 o 203
Malaysian nnggit 8391 4953 5.442 5419
Korean won 1.72198 1,713 18 1,708.55 1,735 49
Chinese renminb 10138 9648 9.684 9999
Euro 1240 1179 1278 1197
Japanese yen 173.850 152194 18234 172 545
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Sensitivity analysis
With respect to the Group's foreign currency exposure, and assuming that all other vanables, in particular interest rates, remain

constant, 1t 1s estimated that a8 10% strengthening of sterling against the following currencies at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013 10%) would have decreased eguity and profit before tax by the amounts shown below

31 Decambar 2014 Restated 31 Dacember 2013

Profit Profit

Equrty before tax Equity before tax

£m Em £m £m

US dollar 6 k)] (8 1
Austrahan dollar {1} - (1 -
Singaporae dollar 4 1:1] (n (19}
New Taiwan dollar - - - -
New Zealand dollar - @ - (2}
Malaysian ringgit - - - m
Korean won - - - (1}
Euro {2} - - -
Chinese renminbi (3) - {3) -
Hong Kong dollar - 2 {1 {1)
Thai baht (2) - {1) -
Japanese Yen - ) - -
2 {18} {15} {23)

A 10% weakening of sterling agamst the above currencies at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013 10%) would have had the equal
but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other vanables reman constant

() Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

The Group adopts a policy of ongoing review of s exposure to changes in interest rates on its borrowings, taking into account rmarket
expectations with regard to the perceived level of nsk assocated with each currency, the matunty profile and cash flows of the
undertying debt, and the extent to which debt may potentally be erther prepaid pnor to its matunty or refinanced at reduced cost

The Group's policy Is to maintain a mixture of 1ts financial kabihities on a fixed and floating-rate basis with a greater emphasis on
floating rates presently as this flexibility 1s considered to be appropriate in the context of the Group's overall geograph:cal dversity,
investrmeant and business cycle and the stability of the income streams, cash balances and loan covenants

Interest rate dernvatives are used to manage nterest rate nisk, to the extant that the perceved cost 1s considered to outwegh the
henefit from the flexibility of vanable rate borrowings, and the Group actively monitors the need and timing for such denvatives Where
used, interest rate denvatives are classified as cash flow hedges and stated at far value withun the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position Further details of interest rate dervatives in place at 31 December 2014 are provided below

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Assuming that all other vanables, in particular foreign currency rates, remamn constant, a change of one percentage pomnt in the
average interast rates applicable to vanable rate instruments for the year would have increased/{decreased) the Group's profit befors
tax for the year as shown below

Restated
31 Decamber 2014 31 December 2013
1% incroase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
£m £fm Em Em
Vanable rate financial assets 3 ) 3 (3)
Vanable rate financial habilities (8} 8 (6} 6
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (s} s (3) 3

Miflennium & Copthome Hotels ple Annuat report and accounts 2014




Overview Strategic report Govemance Financisl statements Further information
121
{d) Fawrvalue
Set out below 1s a comparnison of the fair and book values of all the Group's financial Instruments by category Fair values are
determined by reference to market values, where avallable, or calculated by discounting cash flows at prevaling interest rates
Restated Restated
2014 04 2013 2013
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
Financiel assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand 228 239 239
Short-term depaosits 289 289 231 231
Cash pool overdrafts (128) {125) (mg) (119}
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted equity investments avalable-for-sale 5 ] 5 5
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables 80 50 32 32
Trade receivables due from joint ventures and associates - - 1 1
Other recaivables 24 24 14 14
4an an 403 403
Financial habilities
Overdrafts and borrowings {917 (917) {566} {566)
Trade payables (23) (23) (21} (21)
Amounts owed to associates - - {3 {3)
Other creditors (16} (18} 5) {5}
Other non-current liabilites {11) (1) (8 {8)
Forward cross currency contracts designated as cash flow hedges - - (1 {1
(987) {967} (604) (604)

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial mstruments reflected in

the table

Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts are either marked to market using listed market prices or by discounting the contractual forward price
and deducting the current spot rate For interest rate swaps, bank vatuations are used

Interest-bearing loans and bormowings

Fair value Is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows
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Finance lease liabilities

The fair value 1s estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at market interest rates for similar lease agreements
The estimated fair values reflect changes in interest rates

Trade and other receivables/payables

For recewvables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the notional amount 1s deemed to reflect the far value All other
recevables/payables are discounted to determine the fair value

Interest rates used for determining fair valuo
Prevailing market interest rates are used to discount cash flows to determmne the far value of financial assets and liabilities

Available-for-sale financial assets — unquoted equrty investments

Fair value 1s estimated using appropnate valuation techriques

Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 December 2014, the Group held certain financial iInstruments measured at farr value

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique
Level 1 quoted {unadusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or Labiliies

Level 2 other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, erther directly or
indirectly

Level 3 techniques that use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market
data

2014 Lavel 1 Lovel 2 Lovel 3
Assels measured at farr value tm £m £m £m
Available-for-sale finanmal assets
Unquoted equity iInvestments available-for-sale 8 - - ]
8 - - 8
Restated
2013 Lavel 1 Lovel 2 Lavel 3
Assets measured at fair value £m Em Em £m
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted equity invaestments available-for-sale 5 - -
5 - -
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2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 2

Liabiities measured at far value £m £m £m £m

Forward cross currency contracts designated as cash flow hedges - - - -
Restated

2013 Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3

Liabilities measurad at fair value £m £m £m fm

Forward cross currency contracts designated as cash flow hedges 1 - 1 -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, thers were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 far value measurements, and no
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measures

Caprtal management

The Board's policy Is to maintain a strong capital base so as to mamntain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business The Company’s objective for managing its capital I1s to ensure that Group entities will be able

to continue as 2 going concern while maximising the return to shareholders, as well as sustaining the future development of its
business In order to mantain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may alter the total amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares, draw down additional debt or reduce debt

The Group's capital structure consists of debt, which includes the loans and borrowings disclosed in Note 21, cash and cash
equnalents disclosed in Note 20 and the equity atinbutable to the parent, comprising share caprtal, reserves and retained eamings, as
disclosed m the consolidated statement of changes 1n equity. The Group seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and secunty afforded by a sound capital position

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, CDLHT wich 1s a stapled group comprising CDL Hosprtality Real Estate Investment Trust ("H-REIT™)
and CDL Hospitality Business Trust ("HBT"), & business trust, 1S required to maintam certain minimum base capital and financial
resources H-REIT 1s subject to the aggregate leverage himit as defined in the Property Fund Appendix of the Code on Collective
Investment Schemes (“CIS Code”) 1ssued by Monatary Authonty of Singapore The CIS Cade stipulates that the total borrowtngs and
defarred payments {together the “Aggregate Leverage”) of a property fund should not exceed 35 0% of its Deposited Property axcept
that the Aggregate Leverage of a property fund may exceed 35 0% of its Deposited Property (up to a maximum of 60 0%) if a credi
rating of the property fung from Fitch Inc, Moody's or Standard and Poor's is obtained and disclosed to the public The property fund
should continue to mamtain and disclose a credit rating so long as its Aggregate Leverage exceeds 35 0% of its Deposited Property

For this financial year, H-REIT has a credit rating of BBB- from Fitch Inc The Aggregate Leverage of H-REIT as at 31 December 2014
was 3179% (2013 29 7%) of H-REIT's Deposited Property This complied with the aggregate leverage imit as described above

HBT, H-REIT and CDLHT have comphied with the borrowing mit requirements imposed by the relevant Trust Deeds and all externally
imposed capital requirements for the financial years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013

Except for the above, nerther the Company nor any of its subsidianes are subject to externally imposed capital requirements
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23 Employee benefits

Pension arrangements

The Group operates various funded pension schemes which are established in accordance with local conditions and practices within
the countries concerned The most significant funds are described below

United Kingdom

The pension arrangements in the United Kingdom operate under the ‘Millennium & Copthorne Pension Plan’, which was set up

in 1993 The plan operates a funded defined benefit arrangement together with a defined contribution plan, both with different
categones of membership The defined benefit section of the plan was closed to new entrants in 2001 and at the same time nghts to
a guaranteed minimum pension {"GMP*) under the defined contribution scheme also ceased The plan entitles a retired employee to

recewve an annual penston payment

The contributions required are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of trienmnial valuations using the projected unit credit
mathod The last full actuaral valuation of this scheme was carned out by a qualified independent actuary as at 5 Apnl 2014 and this
has been updated on an approximate basis to 31 December 2014 The contnbutions of the Group during the year were 24 % (2013

21%} of pensionable salary

As the defined benefit section 1s closed to new entrants, the current service cost, as a percentage of pensionable payroll 1s likely to
ncrease as the membership ages, although 1t will be applied to a decreasing pensionable payroll The assumptions which have the
most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to mortality, the discount rate and the rates of increase in

salanes and pensions

South Korea

The Group cperates a defined benefit pension plan for its employees in South Korea The contnbutions required are deterrmined by an
external quahfied actuary using the projacted unit credit method The most recent valuation was carrted out on 31 December 2014
The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuations are those relating to the discount rate and rate

of increase in salaries

Taiwan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan for its employees inTarwan The contnbutions required are determined by an
external qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method The most recent valuation was carmmed out on 31 December 2014
The contnbutions of the Group were 6% (2013 6%) of the employees’ earnings The assumptions which have the most significant
effact on the results of the valuations are those relating to the discount rate and rate of increase in salanas

The defined benefit plans are adm:nistered by pension funds that are legally separated from the Group The boards of the pension
funds are required by law to act in the best interests of the plan partcipants

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuanal nsks, such as longevity nsk, currency nsk, nterast rate nsk and market
investrnent nsk

The above plans are substantially funded by the Group’s subsidianes The funding requirements are based on the pension funds’
actuanal measurement framework set out In the funding policies of the plans
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The assets of each scheme have been taken at market value and the liabilities have been calculated using the following principal
assumptions
2014 2013
2014 South 2014 2013 South 2013
UK Korea Talwan UK Korea Tarwan
Inflation rate 32% 30% - 36% 30% -
Dhscount rate 37% 28% 2.0% 4 5% 43% 2 0%
Rate of salary increase 3.7% 50% 3.0% 4 1% 50% 30%
Rate of pension increases 3.2% - - 36% - -
Rate of revaluation 22% - - 26% - -
Annual expected return on plan assets 37% 2.8% 2.0% 4 5% 43% 20%

The assumptions used by the actuanes are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuanial assumptions, which due

to the timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne outin practice The present values of the schemes’ liabilities are derved from
cash flow projections over long pericds and are inherently uncertain The expected annual return on UK defined benefit plan assets for
2014 was 3 7% (2013 4 5%)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuartal assumptions holding other assumptions consistent,
would have altered the defined benefit cbhigation by the amounts shown below

Deafined benefit obligation

e 20 2013 2013

Increase Decresss Increase Decrease

[+2] £m Em £m

Discount rate (1% movement) ") 1“ {19) 24
Rate of salary increase {1% mavement} 3 @) 12 {10)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distnbution of cash flows expected under the plans, it does provide an
approximation of the sensitvity of the assumptions shown

Amounts recognised on the balance sheet are as follows

bt 2013
204 South 2014 w4 204 2013 South 2013 2013 2013

ux Kores Talwan Other Total UK Korea Taswan Other Total

tm B _l?n tm m tm €m £m Em £m £m
Prasent value of funded
obligations 80 7 ] 1 e 55 4 9 1 69
Fair value of plan assets (54) (1] (4) - (.3)] {45) {3) {3) - (51)
Plan deficit/{surplus) 8 4 4 1 13 10 1 1] 1 18
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Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows

2014 2013
2014 South 2014 2014 2014 2013 South 2013 2013 2013
UK Korea Talwan Other Totei UK Korea Tarwan Other Total
£m £m £m &m £m £m fm £fm £rn fm
Balance at 1 January 85 4 ] 1 a9 51 3 10 1 65
Current service cost 1 1 - - 2 1 1 - - 2
Interest cost 2 - - - 2 2 - - - 2
Benefits paid, death
N service INsurance
premiums and expenses (1 - 4] - {2) 2) - mn - {3)
Remeasurement losses/
{gains) arising from
- Financial assumptions 4 - - - 4 3 - - 1) 2
- Experience adjustment {1} - - - (1} - - - - -
Foreign exchange
adjustments - 2 - - 2 - - - 1 1
Balance at 31 December 60 7 8 1 76 55 4 9 1 69
Changes 1n the fair value of plan assets are as follows
2014 2013
2014 South 2014 014 2013 South 2013 2013
ux Kores Taiwan Tota! UK Korea Taiwan Total
£m £m tm fm £m Em £m £Em
Balance at 1 January 45 3 3 L] ] 42 3 3 48
Interest ncome 2 - - 2 2 - - 2
Group contributions 2 - 1 3 2 - 1 3
Benefits paid L} - n @) {2) - {n {3)
Remeasurement gains ansing
from
- Return on plan assets excluding
interest income ] - - ] - - 1
Forergn exchange adjustments - - 1 1 - - - -
Balance at 31 December 54 3 4 )] 45 3 3 51
Actual return on plan assets 7 - - 7 3 - - 3
The fair vaiuas of plan assets in each category are as follows
2014 2013
204 Sousth e 04 2013 South 2013 2013
UK Kores Taiwan Total UK Korea Taiwan Total
o [ ] tm fm E£m £m £m £m
Equities n - - n 20 - - 20
Bonds F - - 2 1 - - 1
Cash and cash equivalents n 3 4 - 24 30
54 3 4 L) 45 3 51
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The expense recogrised in the income statement is as follows

2014 2013
2014 South 2014 2014 2074 2013 South 2013 2013 2013
UK Kores Talwan Other Total UK Korea Taiwan Other Total
£fm &m £m £m m £fm £m Em £m £m
Current service cost 1 1 - - 2 1 1 - - 2
Interest cost 2 - - - 2 2 - - - 2
Interest income (2} - - - 2 (2} - -~ - 2)
1 1 - - 2 1 1 - - 2
Total cost 1s recogrused within the following iterns In the income statement
2014 2013
£m Em
Cost of sales 1 1
Admunistrative expenses 1 1
2 2
The gans or fosses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows
204 2013
2004 South 2004 2014 20w 2012 South 2013 2013 2013
UK Korsa Telwan Other Total UK Korea Taiwan Other Total
fm £m tm £&m [+ £m £m Em Em £m

Actual return lass

expected return on plan

assets 8 - - - (1 1 - - - 1
Remeasuremaent (losses)/

gains ansing from

- Financial assumptions {4) - - - (4) (3) - - 1 2)
- Expenence adjustment 1 - - - 1

Defined bensfit plan
remeasurement gaing/

{losses) 3 - - - 3 2) - - 1 (1
2014 2013
Actuanal losses recognised diractly in equity are as follows ) ) o tm £m
Cumulative ag at 1 January 18 17
Remeasuremaent losses recognised dunng the year (3) 1
Cumulative as at 31 December 1% 18

Millennium & Copthome Hotals ple Annual report and accounts 2014




128 Financial statements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

Mortality rates used reflect an industry wide recogrition that life expectancy has increased The ife expectancies underlying the value
of the accrued labiliies for the UK Plan, based on retirement age of 65, are as follows

2014 2013

Yeans Years

Males 25 25
Females n 27

The weighted-average duration of the defined beneftt obligations as at 31 Decermber 2014 was 26 years (2013 26)
The Group expects £3m In contributions to be paid to the defined beneft plans In 2015

Share-based payments

The Group operatas a number of share option schemes which are designed to link remuneration to the future performance of the
Group Detalls of these schemes are given in the Remuneration Committee report

In accordance with the Group's accounting policy 2 3N(iv) on share-based payment transactions, the fair value of share options and
long-term Incentive awards 1s recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding Increase In equity The fair value 1s measured
at grant date and spread over the penod dunng which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the share options and long-
term incentive awards

The charge to the income statement for the year was £nil {2013 £1m}

The Group has appbed IFRS 2 to its active employee share-based payment amangements from 1 January 2005 except for
ammangements granted before 7 Novermnber 2002

M Millennium & Copthome Hotels pic Long-Termn Incentive Plan
Performance Share Awards under this scheme are awarded to Executive Directors and senior management of the Group

Awards Awsards Awards Awards Awards Awards Crodited to Credrited

outstanding awarded vestad forfeited axpired outstanding share to share
asst durnng the during during the during ssnt capital premium Vesting
Date of Award 1.Jan 2014 yoar the yaar year the year 31 Deo 204 £m £m date
2811 2011 635,119 - {304,170} (30,264}  (300,685) - - - 28M2014
16 08 2012 553,543 - - (62,208} - 491,338 - - 16082015
1109 2013 463,643 - - (56,432} - 4072an - - 1092016
2111 2013 2517 - - (4,082} - 2,053 - - 21M2n6
04 04 2014 - 659,027 - (10,417} - a0 - - 04042017

1.677422 659,027  (304,170) (163,383}  (300,685) 1588211 - -
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i}  Millennium & Copthome Hotels ple 2003 Executive Share Option Scheme
Share options under this scheme were granted to the Executive Director and semior management of the Group
Proceeds on
exercise of options.
during the year
Exercise Options Options Options Options Options Creditedto Credited to
price outstanding exercised expired forfarted outstanding share share
Date of grant of per share as at durning during durnng as at capital pramum Exarcise
options £ 1Jan2014 the year the year the year 31Dec 2014 £m £m penod
Part Il
{Unapproved)
2403 2008 -
24 03 2005 39842 13.891 (3,310} - - 10,581 - - 2303 2015
{iii} Millennium & Copthoma Hotels pic 2006 Sharesave Scheme
Share options under this scheme are granted to UK based employees
Proceeds on
exercise of options
dunng the year
Exgrcise Opuons Options Options Options QOpuons Options  Creditedto  Credited to
Date of prnce  outstanding granted axercised forfeited expired  outstanding share share
grant per share asat during dunng duning dunng st capital promium Exercise
of options £ 1 Jan 2014 the year the year the year theyear 31 Dea 2074 £m £m pencd
2003 2008 3.2800 204 - - - {204) - - -  0o7r2:M3-
n1za2m3
0104 2009 15400 32312 - (32312} - - - - - 082014 -
31012015
0104 2010 33000 1,320 - - - {1,320 - - - o8 2013~
31012014
0104 2010 3.3000 2,166 - - - - 1.168 - - 01082015~
3101.2018
T9 04 2011 4 1800 21,790 - (18,252} {690} - 2.843 - - 0082014~
3tota2ms
19 04 2011 41800 7348 - - - - e - - 0082018~
o207
1904 2012 38800 45,337 - - {2,029) - 02.29% - - 0Ot082015-
3101208
1904 2012 3 8800 9,816 - - - - 810 - - 01082017 -
a2ng
19 04 2013 4 4800 52,867 - - {1,603) - 1.204 - - 010826~
3t1012m7
19 04 2013 4 4800 6,694 - - - - 004 - - Mo8.2018-
2019
08 05 2014 4 4600 - 96,757 - {12,589} - 54,108 - -~ 0108 2017 -
3t 28
08 05 2014 4 4600 - 7934 - (269) - 1063 - - (M08 2019~
31012020

179,855 104,691 {50,564} (27,190) (1,524} 203288

The weighted average share pnce at the dates of exercise of share optrons In the year was £5 84 (213 £5 58}

The options outstanding at the yearend have an exercise price in the rangs of £3 30 to £4 48 (2013 £154 to £4 48) and a weighted
average contractual life of 17 years (2013 17 years)
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The following awardsfoptions were granted in the current year and comparative year

Awards/options

granted

Share price

pravailing
ondateof Exercise Expected Expected FRisk-free
Date of Non- grant price Fair value term Expected didend interest
2014 Awsrds/options grant  Directors Directors £ £ £ {years} wvolatility yield rates
LTIP - EPS 04 04 2014 86,898 242,616 557 - 517 300 - 24% -
LTIP - TSR {(FTSE 250) 04 04 2014 26,069 72,785 557 - 161 300 16 5% 24% 10%
LTIP - TSR (hotels) 04042014 26,089 72785 557 - 246 300 224% 24% 10%

to 49 5%
LTIP - NAV 04 04 2014 34,760 97,045 557 - 517 300 - 2 4% -
Sharesave Scheme {3 year) 06 05 2014 - 986,757 556 446 128 325 22 9% 24% 14%
Sharesave Scheme (5 year) 06052014 - 7934 556 446 180 525 331% 24% 20%
Awards/optnons
granted

Share price

prevailing
ondateof Exercise Expected Expected Risk-free
Date of Non- grant pnce  Fair value term Expected dividend nterest
2013 Awards/options grant Directors Directors £ {years} wvolatility yvield ratas
LTIP -EPS 11.09 2013 87917 144,689 562 - 522 300 - 24% -
LTIP -EPS 21 N.2m3 - 12558 5.88 - 548 300 - 23% -
LTIP - TSR (FTSE} 11.09.2013 82917 144,650 562 - 208 300 238% 24% 06%
LTIP - TSR (FTSE} 21.11.2013 - 12559 588 - 222 300 208% 23% 05%
Sharesave Scheme {3 year] 1304 2013 - 62344 560 448 134 325 2711% 24% 04%
Sharesave Scheme {5 year) 1904 2013 - 6,694 560 448 201 525 413% 2 4% 08%

Meoasurement of fair value

The LTIP and Sharesave awards, which are subject to an EPS performance condition, were valued using the Black-Scholes valuation
method The LTIP awards which are subject to a share price related performance condition (1 @ TSR) were valued using the Monts

Carlo valuation method

The option pncing model involves six variables

s Exercise pnce

= Share pnce at grant

* Expected term

+ Expected volatility of share pnce
Risk-free interast rate

Expected dvidend yiald
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24 Provisions
Beying
Dilapidation Legal indemnity Total

£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 2 4 7 13
Additions - 1 - 1
Released {1) - - ]
Belance at 31 December 2014 1 5 7 13
Analysed as
Non-current provision - - 7 7
Current provision 1 5 - 6
Total provision 1 5 7 13

Provision for fegal fees as at 31 December 2014 of £5m {2013 £4m) relates to disputes in several hotels The Group alse provided
£7m (2013 £7m) of tax indemnity to the former shareholders of Grand Millennium Hotel Beijing in which it acquired an additronal 40%
interest n 2010 During the year, a £1m dilapidation provision relating to the cost to be incurred on termination of a leasehold asset
has been released

25 Other non-current liabilities

Restated
2014 2013
&m fm
Deferred ncome - -
Qther labilities 1"
"
26 Deferred taxation
Movements in deferred tax labilibes and assets (pnor to offsetting balances) dunng the year are as follows
___ Charged/icredited) to incoma statement
Restated Other
At sdjustment At
1 January Change n to opening  Current year Chargedto Exchangeon 3V0December
2014 tax rate provision movamant rasarves translation 204
Em ) £m . Em Em £€m £Em tm
Deferred tax linbilltiss
Property assets’ 3 3 {2) 7 - 7 48
2N 3 {2) 7 - 7 248
Defarred tax assets
Tax losses {18 - 2 ] - mn {18)
Employee benefits? 4) - - - - - a)
Othars {3 - {1 {1 - - L]
{23) - 1 {2) - m {23}
Nat deferred tax liabilities 208 3 {1} 5 - 6 n

1 Properny assets compnsa plant, property and 8quIpmernt, leese prarmum prapayment and investment propertes Rastatad 10 inciude deferred tax relsting to COLHT
2 Emploves bensafits compnse defined benefit pension schemes and share-based payment amangements
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Deferred tax assets and Labilities are offset when there ts a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
habilines and when deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised In respect of the following items because it 1s not probable that future taxable profit will
be avallable against which the Group can utilise the benefits

Restated

2014 2013

£m E£m

Tax losses 1 1
Adjustments due to

- Deductible temporary differences in raspect of prior year 1 2

—Tax losses in respect of prior year 12 14

4 17

The deductible temporary differances do not expire under current tax legislanon The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax
authonities and complianca with tax regulations in the respective countries in which certain subsidianes cperate

The gross tax losses with expiry dates are as follows

Restated
2014 2013
m Em

Expiry dates
—within 1 to 5 years n 22
— after 5 years - -
- no expiry date a2 60
n 82

At 31 December 2014, a deferred tax liability of £10m {2013 £10m} relating to undistnbuted reserves of overseas subsidianes, joint
ventures and associates of £1,440m (2013 £739m) has not been recognised because the Group determined that the distributions will
not be made and the liability will not be incurred in the foreseeable future

27 Trade and other payables

Restated

0 2013

tm £m

Trade payables 2 21

Amounts owed to assoctates - 3
Other creditors including taxation and social secunty

- Social secunty and other taxes 8 5

- Value added tax and similar sales taxes 14 13

- Other credstors 18 6

Accruals M3 90

Deferred income 20 14

Rental and other deposits 4 4

1w 156

The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity nsks related to trade and other payables are disclosed in Note 22
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28 Dividends
2014 2013 2014 2013
pencs pence m £m
Final ordinary dividend paid 1.51 151 7 37
Final special dividend paid 915 - 30 -
Interim ordinary dnidend pad 208 208 (] 7
Total dividends paid 21 1359 73 44
Subsequent to 31 December 2014, the Directors declared the following final dwvidends, which have not been provided for
2014 2013 2014 2013
pence pence €m £m
Final ordinary dividend 11.561 1561 41 37
Final special dividend - 915 - 30
All dwvidends paid during 2014 and 2013 were In cash
29 Share capital
Number of
30p shares
alfotted,
cailled up
and fully pad
Balance at 1 January 2014 324,618,187
lssue of ordinary shares on exercise of share options 63,874
Balancs st 31 Decamber 2014 324,872,061

All of the share capital 1s equity share capital

At the year end, options over 215,849 ordinary shares remain outstanding and are exercisable between now and 31 January 2020 at
exercise prices between £3 30 and £4 48 In addition, awards made under the LTIP up to 1,568,211 ordinary shares remain unvested
and may potentialty vest between 11 September 2016 and 4 Apnil 2017

Curing the year Millennium & Copthorne Hotals plc 1ssued invitations to UK employees under the Sharesave Scheme to enter into a
three-year savings contract or a five-year savings contract with an option to purchase sharas at an option price of £4 46 on expiry of
the savings contract

30 Resarves

Cash fiow hedge reserve

The hedging reserve compnsas the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow instruments retated to
the hedged transactions that have not yet occurred (net of tax)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnsas all foreign exchange differences ansing from the transtation of the financial statements of foreign
aperations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group's net investment in foregn operations (net of tax)
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Treasury share reserve

An employee benefit trust established by the Group held 5,758 shares at 31 December 2014 (2013 54,985) to satisfy the vesting

of awards under the LTIP During the year 252,590 shares {2013 nil} were purchased by the trust At 31 December 2014, the cost of
shares held by the trust was £32,093 (2013 £299,366), whilst the market value of these shares at 31 December 2014 was £33,943
{2013 £329,910) Shares purchased by the trust are treated as treasury shares which are deducted from equity and excluded from the
calculations of earnings per share

31 Financial commitments

Restated

2014 2013

em £m

{a) Capital commitments at the end of the financial year which are contracted but not provided for 25 129

The Group's share of the capital commitments of joint ventures and associates 1s shown in Note 15

(b} Total commitments under non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable by the Group as follows

Restated

2014 2013

£m £m

- less than one year 8 9

— between one and five years 30 30

—more than five years 140 148

179 187

{c} The Group leases out Its properties under operating ieases The future mimimum lease rentals recevable by the Group under
non-cancellable leases are as follows

Restated
2013

£m

25

72

41

138

- less than one year
- between one and five years
- more than five years

%lans|sf

Future mimimum lease rentals recevable under non-cancellable leasas includes all future rentals receivable up to the period when
those leases expire or become cancellable

Dunng the ysar ended 31 Decernber 2014, £37m was recognised as rental income n the income statement (2013 £37m) and £1m
{2013 £1m} in raspect of repairs and maintenance was recognised as an expense (N the Income statement relating to investment
propertias
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32 Contingencies and subsequent events

{al In the course of its operations the Group is routinely exposed to potential habilies for claims made by employees and
contractual or tortious clams made by third parties No material losses are anticipated from such exposures There were no
contingent liabililes or guarantees other than those ansing in the ordinary course of business and on these no material losses
are anticipated The Group has insurance cover up to certain imits for major nisks an property and major claims in connection
waith legal liabilites anising in the course of its operattons Otherwise the Group generally carres 1ts own nsk The Group believes
that the accruals and prowisions carned on the balance sheet are sufficient to cover these risks

Other than the above transactions, there are no events subsequent to the balance sheet date which require adjustments to
or disclosure within these consolidated financial statements

33 Related parties

Identrty of related parties

Transactions between the Company and Its subsidianes hava been eliminated on consalidation and are not disclosed In this note
Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below All transactions with related parties were
entered nto In the normal course of business and at amm's length

The Group has a related party relationship with its jont ventures, associates and with its Directors and executive officers

Transactions with ultimate holding company and other related companies

The Group has a retated party relationship with certain subsidianes of Hong Leong investrment Holdings Pte Ltd (*Hong Leong™)
which 1s the ulimate holding and controlling company of Millennium & Copthome Hotels pic and holds 619% {2013 59%! of the
Company’s shares via City Developments Limited {*CDL), the intermediate holding company of the Group Dunng the year ended
31 December 2014, the Group had the following transactions with those subsidianes

The Group depesited certain surplus cash with Hong Leong Finance Limited, a subsidiary of Hong Leang, on normal commercial
terms As at 31 December 2014, £30m (2013 £17m) of cash was deposited with Hong Leong Finance Limited

Fees paid/payable by the Group to CDL and its other subsidianes were £2m {2013 £2m} which included rentals paid for the Grand
Shanghai restaurant and Kings Centre, property management faes for Tangfin Shopping Centre and Glyndebourne in Singapore,
charges for car parking, leasing commuission and professional services

As at 31 December 2014, City e-Solutions Limited {*CES"), a subsidiary of CDL held 1,152,031 (2013 1.,152,031) orchinary shares
in M&C CES through its subsidianes provided consultancy, management and reservation services to MA&C for the year ended
31 December 2014 for a total of £1m {2013 £nil)

Transactions with joint venture
Crty Hotels Pte Ltd, a 100% subsidiary of the Group, provided a shareholder loan faciity of $50m Thai Baht (E10m) to Fena Estate
Company Limited {“Fena~), its 50% owned joint venture At 31 December 2014 and 2013 all of this faciity was fully drawn The

(oan attracts interest of 4 5% (2013 4 5%} per annum This interest was rolied up into the carrying value of the loan The total loan
outstanding as at 31 December 2014, including rolled up interest, was 730mThai Baht {£14m) (2013 705m Thai Baht (£13m)}

The Group provided a further US$2m (E1m} (23 USE2m (E1mh operator loan facility to Fena which was fully drawn down at

31 December 2014 The loan attracts interest of 2 2% (2013 2 2%) per annum This was rolled up inte the carrying value of the loan
Full imparrment charge was made by the Group for the interest receivable
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Tra nsactions wrth key management personnel

The beneficial Interest of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company was 0 04% (2013 0 04%)

In addition to ther salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to Directors and executive officers, and contributes to a post-
employment defined contribution plan depending on the date of commmencement of employment The defined contnibution plan does

not have a specified pension payable on retirement and benefits are determined by the extent to which the individual’s fund can buy
an annuity in the market at retirement

Executive officers also participate in the Group’s share option programme, Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Group's Sharesave
schemes

The key management personnel compensation 1s as follows

2014 2013

tm £m

Short-term employee benefits ] 5
Share-based payment - 1
6 6

Directors 2 3
Executives 4 3
[] 6
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The companies listed below are those which were part of the Group at 31 Decermber 2014 and which, in the opinion of the Directors,
significantly affected the Group's results and net assets durnng the year The Directors consider that those companies not listed are
not significant in relation to the Group as a whole

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption i $410 of the Comparies Act 2006 to disclose a list compnsing solely the
principal subsidianes A full bist of subsidiaries will be sent to Companies House with the next annual retum of Millennium &

Copthorne Hotels plc

These companies operate principally In the country in which they are incorporated and are held indirectly unless stated otherwise

Effective
Group Country of Principal
interest incorporation activity
Ancharage-Lakefront Limited Partnership 100% USA Hotel owner
Beying Fortune Hotel Co Ltd 70% People’s Republic of Hotel owner and operator

Bostorman Hotel Limited Partnership
CDL (New York) LLC

CDL Hospitality Trusts (Note 1)

CDL Hotels {Chelsea) Limited

CDL Hotels (Korea} Ltd

CDL Hotels {Malaysia} Sdn Bhd

CDL Hotels {U K } Limited

CDL Hotals USA, Inc.

CDL investments New Zealand Lumited

CDL West 45th Street LLC
Chicago Hotel Holdings, Inc
City Hotels Pte Ltd

Copthorne Hotel {Birmingham) Limited
Copthorne Hotel (Gatwick) Limeted
Copthorne Hotel (Manchester) Limited
Copthorne Hotel (Newcastia) Limited
Copthorne Hote! (Slough) Limited
Copthorne Hotels Limited

Copthorne Hotel Holdings Laimited
Copthorne Orchid Hotel Singapore Pte Ltd
Gateway Regal Holdings LLC

Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

Harbour View Hotel Pt Ltd

Hong Leong Ginza TMK

Hong Leong Hotel Developmant Limited
Hong Leong Hotels Pte Ltd

Hospitality Group Limited

Hospitality Holdings Pte Ltd

King's Tanglin Shopping Pte Ltd
London Brtanma Hotet Limited

tondon Tara Hotel Limited

M&C Crescent Interests, LLC

M&C Hote! Interest, Inc

M&C Hotels France SAS

MAC New York (Times Square) EAT I LLC
M&C REIT Management Limited

100%
100%

36%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

50%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

96%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

66%

100%
70%
81%

100%
75%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

China

USA

USA

Singapore

England and Wales
Republic of Korea
Malaysia

Engtand and Wales
USA

New Zealand

USA
UsAa
Singapore

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Engtand and Wales
Singapore

USA

Philippimes

Singapore

Japan

Taiwan

Cayman !slands
New Zealand
Singapore
Singapore

England and Wales
England and Wales
USA

USA

France

USA

Singapore

Hotel owner

Hotel owner

Property owner and developer

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel investment holding company
Investment and property management
company

Hotel owner

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel operator and investment holding
company

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Hotels investment holding company
Hotels investment holding company
Property owner and developer

Hotal owner and operatar

Hotel owner and operator and investment
holding company

Hotel operator

Property owner

Hotel owner and operator

Investment holding company

Holding company

Investment holding company

Property owner

Hotel owner and operator

Hotel owner and operator

Property owner

Hotel management services company
Hotel owner

Hotel owner

RE!T investment management services
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zeatand
Limited

Millennium & Copthorne International Lirmited
Millennium & Copthorne Middle East Holdings
Limited

Millennium Hotels (West Londen) Limited
Millennium Hotels (West London) Management
Limited

75%

100%
51%

100%
100%

New Zealand

Singapore
Hong Kong

England and Wales
England and Wales

Hotel investment holding company

Hotels and resorts management
Hotel management service company

Hotel owner
Hotel operator

Millenmium Hotels Hotel Palace Holdings s r | 100% Italy Hotel owner and operatar

Quantum Limited 75% New Zealand Holding company

Republic Hotels & Resorts Limited 100% Singapore Hotel operator and investment holding
company

Republic lcanic Hotel Pte Ltd 100% Singapore Hotel operator

RHM-88, LLC 100% USA Hotel owner and operator

WHB 8iltmaore LLC 100% USA Hotel owner and operator

Joint vantures

New Umity Holdings Limited 50% British Virgin Islands Investment holding company

Fena Estate Company Limited

50%

Thailand

Investment helding company

Associate
First Sponsor Group Limited {Note 2)

36%

Britsh Virgin Islands

Investment holding company

Due to non-controlling interest shareholdings held within intermediary parent undertakings, the Group's effective shareholding
in certain subsidiary undertakings in which it has control 15 less than 50%

Notes:

1 Asdisclosed m Nata 2 2 1o the consolidated firancal statements, the Group has concluded thet under the new consolidaten standand, IFRSA0 1t has de fcio controf over CDL Hosprtakity

Trusts

2 The Group has assassed the classdicaton of &5 nwestment m First Sponsor Group Lmeted m accordance: with IFRS10 and conciuded that t does not have control
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Listed below are subsidianes controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have elected to take the exernption
from hawving an audit of therr financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 This exemption 1S taken in accordance with

Cornpanies Act s478A

Archyield Limited (1747079)

CDL Hotels (Chelsea) Lirrmted (2845022)

CDL Hotels {U K } Limited {2729520)

Copthorne Hotels Limited {759611)

Copthorne Hotel Holdings Limited {627049)

Coptharne Hotel {(Birmingham) Limited {1816493)

Copthorne Hotel (Cardiff) Limited {2411296)

Copthorne Hotel (Effingham Park) Limited {1423861)
Copthorne Hotel (Gatwick) Limited {994968)

Copthorne Hote! (Manchester) Limited (1856800}

Copthorne Hotel (Merry Hill) Construction Limited (2649367)
Copthorne Hotel (Merry Hill) Limited (2590620}

Copthomne Hotel (Plymouth) Limited (3263120

Copthorne Hotal (Slough) Limited (2300992}

Diplomat Hotel Holding Limited {1927463)

London Britanma Hotel Limited (744379)

London Tara Hotel Limited (1005559)

MB&C Asia Finance (UK) Limited (8391037)

MB&C Asia Holdings (UK) Limited {8382946)

ME&C (CB) Limited {3846711)

MBEC (CD) Limited (3846704}

ME&C Finance {1} Limited {6783896)

ME&C Hotels Holdings Lirmited {4407581)

MB.C Management Holdings Limited {5832248)

ME&C New York Finance (UK} Limited (9060415)

MB&C NZ Limited (5159722}

M&C Reservations Services Limited {6754684)

M&C Singapore Finance (UK} Limited (8391052)

MA&C Singapore Holdings (UK} Limited {8382985)
Millennium & Copthorne (Austnan Holdings} Limited (3757378)
Millenmum & Copthorne {(Jersey Holdings) Limited (5846574}
Millenmum & Copthorne Share Trustees Limited (3320990)
Millennium Hotels Limited (3141048)

Millennium Hotels Europe Holdings Limited (8844747)
Millennium Hotals London Limited {3691885)

Millenrium Hotels (West London) Limited (8599282)
Millennium Hotels (West Landon) Management Limited (8891308)
Millenmum Hotels & Resorts Servicaes Limited (4601112)

Each company's registered number 1S shown in brackets after its name
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35 Non-controlling interests (“NCI™}

The following subsidiaries have material NC!

Principal place of

Ownershap interests

businassf/ Country of held by NCI
Narme mcorporation Principal actvity 2014 2013
Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand New Zealand Hotel investment 25% 30%
Limited (*“MCHNZ"} holding company
CDL Hospitahty Trusts (*CDLHT") Singapore Real estate investment 64% 65%

trust

The following 1s summarnsed financial information for MCHNZ and CDLHT, prepared in accordance with local accounting standards
The information 1s before intercompany eliminations with other companies in the Group

MCHNZ Subgroup CDLHT Subgroup

2014 2013 2014 2013
Name tm £m fm £m
Revenue 65 62 84 78
Profit after tax 18 16 62 73
Eoﬁt attributable to NCI 4 5 39 a7 |
Other comprehensive sncome 5 - -
Total comprehensive income 23 18 62 73
ITotal comprehensive income attributabte to NCI 8 5 39 47 l
Current assets i 65 48 40
Non-current assets 7 292 1,143 1,072
Current habilities (18) {(13) (vFa) 81
Non-current habilihes (52) {62) {231) (268)
Net assets 24 282 788 763
[?et assets attributable to NCI 8 85 603 496
Cash flows from operating activitiss 10 g9 70 65
Cash flows from investing activities (79) (24) (a8} (90)
Cash flows from financing activities 40 2 (20) 21
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (29} {13 4 4
|Evldends paid to NC! during the year’ 1 1 D 35

1 Inchuded m cash Flows from finanang sctrvibes
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 Decemnber 2014
2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets {D} 3 2
Investments (E} 1.6889 1,602
1,892 1,604
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings falling due within one year 14 15
Other debtors 2 1
Cash at bank and in hand ] 16
5 32
Credrtors, amounts falling due within one yeer {F} (385} (74}
Net current habihties {340) (42)
Creditors emounts faliing due after more than one year G} (350} {408)
Not sssets 1,162 1,154
Capitsl and ressrves
Called up share capital {H}, (1) a7 97
Share premium account n 843 843
Profit and loss account (1 226 216
Own share reserve U] 4} 2)
Sharsholders’ funds { 1,162 1,154

These financial staternents were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 February 2015 and were signed on its behalf by-

Kwek Leng Bang Wong Hong Ren

Chairman Group Chief Executve Officer \\) [\\g“ %\
\,

Registered No 3004377
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A Accounting policies

The following accounting pelicies have been apphed consistently in dealing with items which are considered matertal in relation to the
Company's financial statements

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the gaing concern basis which assumes that the Company wall continue n
operational existence for the foreseeable future

Accounting convention and basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting
standards 1n the United Kingdom (" UK GAAP™)

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from presanting its own profit
and loss account The profit aftar tax dealt with in the accounts of Millenmium & Copthorne Hotels pic, determined in accordance with
the Act was £84m (2013 £37m)

Under FRS 1 (revised) ‘Cash Flow Statements’, the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement as its
cash flows are included within the published consolidated cash flow statement of Millenrium & Coptharne Hotels plc

The consolidated financial statements of the Group contain financial instruments disclosures and comply with FRS 29 "Financial
Instruments Disclosures’ Consequentty the Company has taken advantage of certain exemptions in FRS 29 from the requirement to
present separate financial Instrument disclosures for the Comparny

The Company is also exempt under the terms of the revised FRS 8 “Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing related party
transactions with wholly-owned subsxianes within the Group

Investments

In the Company’s financial statements, mvestrnents in subsidiary and associated undertekings are stated at cost less provision for
impairment Dividends received and recavable are ¢credited to the Company's profit and loss account

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation and are depreciated to their residual values on a straight ine basis over therr
useful economic lives

Capital expenditure on computer scftware development is recorded separately within fixed assets as capital work in progress Once
the project is completed the balance 1s transferred to computer software Capital work in pregress 1s not depreciated

Cash and liquid resources

Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand less overdrafts payable on demand, which form an integral part of
the Company’s cash management

Taxation

The charge for taxation 15 based on the profit for the year and takes into account deferred taxation because of uming differences
betwseen the treatment of certain itemns for taxation and accounting purposes

Except as otherwise required by accounting standards, full provision without discounting 15 made for all uming differences, which
have ansen but not reversed at the balance sheet date Timing differences anse when iterns on income and expenditure are included
In tax computations in penods different frorm ther inclusion in the financial statements
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Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and labilities deneminated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at that date Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised In the income statement Non-monetary assets and
liabities that are measured n terms of histoncal cost in @ foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the farr value was determined

The Company uses a fair value hedging model to designate bank loans and bonds held in overseas currencies as hedging instruments
against designated overseas Investrnents heid in the same currency Under such farr value hedges, both the hedged item and the
hedging instrument are retranslated with the exchange differences in both cases being recorded in the profit and loss account as they
anse at each period end

The Directors have reviewed the accounting treatment of the unhedged part of the investment and decided 1t Is appropriate to
recognise this at historical cost

Share-based payment

Where the Company 1s the settling entity for employees of subsidiaries who receive share-based payments, but the benaficiary of the
services I1s the subsidiary, the Company recognises the fair value of the employee services recewved by the subsidiary as an increase
in the Investment in the subsidiary

Dividend distribution
Dividend distrbution to the shareholders 1s recognised as a hability in the Group's financiat statements in the penod in which the

dvidends are appropnately authonsed and approved for payment and are no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpaid
drnidends that do not meet these critera are disclosed in the financial statements

Treasury shares held by employee bensfit trust

Transactions of the Company sponsored employee benefits trust are included in the Company financial statements In particular, the
trust’s repurchase of shares in the Company are debited directly to equity

B  Dwectors’ ramuneration and employees

Detalls of Directors’ remuneration m the currant and prior year are given in the Remuneration Committee report on pages 55 to 68
The average number of employees exciuding Directors dunng the year was il {2013 nil}

Detalls of share options 1ssued by the Company are given :n Note 23 to the consokidated financial statements and Note (H)

The Company is the pnncipal emplayer of the UK Group pension scheme, the Millennium & Copthorne Pension Plan, which provides
benefits based on final pensionable pay As the Company 1s unable to identify its share of the scheme assets and habilities on a
consistent and reasonable basis, the scheme has been accounted for, in these financial statements as if it were a defined contrnibution

schemae {as permitted by FRS 17 'Reurament benefiis’) Details of the plan are given in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
staterments

C Dmwndends

Detalls of dividends paid and proposed in the current and prior year are given in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
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D Tangibie assets

Capital work
In progress
£m

Cost at 1 January 2014

2
Additions 1
Cost st 31 December 2014 3

E Invastments

Shares in Loens to Group
subsidiary subsidiary settled
undertakings undertakings arrangements Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost and net book value at 1 January 2014 1,551 45 1,602
Reductions - {17) (12)
Additions 285 - 285
Foreign exchange adjustments 18 1 19
Cost and net book value at 31 December 2014 1,854 29 1,889

There were no provisions made against nvestments 1n subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s significant subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2014 are lsted below All of the subsidiary undertaiings have

cotermmous year ends

Country of mcorporation Pnincipal activity

Effective

intarest

n ordinary

Significant substdiary name shares
Millennium Hotels Europe Holdings Limited 100%
Caopthorne Hotel Holdings Limited 100%
Millennium Hotels London Limited 100%
MA&C Hotels Holdings Limited 100%
MA&C Hotels Holdings USA Limited 100%
Atos Holding AG 100%
ME&C Asia Holdings (UK} Limited 100%
MB&C Singapore Holdings {UK) Limited 100%

England and Wales
England and Wales
Engtand and Wales
England and Wales
Cayman lslands
Austna

England and Wales
England and Wales

Investment holding
Investmant holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding

F  Creditors. amounts falling due within one ysar

2014 2013

ffm £m

Bank loans and overdrafts 20 59
Bonds payable % -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undartakings 129 12
Other payables 2 2
Accruals and deferred income 2 1
368 74
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G Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
2014 2012
£m £m
Bank loans 4 -
Bends payable 86 57
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 220 351
390 408
Bank loans and bonds are repayable as follows -
2014 2013
£m £m
Between one and two years 64 27
Between two and five years 108 30
170 57
H  Share caprital
Number of
30p shares,
affotted,
cealled up and
fully paid
Balance at 1 January 2014 324,618,187
Issue of ordinary shares on exarcise of share options 53,874
Balance st 31 December 2014 324,672,001

All of the share capital is equity share capital At the year end options over 215,849 ordinary shares remain outstanding and ara
exarcisable between now and 31 January 2019 at exarcise prices between £3 30 and £4 48 In addition, awards made under the
Long-Term Incentive Plan up to 1,568,211 ordinary shares remain unvested and may potentially vest between 18 August 2015and 4

Apnl 2017

During the year Millennium & Copthorne Hotsls plc issued invitations to UK employees under the Sharesave Scheme to enter into 8
three-year savings contract or a five-year savings contract with an option to purchase shares at an option price of £4 46 on expiry of

the savings contract

t Reconciliation of movements in sharsholders’ funds

Share Shara Profitand Own Total Total

capital pramuum  logs account  share raserve 0 2013

Em Em m £m fm £m

Balance at 1 january a7 843 218 {2) 1,154 1,160
Profit for the financial year - - 34 - . 37
Dwvidends paid to equity holders - - (74) - ) {44)
QOwn shares purchased - - - (2} (2} -
Share options exercised - - - - - -
Hedging reserve adjustment - - - - - -
Share-based payment transactions (net of tax} - - - - - 1
Balance at 31 December 97 B4a3 226 {4) 1182 1,154
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Jd Contingent liabilities, commitments and subsequent events

In the course of managing 1ts INvestments, the Company 1s routinely exposed tc potential habilities for contractual or tortious claims
by third parties The Company has insurance cover up to certain hmis for major claims tin connection with legal abilities in the course
of its operations Otherwise the Company carmes its own nsk The Company believes that the provisions carried on the balance sheet

are sufficient to cover these nsks

The Company had no caprtal commitments at the end of the financial year for which no prowision has been made

There are no events subsequent to the balance sheet date which require adjustment to or disclosure within these financia!
stataments

K Ultimate holding and controlling company

The Directors consider the ultirnate holding and controling company 10 be Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Ltd which s
incorporated in the Repubhc of Singapore The accounts cf the ulumate holding company, which heads the largest group in which the
results of the Company are consolidated, are available to the public at the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority, 10 Anson

Road #05-01/15, International Plaza, Singapore 079303

The intermediate holding company I1s City Developments Limited, a company incorporated in Singapore, which also heads the
smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated The consolidated accounts are available to the pubhc and may

be obtained from 36 Robinson Road, #04-01 City House, Singapore 068877

L Related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2014, fees pad/payable by the Company to Hong Leong Management Services, a subsidiary of
Hong Leong investment Holdings Pte Ltd. amounted to £1m {2013- £nul}. At 3t December 2014, £Enil (2013 £nil} of fees payable was

ocutstanding
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148 Further information
Key operating statistics

Year ended Year ended Year ended
2014 2013 2013
Raported Constant Reported
Owned or leased hotels*® currency currency currency
Occupancy (%)
New York 86.7 843
Regional US 802 59 1
Total US 885 659
London 857 854
Rest of Europe 891 707
Total Europe 774 778
Singapore 8838 864
Rest of Asia "2 702
Total Asia 78.1 769
Australasia 737 675
Yotal Group 74.2 723
Average Room Rate (£}
New York 162 83 156 70 164 33
Regional US 7337 69 M 7237
Total US 108.70 9328 104 12
London hry B 12673 126 73
Rest of Europe 89.16 66 80 6798
Total Europe 103.38 9878 9933
Singapore 9840 102 61 109 09
Rest of Asia [ <&/ ] 8313 8767
Total Asia 9048 92 18 9762
Australasia 57209 54 89 56 96
Total Group 20.49 9261 96 25
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Year snded Year ended Year ended

20%4 2013 2013
Reported Constant Reported
Owned or leased hotels* currency currgncy currency
AevPAR (£}
New York 14130 13210 13853
Regional US 4419 4076 4275
Total US 7444 65 40 68 59
London 112 47 108 19 10819
Rest of Europe 4778 4720 4804
Total Europe 7997 7686 7723
Singapore 83 88 8c 64 9424
Rest of Asia 69 64 58 37 6156
Total Asia 70 62 7089 7508
Australasia 42 10 3706 3846
Total Group 7155 6695 6958
Gross Operating Profit Margin (%)
New York 28.0 246
Regional US 20.1 168
Total US 243 206
London 50.9 538
Rest of Europe 24.9 238
Total Europe Mus 422
Singaporef 474 480
Rest of Asia 351 333
Total Asia® 408 404
Australasia 414 428
Total Group” 380 350

For comparabiiity, the 31 December 2013 Average Room Rate and RevPAR have been translated at average exchange rates for the
penod ended 31 December 2014

*  mechuding managed, franchrsed and snvestrnent hotols
A restatad to neflect COLHT consohdaton
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Group financial record

Restated* Restated
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£m £m fm £m Em

Income statement
Revenue az2é 1,064 768 a2 743
Operating profit 198 294 140 180 19
Net finance expense (17 {13) {6) 7 {6)
Income tax expense {37) (30) (25) (28) (31)
Profit for the year 151 265 147 165 98
Cash flow
Cash generated from operations 330 204 196 216 196
Statement of financial position
Property, plant, equipment and lease premium prepayment 2,881 2,457 2,096 2,091 2,257
Investment properties 479 414 169 174 95
Investment and foans in joint ventures and associates 35 203 440 423 397
Loans due from associate - - 29 51 -
Other financial assets ] 5 8 8 7
Non-current agsets 3570 3,079 2,742 2,747 2,756
Current assets excluding cash 182 259 264 242 178
Net cash/{debt) {525) (215) 52 (100} (166}
Deferred tax labilities {221) {208) {228) {236) {252)
Prowvisions and other liabilities @ry {236) {467) (405) {397)
Net sssots 2,735 2,679 2,363 2,248 2,19
Share capital and share premium 940 940 940 940 939
Reserves 1323 1.236 1,236 1,127 1,009
Total equity attributable to equity holders 2263 2176 2176 2,067 1,948
Non-controlltng interests 472 503 187 181 17
Yotal equity ans 2,679 2,363 2,248 2,119

204 2013 2012 on 2010
Koy operating statistics
Geanng % 10% - 5% 9%
Earmings per share 34.0p 69 4p 420p 510p 309p
Dividends per share’ 13.59% 22 74p 1359 16 50p 10 00p
Hotel gross operating profit margin 25.0% 35 0% 385% 387% 371%
Occupancy 2% 723% 70 8% 70 8% 714%
Average room rate (£} £96.49 £96 25 £95 08 £9148 £85 52
RevPAR (£) £71.55 £69 58 £6732 £64 81 £61 06

1 Oradends per share inchucies ominary divdends and spacal dhvadends
®  Sam Note 2 2 of the financal statements
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Major Group properties
Asia

sits area of Group
Hotels Tontre g ! %l
Grand Millennium Beijing Leasehold to year 2046 (hotel), 9.268 510 70
Fortune Plaza, 7 Dongsanhuan Middle Road Leasehold to year 2066
Chaoyang District, Beping 100020 PRC {underground car park}
New World Millennium Hong Kong Hotel 75-year term from 28 111884 and may be 2,850 164 80
{Owned by New Unity Holdings Limited) renewable for a further 75 years
72 Mody Road, Tsimshatsus East
Kowloon, Hong Kong
JW Marriot Hotel Hong Kong 75-year term from 18 04 1985 and may be 10,690 602 26
(Owned by New Unity Holdings Limited) renewable for a further 75 years (Part)
Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Hong Kong
Millennium Hotel Sirih Jakarta The tite 1s held under a Hak Guna 7349 am 80
Jalan Fachrudin 3, Bangunan {1 e Right to Buikdl and a 40-year
Jakarta 10250, Indonesta tease wef 14 04 1984 and 22 01 1986 for

approximate site area of 7137 sq metres
and 212 sq metres, respectively

Hotel MyStays Asakusabashi Freehoid 567 138 35
155, Asakusabashi, Tartto-ku,
Tokyo 111-0053, Japan
Hotel MyStays Kamata Freehold 497 116 36
546-5, Kamata, Otaku,
Tokyo 1440052, Japan
Copthome Orchid Hotel Penang Freehoid 10,329 307 100
Jatan Tanjung Bungzh, 11200 Penang, Malaysia
Grand Millennium Kuala Lumpur Freehold 7620 459 100
160 Jalan Bukit Bintang,
55100 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
AngsanaVelavaru 50-vear Title commencing from 26 081997 67717 n3 36
South Nilandhe Atoll,
Republic of Maldives
Jumeirah Dhevanafushi 80-vear lease commenang from 83,576 35 36
Meradhoo Island, 15 06 2006
Gaafu Alifu Atoll,
Republic of Maldives
Tho Heritage Hotel Manila Fee simple 9,888 450 66
Roxas Boulevard at comner of EDSA Pasay City,
Metropolitan Manila, Philippines
Copthome King’s Hotel Singapore Y9-year lease commencing from 5,637 310 36

403 Havelock Road, Singapore

0102 1968
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Major Group properties continued

site aren of Group

Hoteds Torumy {sq. ) {%)
Grand Copthome Waterfront Hotel Singapore 20 year lease commencing 19 072006 and 10,860 6574 36
392 Havelock Road, Singapore extendable for a further 20 years
M Hotel Singapore Freehold 213 413 36
81 Anson Road, Singapore
Novotel Singapore Clarke Quay 97 years and 30 days Leasehold Interest 12,925 403 36
177A River Valley Road, Singapore commencing from 02 04 1880
Orchard Hotel Singapore Freehold 8,588" 656 36
442 Orchard Road, Singapore
Studio M Hotel Singapore 99-vear lease commencing from 2,932 360 36
3 Nanson Road, Singapore 26 02 2007
Millennium Seoul Hilton Freehold 18,760 679 100
50 Sowal-ro, Junggu,
Seoul, South Korea 100-802
Land Site in Seoul Freehold 1,564 - 100
Located at Chung-gu, Namdaeumro 5 Ga 627

30ear term from 02 02 2005 with option 5,053 325 50

Grand Millennium Sukhumvit Bangkok
{Owned by Fena Estate Company Limited)

Sukhurmat Sot 21, Asoke Road
Bangkok, Thalland

to renew for a further term of 30 years

# ichudes Claymore Link
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Hotely

site aron of

)
L

Ternon

The Chelsea Harbour Hotel
Chelisea Harbour, London, SW10 0XG, England

Leasehold to year 2112 2,561 158 100

Copthome Hotel Aberdeen
122 Huntly Street,
Aberdeen AB10 15U, Scotland

Freehold 1,302 87 83

Copthome Hotel Birmingham
Paradise Circus,
Birmingham B3 3H.J, England

Freehold 2,188 21 100

Copthome Hotel Cardiff-Caerdydd
Cepthorne Way, Culverhouse Cross,
Cardiff CF5 6DH, Wales

Freehold 26,305 135 100

Copthome Hotel Effingham Gatwick
West Park Road, Copthorne,
West Sussex RH10 3EU, England

Freehold 161,878 122 100

Copthome Hotel London Gatwick
Copthome Way, Copthome, West Sussex
RH10 3PG, England

Freehold 404,694 227 100

Capthome Hotel Manchester
Chppers Quay, Safford Quays,
Manchester M50 35N, England

Leasehold to year 2135 9,800 166 100

Copthome Hotel Menry Hill-Dudley
The Waterfront, Level Street, Bnerey Hill,
Dudley, West Midlands DY5 1UR, England

Freehold 13,734 138 100

Copthome Hotel Newcastle
The Close, Quayside, Newcastie upon Tyne
NE1 3RT, England

Freehold 9,200 156 96

Copthome Hotal Plymouth
ArmadaWay, Plymouth PL1 1AR, England

Leasehold to year 2110 1,853 135 100

Copthome Hota! Slough-Windsor
Cippenham Lana, Slough, Berkshire
SL1 2YE, England

Freehold 6,880 219 100

Copthome Tara Hotel London Kensington
Scarsdale Place, Kensington, London
W8 5SR, England

Freehold 7535 833 100
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Major Group properties continued

Approxiste Nammber Effectve
site area of Group

Hotels Tenume (sq. matres) ooms  intarest (%)
Millennium Bailey's Hotel London Kensington Freehold 1,923 211 100
140 Gloucester Road,
London SW7 4QH, England
Millennium Gloucester Hotel London Kensington Freehold 6,348 610 100
Harnngton Gardens
London SW7 4LH, England
Millennium Hotel Glasgow Leasehold to year 2109 9,398 16 100
George Square, Glasgow G2 1DS, Scotland
Millennium Hotel London Knightsbridge Leasehold to year 2091 809 222 100
17 Sloane Street, Knightsbridge,
London SW1X 9NU, England
Millennium Hotel London Mayfair Leasehold to year 2096 4,260 336 100
Grosvenor Square, Mayfarr,
London W1iK 2HR, England
Millennium Hotel Patis Opéra Freehold 1,093 163 100
12 Boulevard Haussmann,
75009 Pans, France
NMillennium Hotel Paris Charles de Gaulle Freehold 11,657 239 100
Zone Hoteliera, Allée du Verger, 95700
Roissy-en-France, France
Grand Hotel Palace Rome Freehold 80 87 100
Via Veneto,70, Rome, 00187 Itaty
North America

Approsimsie Number Effective

frrg— of Group

Hotels T {9q. matres) rooms  interest (%)
Millennium Alaskan Hotel Anchorage Freehold 20,639 248 100
4800 Spenard Road, Anchorage,
AK 99517 USA
Millennium Biltmore Hotel Los Angeles Freehold 11,331 683 100
506 South Grand Avenue, Los Angeles,
CA 80071, USA
Millennium Bostonian Hotel Boston Freehold 2,796 20 100
26 North Street
At Faneuil Hall Marketplace, Boston
MA 02109, USA
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Approsnate Number Eioctve
sita groa af Group

Hotels Tenura (sq. metros} rooms %}
Millennium Harvest House Boulder Freehold 64,019 269 100
1345 28th Street
Boulder, CO 80302, USA
Millennium Hotel Buffalo Leasehold to year 2022 31,726 300 100
2040 Walden Avenue (with one 10-year option)
Buffalo, NY 14225, USA
Millennium Knickerbocker Hotel Chicago Freehold 2,007 306 100
163 East Walton Place, Chicago, IL 60611,
USA
Millennium Hotel Cincinnati Freehold 6,839 872 100
150 West Fifth Street, Cincinnati, OH 45202,
USA
Millennium Hotel Durham Freehold 42,814 36 100
2800 Campus Walk Avenue, Durham,
NC 27705, USA
Millennium Hotel Minneapolis Leasehold to year 2030 4537 3 100
1313 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55403,
usa
Millennium Maxwell House Nashville Leasehold to year 2030 36,421 287 100
2025 Rosa L Parks Boulevard, Nashwille {with two 10-year options}
TN 37228, USA
Millennium Broadway Hotel New York Freehold 2,122 750 100
145 West 44th Street, New York,
NY 10036, USA
ONE UN New York East tower freehold/ 4,554 439 100
1 UN Plaza, 44th Street at 1st Avenue, West tower leasehold to
New York, NY 10077 USA year 2079
Millonnlum Hotel St Louis (closed) Freehold 17033 780 100
200 South 4th Street, St Louws,
MO 63102, USA
The McCormick Scottsdale Leasehold to year 2033 32,819 125 100
7401 North Scottsdale Road, {wath two 10-year options)
Scottsdale, AZ 85208, USA
Millenium Hilton Freenold 1,680 569 100
55 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 USA
Novotel New York Times Square Fee simple estate, a 1,977 480 100

226 W 52nd Street, NewYork, NY 10019, USA

leasehold interest, and a
leased fee interest
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Major Group properties continued

site aroo of Group
Hotels Terure {sq. ) in %)
Maingate Lakeside Resort Freehold 93,796 475 100
7769 W Irlo Bronson Memonal Highway,
Kissimmee, FL 34747 USA
Comfort Inn Near Vail Beaver Creck Freehold 11,209 146 100
161 West Beaver Creek Boulevard, Avon,
CO 81620, USA
Pine LakeTrout Club Freehold 331,124 6 100
17021 Chillicothe Road, Chagnn Falls
OH 44023, USA
Australasia

Approodmats Number Effactive

sito area of Group
Hotnis Torame (sq. motres} roonys  interest (%}
Novotel Brisbane Strata volumetnic freehold 6,236 296 35
200 Creek Street
Bnishane, Queensland, Australia
Mercure & [bis Brisbane Interconnected at ground 3845 194/218 36
8587 North Quay/ level, situated on one
27-35Turbot Street freehold title
Bnsbane, Queensiandg, Australia
Mercure Perth Strata freehold 757 239 36
10 Irwin Street
Perth, Western Austraha, Australia
Ibis Perth Freehoid 1,480 192 36
334 Murray Street
Perth, Westerm Australia, Australia
Copthoms Hotel Auckland City PemetualflLeasehold Land 2,495 110 75
15Q Anzac Avenue
Auckland, New Zealand
Copthome Hotel Aucidand Harbour City Freehold 2,407 187 75
196-200 Quay Street
Auckland, New Zealand
Copthome Hotel & Resort Bay of lslands Leasehold Land to year 62,834 180 37
Tau Henare Dnve, Paihia, 2021 {twith a 30-~year
New Zealand option)
Copthome Hotel Paimerston North Freehold 15,514 151 75
M0 Fiizherbert Avenue,

Palmerston North, New Zealand
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Appr Numb Effoctive
wite area of Group

Hotals Tenure {sq. } %)
Copthome Hotel & Resort Queenstown Lakefront Freehold 18,709 240 75
Corner Adelaide Street & Frankton Road,
Queenstown, New Zealand
Copthome Hotel Wellington Onental Bay Freehold 3,904 18 75
100 Ornental Parade,
Wellington, New Zealand
Kingsgate Hotel Dunedin Freehold 2,193 b5 75
10 Smith Street,
Dunedin, New Zealand
Kingsgate Hotel Greymouth Freehold/Perpetual 2,807 98 75
32 Mawhera Quay, leasehold land
Greymouth, New Zealand
Kingsgate HotelTe Anau Freehold 8,819 94 75
20 Lakefront Drive,
Te Anau, New Zealand
Copthome Hotel & Aparntments Queenstown Freehold 4,713 85 75
Lakeview
88 Frankton Road,
Queenstown, New Zealand
Copthome Hotel Rotorua Freehold 35,935 136 75
Fenton Street,
Rotorua, New Zealand
Millennium Hotel Queenstown Freehold 7453 220 75
Comer Frankton Road & Stanley 5t ,
Queenstown, New Zealand
Milleninium Hotel Rotorua Freehold/Permpetual 10,108 227 75
Corner Eruera & Hinemaru Streats, leasehold land
Rotorua, New Zealand
Rendezvous Grand Hotel Auckiand Freehold 5910 452 36

71-87 Mayoral Drive, Auckiand, New Zealand

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc Annual report and accounts 2014




158 Further information
Major Group properties continued

Approdmats
lottabe Effective

styetn aren Group
lvestmont Properties Tenurs (s metres)  mitarest (%}
Tanglin Shopping Centre Freehold 6,285 100
A shopping-cum-office complex situated at
Tangln Road, Singapore, within the Orchard Road tounst distnict
The Group owns 83 out of 362 strata-titled uruts and 325 car park lots
Millennium Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo Freehold/ 1040 70
511-1 Ginza, Chuo-Ku, Leasehold - 30 years from 25 March 130
Tokyo 104-0061 2009
329 bedroom hotel
Biltmore Court & Tower Freehold 34,249 100
Siuated at 500/520 South Grand Avenue,
Los Angeles, CA 80071
Compnising the Court which has 22,133 square metres Class "B
lettable office space within the Bitmore hotel structure and the Tower
which has 12,116 square metres of Class "A” office space 299 car park
spaces are allocated to the two office spaces
Owned by First Sponsor Group Limited.
Humen Intemational Cloth Centre Leasehold to year 2063 3,466 36
Located in Boyong Village, Guangdong Province, China
Compnsing 145 commeraial units and 11 serviced apartments
Chengdu Cityspring Leasehold to year 2049 47518 36

Located in Chengdu HrTech Industnal Development Zone, Sichuan
Province, China

Compnsing M Hotel Chengdu which 1s classified as property, plant
and equipment, a 21,875 sq metres commercial space in the same
building as M Hotel Chengdu which 1s earmarked for potential future
expansion of the hotei, and 6,456 sq metras of commercial and retail
spaces for rental which are accounted for as investment properties
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Millennium & Copthorne hotels worldwide

AS|IA AUSTRALASIA
China Australia
Copthorne Hotel Qingdao Ibis Perth
Grand Millenrsum Beying Mercure & lbis Brisbane
Grand Millenrium Shanghar Hongaqiao Mercure Perth
M Hotel Chengdu Novotel Brisbane
Millennium Residences @ Fortune Plaza Beiing
Millennium Hotel Chengdu New Zealand
Millenrium Harbourview Hotel Xiamen Copthorne Hotel Auckland City
Millenmum Hotel Fuging Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbour City
Millenmium Resort Hangzhou Copthorne Hotel Grand Central New Plymouth
Millennium Hotel Wuxi Copthorne Hotel Wellington Onental Bay
Copthorne Hotel & Resort Bay of Islands
Hong Kong Copthorne Hotel & Resort Hokianga
New World Mdlennium Hong Kong Hotel Copthorne Hotel Palmerston North
JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong Copthorne Hote! & Resart Queenstown Lakefront
Copthorne Hotel & Apartments Queenstown Lakeview
Indonesia Copthorne Hotel Rotorua
Miilenniumn Hotei Sinh Jakarta Copthorne Hotel & Resort Solway Park Wairarapa
Kingsgate Hotel Autolodge Paihia
Japan Kingsgate Hotel Dunedin
Hotel MyStays Asakusabashi Kingsgate Hotel Greymouth
Hotel MyStays Kamata Kingsgate Hotel Hamilton
Millennium Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo Kingsgate Hotel Wellington
Kingsgate Hotel Te Anau
Malaysia Kingsgate Hotel The Avenue Wanganui
Copthorne Orchud Hotel Penang Kingsgate Hotel Whangarei
Copthorne Hotel Cameron Highlands Millenmium Hotel Cueenstown
Grand Millenniumn Kuala Lumpur Millennium Hotel Rotorua
Miilennium Hotel & Resort Manuels Taupo
Maldives Rendezvous Grand Hotel Auckland
Angsana Velavaru
Jumerrah Dhavanafushy MIDDLE EAST
Philippines Iraq
The Heritage Hotel Manila Copthorne Hote! Baranan
Grand Millennium Sulaimary Hotel
Singapore Millennium Hotel Kurdistan Hotel and Spa
Copthorne King's Hotet Singapore
Grand Copthorne Waterfront Hotel Singapore Jordan
M Hotel Singapore Grand Millennium Hotel Amman
Orchard Hotel Singapore
Novotal Singapore Clarke Quay Kuwait
Studio M Hotel Singapore AhJahra Copthorne Hotel & Resort
South Korea Oman
Miltennium Seoul Hilton Millennium Executive Apartments Muscat
Miilennium Resort Mussanah
Taiwan
Grand Hyatt Taipel Qatar
Millenmium Viee Hotel Taichung Copthorne Hotel Doha
Kingsgate Hotel Doha
Thailand Millennium Hotel Doha
Grand Millennium Sukhumwit Bangkok
Millennium Resort Patong Phuket Saudi Arabia

Millennium Taiba Hotel Madina
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Millennium & Copthome hotels worldwide continued

United Arab Emirates

Copthorne Hotel Dubai

Copthorne Hotel Sharjgh

Grand Millennium Dubai

Grand Millennium AlVWahda
Kingsgate Hotel Abu Dhatn
Millennium Airport Hotel Dubal
Millennium Corriche Hotel Abu Dhabi
Millenriurn Plaza Hotel Dubai

EUROPE

France
htlennmum Hote! Pans Charles de Gaulle
Millennium Hotel Paris Opéra

ltaly
Grand Hotel Palace Rome

UK

The Chelsea Harbour Hotel

Copthorne Hotel Aberdeen

Copthorne Hotel Birmingham

Copthome Hotel Cardiff-Caerdydd
Copthorne Hatel Effingham Gatwick
Copthorne Heotel London Gatwick

Copthome Hotel Manchester

Copthome Hotel Merry Hill-Dudley
Copthorne Hotel Newcastle

Copthorne Hotel Plymouth

Copthorne Hotel Sheffield

Copthorne Hotel Slough-Windsor

Copthorne Tara Hotel London Kensington
Miilennium Bailey's Hotel London Kensington
Millennmium Gloucester Hotel London Kensington
Millenniurn Hotel Glasgow

Milienmium Hotel London Knightsbridge
Millennium Hotel London Mayfarr
Miliennium & Copthorne Hotels at Chelsea Football Club
Miliennium Madejski Hotel Reading

THE AMERICAS

USA

Comfort Inn Near Vail Beaver Creek
Maingate Lakeside Resort

The McCormick Scottsdale
Millennium Alaskan Hotel Anchorage
Millennium Biltmore Hotel Los Angeles
Millennium Bostorian Hotel Boston
Milienmium Broadwvay Hotel New York
Millenniurn Harvest House Boulder
Millennium Hotel Buffalo

Millennium Hotel Cincinnatt
Milennuum Hotel Durham
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Millennium Krickerbocker Hotel Chicago
Millenniurn Maxwell House Hotel Nashwille
Millennium Hotel Minneapolis

Milenrium Hotel St Louis (closed)
Millenium Hslton

Novote! New York Times Square

ONE UN New York

Pine Lake Trout Club

CORPORATE OFFICES

Asia

Millennium & Copthorne International Limited
390 Havelock Road

#02-01 King's Centre

Singapore 169662

Te! + [65] 6664 BBB8

Fax + [65] 6732 5435

Email sales@mullenmumhotels com

Australasia

Millenntum & Copthorne Hotels New Zeafand Limited
Level 13, 280 Queen Straet

Auckland 1010

New Zealand

Tel. + [64] {9) 353 5010

Fax: + [64] (9) 309 3244

Email- sales marketung@millenniumhotels co nz

Middle East

Millennium & Copthorne Middle East & Africa
PO Box 119666

Dubai

United Arab Emirates

Tel +[971] (4) 309 8000

Fax + {971] (4} 351 0508

cherry tangpos@milienniumhotels com

Europe

Millenruum & Copthorme Hotels ple
Corporate Headquarters

Scarsdale Place, Kensington

London, W8 55R, UK

Tel +[44] (0) 20 7872 2444

Fax + [44] (0) 20 7872 2460

Email marketing eu@mullenmumhotels com

North America

Millennium Hotels and Resorts

7600E Orchard Road, Ste #230S

Greenwood Village

Colorado, 80111, USA

Tel + [1) 303 779 2000

Fax + (1] 303 779 2001

Email guestcomment@millenniumhotels com
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GLOBAL SALES

Asia

China, Beyjing + (86] 10 6533 0749
China, Chengdu + [86] 28 8517 2000
China, Guangzhou + [852] 29218328
China, Shanghai + [86] 21 6468 8099
Hong Kong + [852] 2921 8328
Singapore + [65] 6664 8388

Taiper + [886]1{2) 2729 3299

Australasia

Sydney + [61] {2) 9358 5080
Auckland + [64] (8) 353 5010
Chnstchurch + [64] (3} 367 3300
Wellington + [64] (4} 382 0771

Europe

France + [33]{0) 14949 1617
Italy + [39] (0] 6 4201 2198
UK +[44]1{0) 20 7872 2444

North America
NewYork +1212 789 7860
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Intemational reservations

Asia

China North +108 0065 00558 {toll free)
China South +108 0026 52531 (toll free}
Hong Kong +800 36 2541

Indonesia +001 803 65 6541

Malaysia +1 800 80 1063

Singapore +65 6735 7575

Tawan +008 01 65 15 05 {toll fres)
Thatand +Q01 800 65 6544 (toll free)

Australasia
Australia +1 800 124 420
New Zealand +0 800 808 228

Middle East

UAE + [971] {4) 309 9096
{Sunday — Thursday)}

8 00am - 5 00pm

Europe

When n the following countries, please use this toll free number
00 800 86 86 BOBS

Austna, Belgium, Denmark, Finland (prefix 390 instead 00},
Germany, lreland, italy, The Nethertands, Norway, Portugal, Spam,
Sweden & Switzerand

France (800 809 586

UK 0800 41 47 41 Main reservations

0845 30 20 001 Leisure bookings

0845 30 20 002 Meetings and Events bookings

North America

Whan in the following countnes, please use this toll free number
+1 866 866 BOBG

Canada, Puerto Rico, USA & US Virgin Islands
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Shareholder information

Analysis of sharehalders as at 31 December 2014

Number Percentage Total number Poerventage

of of of shares of ssued

Number of shares hoigers holders held share caprtal
1-10,000 644 76 85% 936,567 029%
10,001 — 25,000 50 597% 792,159 024%
25,001 - 560,000 41 4 89% 1,574,670 049%
50,001 - 100,000 25 298% 1,854,406 057%
100,001 - 500,000 40 478% 9,269,441 285%
500,001 - 1,000,000 13 1556% 8,684,860 268%
1,000,001 — Highest 25 298% 301,569,558 92 88%
Total 838 10000% 324,672,061 100.00%

Shareholders can find a wealth of information on the Company at

www millenniumbhotels com including

* regular updates about our business,

e hotel and other property information,

* the ability to book a room at one of our hotels around the world,

& share pnce information,

*» financial resufts and investor nformation, and

* our financial calendar whsch includes divdend payment dates
and amounts.

Electronic shareholder communications

Registering for online communicaticn gives shareholders more
controi of thetr shareholding The registration process 18 via our
registrar’s secure website www shareview co uk

Onca registered shareholders are able to

* glect how we communicate with themn,

* amend the:x detalls,

+ amend the way dnvidends are recerved, and
* buy or sell shares online

This does not mean shareholders can no longer receive paper
coples of documents We are able to offer a range of services
and tallor communication to meet their needs

Managing your shares

Please contact our registrar, Equiriti, to manage your
shareholding if you wish to

= register for electronic communications,

= fransfer your shares,

Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc Annual report and accounts 2014

* change your registered name or address,

+ register a lost share certificate and obtain a replacernent,
* consohdate your share holdings,

* manage your dwvidend payments, and

* notfy the death of a shareholder

You can also manage your shareholding onhine by registernng for
Shareview at www shareview co.uk When contacting Equintt or
registenng onhine, you should have your shareholder reference
number at hand. This can be found on your share certficate or
latest dwvidend tax voucher

Contact details for our registrar

Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex
BN399 6DA, United Kingdom

Telephone 0871 384 2343*
and outside the UK +44 121 415 7047
Textphone 0871 384 2255*
and outside the UK +44 121 415 7028

* Cals t0 this number cost 8 pence par mmute plus nebwork extras Lings are open from
830 &rm to 5.30 pm, Monciay to Pdey UK trme

ShareGift

It may be that you have a small number of shares which would
cost you more to seil than they are worth It is possble to donate
these to ShareGift, a registered chanty, who provide a free
service to enable you 10 dispose charrtably of such shares More
information on this service can be obtained from www shareg)ft
org or by calling +44 {0} 207 930 3737
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Be aware of share fraudsters

Shareholders are cautioned to be very wary of any unsolicited
advice, offers to buy shares at a discount, sell your shares at a
prermium or offers of free reports on the Company

If you do receive such an approach, you are encouraged to take
the following steps

= obtain the full name of the person and organisation and make
a record of any cther information they give you, for example
telephone number, address or web address,

e if the caller persists, simply hang up, and

« report the matter to the Financial Conduct Authonty {(“"FCA"} s0
that they can investigate

You are able to do this online at www fca org uk/consumers/
scams/finvestment-scams/share-fraud-and-boderroom-scams/
reportingform or by calling them on 0800 111 6768

You are advised to deal only with hinancial services firms that
are authonsed by the FCA Check the firm is properly authonsed
by the FCA before getting invoived by visiting www fca org
ukfregister If you do deal with an unauthonsed firm, you will
not be eligible to receve payment under the Financal Services
Compensation Scheme If anything goes wrong

Contacts and advisers

Registered office

Victona House, Victona Road, Horley, Surrey RHE 7AF,
United Kingdom
Registered in England and Wales No 3004377

Comporate headquarters

Scarsdale Place, Kensington, London W8 55R,
United Kingdom
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Stockbroker

Credit Suisse Secunties Limited

Auditor
KPMG LLP

Solicitor

Hogan Lovells International LLP

Principal bankers

Bank of Amenca Mern!l Lynch

DBS Bank Ltd

Mizuho Bank, Ltd

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Lirmited

Royal Bank of Scotiand plc

Sumitormo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubisty UFJ, Ltd

The Hongkong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited

Registrar
Equiritt Limited
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Financial calendar

2014 final dvidend record date 20 March 2015
First quarter’s results announcement 7 May 2015
Annual general meeting 7 May 2015
2014 final dividend payment 15 May 2015
Interim results announcement 30 July 2015
2015 intenm dividend record date 14 August 2015
2015 intenm dividend payment 2 QOctober 2015
Third quarter’s results announcement 29 October 2015
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Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc
Scarsdale Place

Kensington

London W8 SSR

United Kingdomn

www millenniumhotels co uk
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